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BALDESSARINI

An international brand in the
upper premiutn segment

Baldessarimi stands for stylish and
masculine design, the finest qualty
materials and modern silhouettes

P

pierre cardin

Ladieswear and menswear in the
premium segment

Francophile, cosmopolitan and modern
with stylish looks for business and leisure

W

e

OTTC KERN

The hfestyle brand for men and wormen
in the premmum segment

Sophusticated designs and high-quahty
fashion for every occasion with a touch
of extravagance

AUTHENTIC JEANS

Casual and modern Jeanswear
for men and women

Denim 1n authentic washes with
perfect fits and matching tops

“

A casual brand for men of cahbre

E:.)AI,,C? .':]JEE * Sporty and trendy, casual and well-groomed
* Workwear for professionals
P. onier‘ » Corporate fashion for the skilled and
workweanr mdustrial trades and the services sector

Certified to DIN ISO 9001

GIN TONIC

Dressed Relaxed
Sportswear for a relaxed hfestyle

Mascuhne and sporty,
with ten collections per year

JUPITER®

High-qualty sportswear jackets
for the upper mid-market

The perfect marriage of design
and functronality
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Ahlers AG

was established by Adolf Alhlers in 1919 and lisied

as a joint stock corporation in 1987

is family-run in the third gencration by Dr. Stella A Ahlers

is one of the biggest listed European manufacturers of menswear

produces fashion under eight brands. tailored to

its respective target groups

generales approx. 65 percent of its sales

revenues from premium brands

produces 8,000,000 fashion items per year

manufactures one thivd of the production volume in its own factories

cimploys some 2,200 people

Portfolio




The product segments

¢ Premium Brands
e Jeans & Workwear

= Men's & Sportswear

The strengths

The fast-growing Premium brands, Baldessarini
and Pierre Cardin, which are positioned at the
upper end of the clothing market

High product expertise in menswear, especially
lor jeans and casual wear

Distribution presence all throughout Europe

Solid financial position characterised by high equity

The strategy for 2015

Growth driven by the Pierre Cardin and

Baldessarini premium brands

Growth in conjunction with S.pccialisl. retailers
Growth in our own retail business

Growth in the e-commerce

International expansion




2009/10 201011 201112 201213 201314 Change
Consolidated financial statements
Sales EUR million 2508 562 2532 2467 5711 42%
thereofabroad % 464 469 457 457 452 -05%
Gross profit ~ EURmillion 1268 1300 1261 1243 1283 37%
as a percentage of sales % 506 507 49 8 504 499 _ﬂ[’]ﬁ
EBITDA EUR mullion 211 215 172 126 14 @____LS_E’;_‘}{;_
EBIT EUR mullion 151 158 i1 13 ______fé_]_g‘ ‘_.__,MESO%
Netincome ___ EURmilhon _85 1001 73 56 r_*fiq 1%
Depreciation amortisation
and impairment losses _EURmbion 60 56 62 53 54 19%
Cash flow from operating actwities EURmulbon 203 90 124 15 109 >100%
Blancesheetiofal ___ EURmilln 1893 12 107 1824 904 44k
Non current assets _ EURmlkon 651 647 Bﬁi _ B2 807 -24%
Equity _ EUR million _ 1151 1153 129 1093 1103 o ﬁ%{
Equity ratio % 6C 8 606 625 599 579 _-20%
Number of employees
{annual average) e 2184 2285 2202 2184 22286 _15%
The sharev T
Market capitahisation e EUR milhign 1373 4 1438 1586 1534 ) __-3 _3%
Earnings per share {Group) EUR 062 072 051 03 042 105%

without own shares

Five-year summary
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Letter of the CEO

DEAR LADIES AND GENTLEMEN, DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

The past fiscal year 2013/14 was a
year of ups and downs It was characterised
by important strategic measures, finanual
successes and challenging market conditions,
which will partly also be felt next year

Strategic measures - Already heing the
largest iiensee of Pierre Cardin for apparel 1n
Europe, we werce able to take over additional
licenses for France, Spain and Belgilum n the
past year As from 2014/15, we will thus have
access to a market wath a population of 125
nullion This market will be supphed with the
full range of the brand’s products and not just
with mdidual products such as jeans and
sportswear as in the past

The past year saw us strengthen
our fast-growing Baldessarini brand in the
creative area, 1n international sales and m
management in order to continue the strong
growth of the past years also i future

Moreover, we developed the ERlshach
Demim Library concept This multi-brand
concept for stores and shop-in-shops has heen
dewised to market our brands in the styhish

atmosphere of a British library, offering a full
assortment tailored to local needs The first
Elshach Demim Library pilot store was ope-
ned m Hamburg i September 2014 The next
store will follow m Potsdam in April 2015

Staiting 2015, Gin Tomc will be ope-
tated together with Ploneer Authentic Jeans
under the same management at the head
office 1n Heiford The sales teams have largely
been merged in oider to increase the custo-
mer reach and leverage synergies

Finanual success - In the year un-
der 1eview, Ahlers was able to increase 1is
sales revenues by a good 4 percent in spite of
dechming markets Baldessariu and e-com-
merce posted double-digit growth rates, while
therre Cardin and Pioncer Authentic Jeans
grew at a high single-cigit rate  Against the
background of stable operating expenses, the
higher sales rovenues led to an impressive
46 percent inctease in earnings before special
effects Consolidated net income also rose by
& percent in spite of significant provistons for
the relocation of Gin Tontc



Challenging market conditions — Our
company achieved this positive performance
1 spite of dechining sales in the clothing 1etail
sector The moderately positive market situ-
aton for clothing retailers has deteriorated
since September 2014 Imtally expected to
be only of short duration, the Russia-Ukiaine
conflict intensified and made doing business
in both markets much more difficuit High
single-digit dechnes 1n sales 1evenues meant
that the winter season was disappointing also
for German clothing retailers The new year
hegan with a further appreciation of the US
dollar, which will make clothing purchases
more expensive m future

While the above means that the year
2014/15 will bring some challenges, the
strategi. decisions of the past year make
us cautiousiy optunustic about the future
Qur company will draw additional strength
from the development of new matkets for
Pierre Cardin, the good performance of
Baldessarini, the expansion of our e¢-com-
merce activites and the integraton of
Pioneer and Gin Tonic

We are looking forward to implemen-
ting these tasks I would hke to take this
opportunity to express my special thanks
to our employees for the successful work
during the past year [ would also hke thank
our shareholders for the confidence placed 1n
us and hope you will continue to support our
company also in future

Yours,
Dr Stella A Ahlers
Chief Executive Officer
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Report of the Supervisory Board

DEAR LADIES AND GENTLEMEN,

In the fiscal year 2013/14, the Supervisory
Board exercised due care m performing the
tasks meumbent on it under apphcable laws,
the company statutes, the rules of procedurc
and standards of good corporate governance
and 1ts closely momtored the economic and
financial performance of the company and
1ts strategic onientation We continuously
advised the Management Board on the ma-
nagement of the company and 1ts governance
We were directly and immediately mvolved in
all major decistons that were of fundamen-
tal importance for the Ahlers Group I'rans-
actions requuring the Supervisory Board’s
consent were presented by the Management
Board fully and 1n detail and approved by the
Superwisory Board following thorough con-
sultation and examination

We recewved regular and comprehen-
sive wriiten and oral reports trom the Ma-
nagement Board on the Groups suuation,
especially on corporate plannming, the cuirent
husiness situation, the earmngs and financial
positton and the human resources situation
In addition, the Management Board informed
us about the risk situanon as well as the ma-
nagement of riske The strategic positioning
of Ahlers AG was discussed and agreed with
the Management Board [he Supervisory
Board actively monitored the situation of the
company and haised regularly with the Ma-
nagement Board, also outside the meetings
The documents, reports and resolutien pro-
posals submutted to the Supervisory Board
were reviewed and discussed mn detail At the
same time, there was a regular exchange ot
mformation and 1deas between the CEOQ and
myself

Focus of the Supervisory Board meetings
The Supervisory Board held six meetings n
the fiscal year 2013/14, each of which was
attended by all members Two meetings took
the form of a telephone conference I’e mee-
ting on December 3, 2013 focused on the
budget for the next fiscal year 2013/14 as
well as the Group's medium-term planning
Detailed plans and budgets were discussed
for the Ahlers brands, the Groups human
resources, investments, marheung and cash
flows The 1ssue of the declaration of confor-
ity 1s another traditional item on the agenda
of the December meeting In addition, slightly
modified rules of procedure fo1 the Supervi-
sory Board, which ate better adapted to the
latest information technologies, were adopted
and a potential capacity expansion at our Sri
Lankan production faciity was discussed at
this meeting

The proposal made by the Human
Resources Committec to appownt Mr Hlilger
as a new member of the Management Board
was approved at the Supervisory Board
meeting on January 23, 2014 which took
the form of a telephone conference In tlus
context, the responsibilities of the Manage-
ment Board members tor the time after
Mr Higer’s accession were redefined and
approved The Chamrman of the Supervisory
Board reported about individual tatks with all
Supervisory Board members The talks show-
ed that all members feel well mnformed and
well ntegrated mto the work of the Super-
visory Board

The Supervisoiy Board neceting on
February 27 2014 primarily focused on the
annual financial statements for 2012/13




l'he auditor and the Management Board
presented the figures for the fiscal year and
answered all questions posed by Superwiso-
ry Board members The Chawrwoman of the
Audit Commuttee reported on the committee's
auditing activittes The Supervisory Board
then approved and adopted the 2012/13
annual financial statements and approved
the dividend proposal The report also co-
vered the Group’s nsk situation, which has
remained largely unchanged from the previ-
ous year and 15 characterised by high equity
capital and low debt, as well as the latest
busmess trend The participants also decided
on the relocation of business actimies from
Austra to Herford

At the Supervisory Board meeting
following the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
on May 6, 2014, the Supervisory Board dis-
cussed the current business siuation of the
Ahlers Group, the mder situation for avtumn/
winter 2014 and the forecast for the fiscal
year 2013/14

On June 18, 2014, the Supervisory
Board held a telephone conference, at which
the Management Board presented a concept
for the reorgamsation of the business activity
of Gin Tonic in view of the latter’s disappon-
ting order figures T'he plan provided for the
closure of Gin Tomic's Sindelfingen hranch
and the integration of Gin Tonic in Herford
The proposal was unammously approved by
the Superwisory Board following thorough
wonsultation

At the meeting on September 9, 2014,
the Management Board first outhned the
curient business and order situation The
Supervisory Board alse defined the mam
aspects of the 2013/14 audit New Manage-
ment Board member Jan Higer reported on
his visit to the company's factory 1 Sr1 Lanka
which he found to be a well-run and efficlent
production facihity He got the 1dea that this
plant complies with social and safety stan-
dards, which was confirmed 1n the meantune
by an audit by the acknowledged mdepen-
dent organisation WRAP (= Worldwide Res-
ponsible Accredited Production, see page 41)
In addiion, the Supervisory Board approved
the takeover of part of the operations of an
wnsolvent French company which also include
the Prerre Cardin hicensing nights for the local
market During the meeting, the chairpersons
of the Audit Committee and the Marketing
Commuttee provided detailed reports on the
work of their committecs

For the audit of the 2013/14 finanaal
statements, the Supervisory Boand Chairman
selected works of art from the collection of
Ahlers AG and had them assessed by a sworn
appraiser For this purpose, several groups
of paintings reflecting the focal pownts of the
collection of Ahlers AG were put tegether A
total of cleven works of art of different values
and styles were selected [he expert opinion
submitted by the sworn appraiser confirms
that no fair value write-downs are tequired
for any of the woirks selected and that the fair
value of all works exceeds the book value, in
same cdses substantially
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Key activities of the commitiees
To ensure the efficiency of the work of the
Supervisory Board, the latter has set up
four comnuttees — the Audit Committee, the
Human Resources Commuttee, the Marheting
Commuttee and the Nommation Committee
The commttecs discuss ali important topics
within their sphere of responsibility in detail
and preparc the plenary Supervisory Beard
meetings The Audit Comnuttee held four
meetings 1n the past fiscal year, all of which
focused on the strategic orientation of our
divistons and the business situation of the
company The Audit Commiuttee also prepared
the resolutions to be passed by the Superviso-
ry Board such as the declaration of conformuty,
personnel decisions at management level, the
audit programine of the new fiscal year and
the mvitation to the 2014 Annual Sharehol-
ders’ Meeting The Marketung Commitee and
the Human Resources Committee each held
two meetings in the fiscal year 2013/14 As
the composition of the Supervisory Board re-
mained unchanged in the fiscal year 2013/14,
the Nomination Commuttee held no meeting
All committee meetings were attended by all
members

At the plenary Supervisory Board
meetngs, the chairpersons provided de-
talled teports on the work of their respective
commnitiees

Changes on the Management Board;
unchanged Supervisory Board

With effect from May 1, 2014, the Supervisory
Board appomted Mr Jan Thiger as Manage-
ment Board member n charge of Procu-
rement, Logistits and Foreign Faclhities
Mr Hidger 15 an additional member of the
Management Board of Ahlers AG He has

taken over from Mr Bruno Leder, who had
been 1 charge of these tasks as divisional
board member below Management Board
level and will go 1into retirement 1 2015 We
would like to take this epportumty to thank
Mr Leder for hus long-standing and successful
work Management Board Chairwoman Dr
Stella A Ahlers remamns m charge of Trade-
maiks, Sales, Marketing and Auditing, while
Dr Karsten Kolsch 15 responsible for Finance,
IT and Human Resources In accordance with
general recommendations from business
and poltical circles, the Chairwoman of the
Management Board has, since December 3,
2014, also been responsible for Compliance,
which had previously been the responsibili-
ty of Dr Kolsch in his capauty as CFO With
new Supervisory Board members elected by
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting and the
warkforce i 2013, the composttion of the Su-
pervisory Board remained unchanged in the
past fiscal year

Corporate Governance

In the past fiscal year, the Supervisory Board
closely addressed the application and the
further development of the corporate gosver-
nance rules For detailled information, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 16 to 21 We discussed the company s
practice aganst the background of the Ger-
man Corporate Governance Code as last
amended on June 24, 2014 and adopted the
jomnt declaration of conformuty at our meeting
on December 3, 2014 No confhcts of interest
on the part of individual members of the Su-
pervisoty Board occurred Prof Dr von Ah
and Prof Dr Heuer abstained from voting
the decistons taken by the Supervisory Board
with regard to the company’s service con-



tracts with indivilual members of the Super-
visory Board pursuant to section 114 para 1
of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG),
as they were affected by these decisions

Audit of the financial statements
In 2014, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
appointed BDO AG  Wirtschaftsprufungs-
gesellschaft  headquartered m  Hamburg
(Hanover Branch) as the auditors for the
fiscal year 2013/14 The auditors had 1ssued a
written statement on their potential husiness
or personal relationships with the company
This statement gave no cause for objections
Following their audit, the auditors issued an
unguahfied audit epinion for the separate and
the consolidated financlal statements inclu-
ding the consohdated management report
The scparate and the consohdated
financial statements as well as BDO's audit
reports were made available to all members
of the Supervisory Beard n good time prior
to the meeting of the Audit Commuttee on
February 19, 2015 and the Supervisory
Board’s annual accounts meeting on Febru-
ary 24, 2015 The audit report and the main
pomnts of the audit were explamed n detail
by the auditors Followmng thorough discus-
sion the Supervisory Board approved the
audit 1esult of BDO and endorsed 1t following
a detailed review of the separate and the con-
sohdated financial stateinents and the conso-
hdated management report The separate and
the consclidated financial statements prepa-
red by the Management Board were endorsed
by the Supervisory Board The financial state-
ments have thus been approved The Super-
visory Board concurred with the Management
Board’s p1oposal to use the distributable pro-
fit to pay a dividend of EUR 0 40 per coinmon
share and of EUR 0 45 per preferred share

The auditors also reviewed the Ma-
nagement Board’s report on related paity
transactions and 1ssued the following opimon

“Based on our audit in accordance with
our professional duties and judgement, we
confirm that

1 the factual statements in the report are
correct,

2 and that the consideration paid by the
company for the legal transactions listed n
the 1eport was not unduly high "

The report on related party transactions and
the audit report were unmediately submitted
to the Supervisory Board, which concurred
with the result of the audit following a
thorough review for completeness and accu-
racy No objections were raised against the
Management Board's related party disclo-
sres

The Supervisory Board thanks the
Management Board and all employees for
their successful work and their great personal
comnutment 1n the past fiscal year

Herford, February 24, 2015

The Supervisuy Board
Prol Dr Carl-Hewns Heuer
Chairman of the Supervisory Boaid
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Corporate Bodies

MANAGEMENT BOARD

|

\\

|

Dr Stella A Ahlers
Feusisberg, Chairwoman

Jan Higer
Heidelberg, since May 1, 2014

Dr Karsten Kolsch
Herford




SUPERVISORY BOARD

Prof Dr Carl-Hemz Heuer
Chairman

Attorney

Konigstein

Prof. Dr. Julia von Ah
Deputy Chairwoman
Taex advisor
Feusisherg

Hewdrun Baumgart
Employee representative
Administrative assistant
Bielefeld

Roswitha Galle
Employee representative
Admimistrative assistant
Spenge

Prof Dr Ulrich von Jewmsen
Attorney
Hanover

Bernd A Rauch
Advertising merchant
Bad Homburg

SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Prof Dr Julia von Ah
Chairwoman

Piof Dr Carl-Heinz Heuet

P1of. Dr Ulrich von Jeinsen

MARKETING COMMITTEE

Bernd A Rauch
Chawrman

Prof Dr Juha von Ah

Prof Dr Carl-Hemz Heuer

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Dr Carl-Hewmnz Heuer
Chairman

Prof. Dr Uhich von Jeinsen

Bernd A. Rauch

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

Prof. Dr Carl-Heinz Heuer
Chairman

Prof Dr Julia von Ah

Prof D1 Ulrich von Jemsen

Prof Dr Carl-Heinz Heuer
Chawman of the
Supervisory Board
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The Share

Moderatie upward trend in the stock
markets in 2013/14

After the bearish phase during the finan-
cial and economic crisis of 2008, the po-
sitive trend in the German stock markets
remaimed ntact between December 2013
and November 2014 albeit with increasing
volatility and less dynamic compared to
the previous period Whereas the domestic
companies had mostly reported growing
sales and earningsn the previous years, the
past twelve months were characterised by
an 1nconsistent, niore sideways trend But
the stock matket rally was probably mostly
attributable to the fact that investors shafted
substantial funds mto equities as low mte-
rest rates made fixed-income securities 1n-
creasingly unattractive Between December

2013 and November 2014, the DAX gained
6 percent, with the MDAX chmbing by as
much as 4 percent and the SDAX gammg
3 percent

Ahlers share prices remained stable

The Ahlers shares moderately underper-
formed the above indices The value of the
common shares including dividend ncrea-
sed by 2 4 petcent hetween the reporting
dates (-1 6 percent excluding dividend),
while the preferred shares lost a modera-
te 1 2 percent (-5 4 percent excluding divi-
dend) The company’s market capitalisation
declned from EUR 159 million te EUR
153 million (-3 3 percent) 1 the 1eporting
period

Performance of Ahlers shares compared to the DAX

190
M Ahlers common share

180 M Ahlers preferred share
170 J DAX
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Good dividend yields for the Ahlers shares
Because of the consistent dividend pohicy,
our shares are less volatile than most other
shares Ihus 1s reflected both over a short
analysis period and 1n the five-year chart
In view of the sohd financial situa-
tion and the more or less stable result ex-
pected for next year, the Management
Board and the Supervisory Board will pro-
pose to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
that dividends of EUR 0 40 and ot EUR 0 45
be paid out per common share and per pre-
ferred share respectively (previous year

Summary of basic information on the share

EUR 045 and EUR 0 50, respectively) A
total amount of EUR 5 78 nulhon s to he
dishursed This 15 equivalent to a payout
ratio of 100 percent of the consolidated net
meome for the year 2013/14 that 1s atiri-
butable to the shareholders of Ahlers AG
The dividend payments thus represent a di-
vidend yield of 3 6 percent and 4 0 percent
for the common share and for the preferred
share, respectively, based on the November
2014 share price

201314 2012113

Share price in EUR (Nov 30}
Common shares o onxs "1_1_512
Preferred shares I
Share price in EUR
Common shares

High L R 1220 1200

low 1025 1010
Preferred shares

High . 1249 1190

Low L ts 9w
Market capitahisation in EUR million (Nov 30) . ws 1586
Earnings per share in EUR
Common shares - . o 03
Preferredshares . o L L 04t
Price/earnings ratio (Nov 30)
Common shares ~ o ) o I A 3
Preferred shares i L L 25 29
Dvidend in EUR milhion
nominal o L i . 578 6 46
Dnnde-nd per sha;eﬁ‘w
Common shares e 040 _ 045
Prefeedshares oo_s o 0
Dwvidend yietd i % (Nov 30}
Commonshares . o oo %8 39
Preferred shares 40 47

2013/14 dwidend propossl

[<3]
—
©
=
v
a
JE
—




Investor Relations
The Ahlers management 1egularly provides
both the shareholders and all other partics
mterested m Ahlers with comprehensive
and up-to-date corporate information that
goes beyond legal requirements

Our Internet stte at www ahlers-ag
com contains numercus reports on the
company, 1ts product Iines, 1ts earnings and
financial position as well as capital market-
related toptes surrounding the Ahlers
share Annual and guarterly reports, legaily
required ad-hoc releases information on
the Angqual Shareholders’ Meeting as well
as current press 1eports and company pre-
sentations are pubhshed mn German and
Enghsh on this site

Qur Annual Shareholders” Meeting
on May 6, 2014 was again attended by nu-
merous shareholders We 1egularly hold de-

Total number of shares

taded talks with institutional investors and
analysts to intorm them of the current busi-
ness situation as well as our expectations,
strategies and news Every yedar, we hold
two analysts conferences to present the
Group’s figures and outlme the company's
performance Moteover, we regularly attend
the German Equity Forum in Frankfurt We
also attend selected investor conferences to
present our company and 1ts shares

Basic information

On November 30, 2014, the share capital of
Ahlais AG i an amount of EUR 43 2 mullion
comprised 13,681,520 no-par shares and
had not changed compared to the previous
year These consist of 7,000,314 common
shares (including, as before, 500 registe-
red shares with' transfer 1estrictions) and
6,081,206 preferred shares

Common shares Preferred shares

as of Nov 30, 2014
as of Nc_w 39, 2013 ~
Security c_od?, Qur_n_bgr o

International Secunties ldentification
Numnber {ISIN)

13681520 7600314 6081206
13681 520 7600314 6,081,206
o 500970 500973

___ DEDOOS009708 DEG0D5009732




Shareholder structure
Long-standing major shareholder Jan A
Ahlers, who served as CFO and Vice Chawr-
man of the Supervisory Board for several de-
cades, passed away on December 31, 2013
The shares directly and indirectly owned by
Jan A Ahlers were inherited by his daugh-
ter, CEQ Dr Stella A Abhlers Jan A Ahlers
creased lis shareholding by 2,300 common
shares and 1,200 preferred shares in Decem-
ber 2013 No other changes occurred with re-
spect of the shares held by the Ahlers family
No other member of the Management Board
or Superwvisory Board traded i shares of
Ahlers AG n the past fiscal year

As of the balance sheot date, WTW-
Beteihgungsgesellschaft mbH held 76 3 per-
cent of the common shares of Ahlers AG as
well as 20 7 percent of the preferred sha-
res The legacy Jan A Ahlers held 0 3 per-
cent of the common shares, with additionally
owning 0 1 percent of the preferred shares
Since Dec 31, 2013, Adolf Ahlers Familien-
stftung n Spewher (CH) 1s the managing
general pariner of Westfalisches Textilwerk
Adolf Ahlers Stiftung & Co KG Dr Stella A
Ahlers 15 the authorised representative of
Adelt Ahlers Familienstiftung Apart from
Dr Ahlers, no other Board member owned
shares 1n the company on the reporting date

As of November 30, 2014, Ahlers AG
held no own shares 23 4 percent of the com-
mon shares were widely held and 79 2 por-
cent of the preferred shares were in frec float

Shareholder structure
{as of November 30, 2014)

COMMON SHARES PREFERRED SHARES
234%
03%
792%
76 3%
01%
207%

B Free Float

W Legacy Jan A Ahlers

B WTW-Betelligungs-
gesellschaft mbH
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Corporate Governance Report

The German Corporate Governance Code de-
fines important legal provisions for the ma-
nagement and supervision of German hsted
companies and contains nationally and n-
ternationally accepted standards of good and
responsible corporate governance [he Ma-
nagement Board and the Supervisory Board
of Ahlers AG base their work on these princip-
les m order to estabhish and mamtain share-
hoelders’, employees’ and customers’ trust in
the sustainable development of the company
through transparent and snderstandable ac-
tivities as well as proper accounting

On the following pages, the Manage-
ment Board reports - also 1n the name of the
Supervisory Board —on corporate governance
at Ahlers AG Tlus report includes, as part of
the management report, the corporate gover-
nance statement pursuant to section 298a
of the German Commeraal Code (HGB) and
the compensation report pursuant to clauses
4 25 of the German Corporate Governance
Code on the compensation of the Manage-
ment Board and the Supervisory Board

Corporate governance statement
Declaration of conformity with the German
Corporate Governance Code pursuant to
section 161 AklG
Ahlers AG complies with most of the recom-
mendations of the German Corporate Gover-
nance Code as amended on June 24, 2014
Due to specific features Ahlers AG did not
comply with all of the recommendations
The Managemcent Board and the Supervisory
Board jointly 1ssued the declaration of confor-
mity pursuant to scction 161 of the German
Stock Corporation Act (AktG) on December 3,
2014 This declaration 1s permanently availa-
ble to all interested parties on the company’s
website at www ahlers-ag com The declarati-
on of conformity reads as follows

“Ahlers AG has comphed with the re-
commendations of the German Corporate
Governance Code as amended on May 13,
2013 and June 24, 2014, respechively, since
its last declaration of conformity dated De-
cember 3, 2013 with the exceptions noted

theremn In the future, Ahlers AG will comply
with the recommendations of the German
Corporate Governance Code as last amended
on June 24, 2014, with the exception of the
following recommendations

3.8 D&O0 insurance without deductible
for members of the Supervisory Board
Ahlers AG has taken out adequate msurance
for its directors and ofhcers to cover the D&0
risk The Management Board and Supervi-
sory Board members of Ahlers AG perform
thewr functions m a responsible manner and
m the interest of the company A significant
deductible which would have to be the same
for all Supervisory Board members to com-
ply with the prmeiple of equalty, would have
very different impacts on the individual mem-
bers depending on their private income and
wealth situation In case of an emergency, a
less wealthy member could get mto serious
financial difficulties, which would not be fair
m view of the fact that all members have the
same duties

5 1 2 Age hmit for members of the Manage-
ment Board

541 Age lunii for members of the Super-
visoiy Boaid ‘

Ahlers AG has not defined age linnts for the
members of the Management Board and the
Supervisory Board, as the membership of the-
s¢ two bodies 15 based on gualfications and
performance, which cannot be assessed using
standardised age lnmts

54 6 Compensation for commitiee mem-
bership and individualised reporting of the
compensation for members of the Supervi-
sory Board

According to the statutes of Ahlers AG, how-
ever, compensation 1s still paid only to the
chairs of Supervisory Board commiitees
but not to simpie members of such commit-
tees The company 15 of the opmion that this
funcuon 1s covered by the general compensa-
tton of the Supervisory Board members




Ahlers AG does not report the compen-
sation of the Supervisory Board individually
The compensation of the Supervisory Board
comprises fixed and variable components,
which are published The Management Board
and the Supervisory Bodrd of Ahlers AG are
of the opimon that this information 1s suffici-
ent to assess whether the compensation of the
Supervisory Board as a whole, as well as 1ts
components, are appropriate In addition, the
compensabons paid by the company to the
members of the Supervisory Board for perso-
nal aclhevements that are not related to thewr
work on the Supervisory Board are shown se-
parately and individually

7 1 2 Publication dates (consolidated finan-
c1al statements)

For orgamsational reasons, Ahlers AG does
currently not make the consolidated financial
statements publicly available within 90 days
from the end of the fiscal year The consoh-
dated financial statements are published no
later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal
year

Ahlers AG
Herford, December 3, 2014

The Management Board
The Supervisory Board”

Information on corporate governance
practice

Ahlers AG attaches great importance to good
corporate governance, which s primanly
based on the provisions of the German Stock
Corporation Act and the German Corporate
Governance Code The Supervisory Board
and the Management Board are committed to
managmg and controlhing the company in a
responsible manner with the aim of creating
sustamable value This also mcludes the ef-
fecuive and forward-locking management of
11sks (also see information on risk manage-
ment in the Combined Management Report)
The Management Board and the Supervisory
Board have comnutted themselves to com-
plying with legal provisions and observing
the recommmendations of the German Cor-

porate Governance Code m accordance with
the annual declaration of conformity Internal
controlling, reporting and compliance struc-
tures arc reviewed, refined and adjusted to
changing conditions on an ongoing basis The
company's value statement, which 1s binding
for all members of the company, ensures that
the comphance and corporate governance
policies are firmly anchored throughout the
Group In the fiscal year 2013/14 the com-
phance structures were examined for reaso-
nabiity and completeness The comphance
system of the company was found to be well
orgamsed As a resulf of this process a com-
phance officer was nommated Furthermore
1t has been decided to review the statement
of principles and core values and to publish
1t online

Work of the Management Board and the
Supervisory Board
As a listed joint stock company under German
law, Ahlers AG has a dual board structure
which consists of a Management Board and
4 Supervisory Board The Management Board
15 responsible for managing the company and
the Group, while the Supervisory Board 1s
responsible for supervising the Management
Board

The Management Boatd of Ahlers AG
15 solely responsible for managmng the com-
pany and controling the Group entities The
management task, which comprises, i par-
ticular, the defimtion of the company’s objec-
fives, the strategic posrtioning of the Group
and 1ts management and supervision as well
as corporate planmng and financing, is per-
formed by the Management Board as a collec-
tive body The members of the Management
Board therefore have jomt responsibility for
the complete management process Irrespec-
tive of this overall responsibility, the mem-
hers of the Management Board have specific
responsibility for the departments assigned to
them m the rules of procedure of the Manage-
ment Board Cooperatton within the Manage-
ment Board 1s also governed by these rules of
procedure

The Supeivisory Boaid appoints,
supervises and adwvises the Management

Board and defines the disclosure and
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1eporting duties The approval of the Supervi-
sory Board 18 requured for defined measures
of fundamental tmportance for the company
or the Group such as material investments
and legal transactions The Supervisory
Board has adopted its own rules of procedu-
r¢ The Chawrman of the Supervisory Board
coordinates the work on the Supervisory
Beard, leads 1ts meetings and represents the
body’s mterests externally A summary of the
type and scope of the Supervisory Board ac-
tivity 1n the fiscal year 2013/14 1s mcluded in
the report of the Supervisory Board

Annual Shareholders’ Mecting

The Annual Shareholders’ Meeting 15 the
main mmstrument allowing shareholders to
exercise thewr mghts It allows the sharehol-
ders to participate in nnportant corporate de-
asions such as amendments to the statutes,
the appropniation of profits and matenal
structural changes affecting the foundations
of the company At the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting, the shareholders elect the mem-
hers of the Supervisory Board, unless these
are clected by the workforce or appoimnted n
accordance with the rght to nonunate mem-
bers, which 15 laid down 1 the statutes, and
decides an the approval of the acts of the Ma-
nagement Board and the Supervisory Board
as well as the compensation of the Supervi-
sory Board Every sharcholder 1s entitled to
attend the Annual Sharcholders® Meeting
and to ask the Management Board and the
Supervisory Board questions Ahlers AG has
1ssued common shares with one voting right
per share as well as non-voting preferred
shares Each common share grants one vote
at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting Subject
to mandatory legal provisions, the preferred
shares do not grant a voting right Pursuant
to sectton 25 of the statutes of Ahlers AG,
the preferred shares entitle thewr holders to
a preferred dividend Regular information 1s
provided on the company’s website at www
altlers-ag com, giving shareholders an 1dea of
the current situation of the company Pnor to
the Annual Shareholders’ Mecting, the agen-
da and all other requisite documents are sent
to the shareholders in good time aud/or pu-

blished on the company’s wehsite Sharehol-
ders may have therr voting right exercised by
a proxy of thewr own choice To facihtate the
voting process for shareholders, Ahlers AG
also provides representativas who are bound
by mmstructions and cieruse the voting right
at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting After
the Annual Sharcholders’ Meeting, sharehol-
ders ¢an find the voting results as well as the
speech of the CEO on the company s wehsite
Cooperation between the Management
Board and the Supervisory Board

The past fiscal year agam saw the Manage-
ment Board and the Supervisory Board co-
operate very closely The Management Board
provides the Supervisory Board with umely
and comprehensive information about all
1elevant aspects relating to corporate plan-
ning and budgeting, the current business
performance, the risk situation, risk manage-
ment and compliance Potential dewiations
of the business trend from the original plans
are explamed by the Management Board
The strategic posiioning of the company 1s
agreed between the Management Board and
the Supervisory Board Transactions of fun-
damental unportance require the consent
of the Supervisory Board Besides the regu-
lar information provided, the Management
Board and the Supervisory Board constantly
exchange information on the situation of the
company Their relationship 1s characterised
by openness and trust 'his way, the Supervi-
sory Board can assist the Management Board
with advice and recommendations on the ba-
s15 of sound mfermation All six Supervisory
Board meetings 1n the fiscal year 2013/14
were attended hy the Management Boaird
Meetings of the Human Resources Committee
addiessing amendments to the Management
Board contracts were not attended by mem-
bers of the Management Board

Management Board

Effective May 1, 2014, an additional member
was appointted to the Management Board of
Ahlers AG which now compiises three mstead
of two members Dt Stella A Ahleis (CEO) 15
responsthle for Tradematks, Sates. Marke-




ting, Comphance and Auditing Jan Higer.
the new member of the Management Boaid,
1s 10 charge of Procurement, Logistics and
Foreign Facilities He took over these tasks
from Dr Karsten Kolsch (CFO} who 1s now m
charge of Finance, IT and Human Resources
A comphance officer reporting directly to the
CFO has been appownted by the Management
Board with the consent of the Superviso-
1y Board Prior to thus, Dr Kelsch served as
the company's comphance officer The three
members of the Management Board manage
the company under therr own responsihihity
and are exclusively committed to the mterests
of the company Potential contlicts of interest
must immediately be disclosed to the Super-
visory Board, which was not necessary i the
past fiscal year The Supervisory Board’s con-
sent 1s to be obtained where a member of the
Management Board mtends to serve on the
Supervisory Board of another company No
such secondary board memberslips exist at
this time

Supervisory Board
Pursuant to the statutes, the Supervisory
Board of Ahlers AG 1s composed of six mem-
bers, two of whom are elected by the work-
force The Supervisory Board remamed
unchanged wmn the fiscal year 2013/14 On
December 1, 2012, the holder of the regis-
tered shares as defined 1n section 5 pata 1
of the statutes of Ahlers AG, Westfalisches
Texulwerk Adolf Ahlers Stiftung & Co KG,
appointed Bernd A Rauch new membei of
the Supervisory Board m «ccordance with
section 6 para 2 of the statutes

The Supervisory Board shall form
competent committees on the basis of the
company's specific situation, meludmg an
Audit Committee, which may not be chared
by the Chairman of the Supervisory Board
For details of the comnuttecs formed by the
Supervisory Board of Ahlers AG and their
composition, refer to page 11 1n the chapter
entitled “Corporate Bodies” Prof Dr Juha
von Ah acts as an independent financial ex-
pert as defined 1n section 100 para 5 of the
German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) and
also chairs the Audit Comnuttee

In December 2012, the Supervisory
Board last modified and re-endorsed the ob-
jectives for the composition of the Superviso-
ry Board The full wording of the objectives
that have since been mn place 1s shown below

‘Ohjectives for the composition of the Super-
visory Board of Ahlers AG

Agamst the background of

¢ 1ts size (s1ix members mcluding four share-
holder representatives and two employee
representatives),

« the business segment in whach the com-
pany operates,

» the size and structure of the company,

s the scope of the company’s international
activity as well as

+ the company’s stock market histing and

» 1ts current shareholder structure

the Supervisory Board of Ahlers AG decided,
on December 9, 2010, to aun for the following
ohjectives regarding its composition

(1) The members of the Supervisory Board
should collectively possess the knowledge,
skills and experience 1equired for the proper
fulfilment of thewr tasks The individual know-
ledge, skills and experience of each mdividual
member of the Supervisoly Board shall com-
plement each other n such a way that suffi-
clent special expertise 1s available at all times
for the work of the Supervisory Board and
for each materal division of the company in
order to permanently ensure the professional
and efficient supervision, advice and support
of the Management Board

(2) The Supervisory Board should have at
least one member that 1s independent as de-
fined m section 100 para 5 of the German
Stock Corporation Act (AktG) and has ex-
pert knowledge 1 the fields of accounting or
annual audit

{3) The Supervisory Board shall have at least
one other member that 1s ndependent as de-
fined m clause 5 4 2 sentence 2 of the German
Corporate Governance Code (DCGK), 1 ¢ that
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has no professional or personal relationship
with the company, 1ts bodies, a controlling
shareholder or a company related to the lat-
ter which couid give rise to a materal, non-
temporary conflict of interests The Supervi-
sory Board 1s of the opimmion that employee
representatives should not be deemed to be
dependent per sc¢ but that the urcumstances
of each individual case are relevant

(4) The Supervisory Board shall have no
member that sits on one of the organs or per-
forms an advisory function at a major compe-
titor of the company or the Group

(5) No more than two former members of the
Management Board shall sit on the Supervi-
sory Boaid

(6) The Supervisory Board shall normalty
comprise at least one member that has spe-
cral expertise with regard to the company's
mternational actavities

{7) The Supervisory Board shall normally
comprise at least two female membet s, molu-
ding at least one shareholder representative

(8) Candidates proposed for clection to the
Supervisory Board shall normally be younger
than 70 years

(9) When preparing and adopting nomina-
tions for election to the Supervisery Board
to the Annual Shareholders’ Mceeting, the
Supervisory Board will act to the best of the
company's wterests The ghjectives defined
under (6) to (8) above are therefore subject
to the conditton that the cohjectives (1) to (5}
must be ensured at all tmes and that com-
petent candidates for the Supervisory Board
office are available at the time they are nee-
ded Objective (7) shall be met in the medium
term, 1 ¢ there should be two female mem-
bers within the next three years

{10) The Superwisory Board will review these
objectives regularly and will pubhsh 1ts objec-
tives and their implementaton 1n the annual
Corporate Governance Report "

The Supervisory Board
considers the objectives defined under (13 to
(8) to be fuifilled The objectives defined un-
der (9) and (10) are taken wnto consideration
4s required on the 1espective occasions

No material conflicts of interest requi-
ring disclesure to the Annual Shateholders’
Meeting occurred m the past fiscal year Please
refer to the detads in the Supervisory Board
and compensation report In accordance with
the principles of the DSW, the Supervisory
Board reviews 1its efficiency once a year Fou
this putpose, a survey was agam carried out
and 1ts results discussed by the Superwisory
Board v the fiscal year 2013/14 Any msights
gained form an integral element of the work
of the Supetvisory Board

currently



Directors’ dealings and shareholdings
of the Management Board and the Super-
visory Board
Pursuant to sectton 15a of the German Sccu-
rittes Trading Act (WpHG), directors of the
company must disclose the acquusition or sale
of shares in Ahlers AG or related financial
mstruments 1f they amount to at least EUR
5,000 1n a calendar year No reportable direc-
tors’ dealings took place mn the past fiscal year
2013/14 The development of the shares held
by the Ahlers fanuly 1s described 1n detail on
page 15 1n the chapter entitled “The Share”
Members of the Management Board
and the Supervisory Board directly or indi-
rectly held more than one percent of the emit-
ted shares or related financial mstruments as
of November 30, 2014 Details are shown
the chapter entitled “Other disclosures”

Transparency

Ahlers AG anms to provide all shareholders
and mvestors with timely information on an
equal trcatment basis All relevant mforma-
tion 15 therefore announced concurrently n
German and Enghsh All relevant publica-
tions such as annual and quarterly reports,
ad ho¢ and press 1cleases as well as company
presentations are published on the company’s
website at www ahlers-ag com The finanual
calendar, which 15 also posted on this website
shows the regular publication dates as well
as upcomuing capital market events Directors’
dealings, which must be announced in a tume-
ly manner pursuant to section 15a of the Ger-
man Securities Trading Act (WpHG), are also
reported on the company'’s wehsite

Reporting and audit of the annual financial
stalements

The consohdated financial statements and
the mterim reports of Ahlers AG are based on
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) The separate financial statements of
Ahlers AG are prepared in accordance with
the German Commercial Code (HGB) and the
German Stock Corperation Act {(AktG) The
annual financial statements are prepared by
the Management Board and audited by the
Supervisory Board, just like the quarteily and
half-year teports The Supervisory Board pro-
poses the auditor, who 1s elected by the Annual
Shareholders” Meeting BDO AG Wirtschafts-
prufungsgeselischaft, were again appownted
auditors for the fiscal year 2013/14 by the
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting The auditors
had previously declared their impartiality to
the Supervisory Board The Audit Committee
of the Supervisory Board commissioned the
auditors and defined the mawmn aspects of the
audit as well as the auditor’s fee

Compensation report

The compensation repoit 1s contamed 1n the
combined management report for Ahlers AG
and 15 shown on page 60 et seq under “Com-
pensation report”
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Combined Management Report

for the fiscal year 2013/14

GENERAL INFORMATION
ABOUT THE GROUP

BUSINESS MODEL

Group structure and organisation
Headguartered 1n  lerford, Germany,
Ahlers AG 1s the parent company of the Ahlers
Group, which currently comprises 37 (previ-
ous year 39) mdependent companies Lkach
of the Group’s brands 1s erganised in a spegi-
fic company In additton the Group maintains
wholly-owned distribution companies mn the
most important foreign markets At present,
we have own distribution compames in 15
countries Ahlers operates two production
facihties in Poland and Sri Lanka A list of the
subsidiaries of the Ahlers Group can be found
on page 80 “Shareholdings”

The tax-related Mutual Agreement
Procedure between the Federal Republic of
Germany and Poland was nol scttled 1n the
past fiscal year, which means that the plan-
ned lhiquidation of the Polish manufacturing
company, Romeo Spolkaz oo 1 L, 15 yet to
be completed To further sunplfy the group
structiie, the Austrian companies Ahlers
Ausira Vertriehs Gesm b H and Texart Ver-
waltungsgesellschaft mb H were merged
mto Pronter Jeans & Casual GmbH 1n the fis-
cal year 2013/14 The latter was subsequent-
ly renamed Ahlers Austria GmbH

23

Ahlers 15 crgamsed in the form of a
function matrix Each Managing Director of
a brand 1s responsible for the product deve-
lopment and distributton activities of his/her
company Central tashs such as 1T, accoun-
ting, production, logistics, marketing, control-
hng/legal and mternational sales are based in
the holding company and m Ahlers Zential-
verwaltung GmbH The central departments
support the individual companies with their
comprehensive knowledge and help to leve-
rage synergies within the Group The retal
and outlet management activities ncluding
the German multi-label stores are pooled 1nto
a single entity, Ahlers Retail GmbH Branded
outlets and stores are managed by the respec-
tive brand companies

Group profile

The Ahlers Group's cight fashion brands
offer customised collections of high qua-
Ity for different taiget gioups and price
segments Based on therr general fashion
statement, the brands are divided into
three segments Premum Brands, Jeans
& Workwear and Men’s & Sportswear
(sce following pages)
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Premiwm Brands

Baldessarim

“Baldessarin: scparates the men from the
boys * Baldessarim 1s a Men's tashion hrand
1n the upper prenuum segment The collec-
tions are made for men who dress mascuh-
ne, self-confident and styish Estabhshed by
Werner Baldessarini in 1993, the brand has
formed part of Ahlers AG since 2006 It s
avalable in promium retail siores as well asin
own Baldessarim steres in Germany, Furope
as well as the Middle East In addition, there
15 an online shop at www baldessari com

23
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Premium Brands

Pierre Cardin

Pierre Cardim 1s one of the best-known brands
in the world Pierre Cardin fashion 15 made
for men and women who want to look thetr
best 1 their private and professional hves
and attach rmportance to a perfect it Pierre
Cardin relies on clear brand management
and well-matched collections denun, swits,
jackets, shirts and knitwear as well as sports-
wear mcluding jackets and coats, complemen-
ted by dermim, shirts and kmtwear for women
Pierre Cardin products have been produced
by Ahlers under hcense since 1992 and are
avattable from leading Ewopean retailers

26




¥ W
I
Noded iy -
ML T
< e
II.L....’-F -f

)
<
-
Z.
<
s
=
—
Z
5
=
25
o
o
<7
A
o
<

LA COLLECTION




Premiwn Brands

Otto Kern

Otto Kern 15 a lifestyle brand, which 1s
positioned 1 the premiun segment [t offers
high-quality fashion for every occasion and
stylish accessories with a touch of extrava-
gance The brand was taken over by Ahlers
AG 1 2000 The range of fashion products 15
rounded off by various licenses such as fra-
grances and bags Enjoying a very high hrand
awarcness, Otto Kernis one of the best-known
German fashton brands The products are
also avatlable 1n the brand’s onhne shop at
www ottokern de

28







Jeans & Workwear

Pioneer Authenltic Jeans

“Be a Pionee1” Establhished in 1977, Pioneer
Authentic Jeans was one of the first labels of-
fering comfoitable and wearable demm for
all occasions for a broad target group The
denun brand stands for authentic products
for men and wemen who love jeans for their
tobustness, their comfort and their casual-
ness All the collechions are swtable for dif-
ferent generations and oceasions Morcover,
Pioneer offers a complete outfit program
compnsing jackets, shirts, sweatshirts and
polo shirts Four coliections and ten delvery
dates per year mean that Pioneer Authentic
Jeans regularly translates the very latest
demim trends mto mat ketable products

a0
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Jeans & Workwear

Pionier Jeans & Casuals

Fashion for men of cahbre The casual
trousers from Pionmer Jeans & Casuals are
designed for absolutely every fit Men aged
40+ wear Promier trousers hecdause they hke
te be dressed 1n a sporty and trendy style -
casual, but cultivated The trousers specialist
primarily caters to individual demands made
on the fit of the comfortable leisure trousers
made frem denim and flat-weave fabric and
enjoys an excellent reputation for the proces-
sing of stretch matenals
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Jeans & Workwear

Pionier Workwea

Pionier Workwear has made workwear for
professionals for over 75 years The well-esta-
blished brand offers workwear and corporate
fashion for the skiiled and industrial trades
as well as far the services sector he funchio-
nal and intelhgent high-quahty products aie
matched to the respective working conditions
and standards Cuts and fits meet the speci-
fic requirements of the different professions
Piomer Workwear guarantees a consistent-
ly high quahty standard for 1ts workwear
and 15 certified to DIN EN IS0 9001 Pionier
Workwear products are availlahle from spe-
vialst workwear retailers m Germany and
Europe as well as onhine m1ts own e-shop at
www ptotel-wotkwedr com
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Men's & Sportswear

Gin Tonic

Gin Tomic stands for a casual hfestyle The
label launches ten monthly programs per
year, which consist of polo shirts, shirts, knit-
wear, sweatshirts, T-shirts, jackets and shorts
m a masculine, active and sporty style Gin
Tomic was taken over by Ahlers AG m 1999
Retailers and end consumers can rely on the
excellent fit of ail the products mn the Gin To-
nic collections Washed cotton fabrics appear
authentic and masculine, strong colours for
tops undet line the trendy impression
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Men's & Sportswear

Jupiter

The products from sportswear specialist
Jupiter combine design and functionahity
Jupiter produces high-quality sportswear for
the upper mid-market The outdoor label 1s
targeted at fashion-conscious men wearing
4 sporty and grownup look Jupliter attaches
great umportance to a perfect fit for maxi-
mum comfort, the competent use of matenals
and high-quality workmanship Functional
jackets with specral wearing properties and
characteristic colour combinations are a
speclal strength of the brand Established m
France in 1958, the brand was added to the
Ahlers portfolio in 1987
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OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY

Sohd, sustainable and profitable growth is the
ohjective for the medim-term development
of our company The following strategic mea-
sures are designed to help aclueve this goal

Growth driven by the Pierre Cardin and
Baldessarmi premium brands
Ahlers continuously increased the revenues
of its Premium segment over the past five
years As a result, the company today genera-
tes two thirds of 1ts revenues in this attractive
segment of the fashion market We mtend
to drive domestic and international growth
through our Baldessarini and Pierre Cardin
core hrands In addiion to these premium
brands, we also want to develop our Pioneer
biand frem a demim specialist mmto a full-
range brand including tops This growth 1s
to be achieved primarily i conmjunction with
specialist retailers but will also be supported
by the further development of our own re-
tail network The strong growth expected m
e-commerce will heighten the strategic
mmportance of this sales channel

We also plan to step up our licensing
actwities in order to expand the product spec-
trum of our brands and their brand power

Growth in conjunction with

specialist retailers '
Stationary specialist retailers will remain the
most unportant sales channel for menswear
Revenue growth 15 to be generated through
sales 1 branded shop-in-shop spaces which
also have special significance 1n terms of gai-
ning optimum and exposure At the same
time, we continue to develop and improve our
internal restocking and visual merchandising
processes for these branded retall spaces

Growth through cur own retail business
Ahlers uses threc retail concepts for the
further development of its own retall activi-
ties The first of these concepts offers the Ah-
lers brands 1n 2 multi-brand set-up

(1) Elsbach Denim Library
This multi-brand concept n the style of a
British library 15 to be used in Western and

40

Eastern Burope The suffix "Demum Library”
relers to Ahlers’ extensive offering 1n the
trousers segment [hese are complemented
by shirts, kmitwear and outdoor wear Each
Elsbach Denun Library store has a size of
approximately 150 square metres The
quotas for the mdividual brands are adjusted
to the speaific conditions of each site

The followmg two retat concepts are mono-
brand stores for our Plerre Cardin and
Baldessarint premium brands

(2) Pierre Cardin Stores

The success of this mono-brand retail format
currently comprising approximately 125 pre-
dommnantly Eastern European stores 15 to be
continued using the Appartement Frangais
concept 1n ncreasingly company-managed
stores

(3) Baldessarim Siores

20 of these stores are operated by local part-
ners and curselves m Eastern Europe with
increasing trend The Munich test store has
shown good results and we mtend to expand
this concept in Jarge Western European cities
over the medium term

Growth of the e-commerce activities

A dedicated e-commerce department was
set up m 2013 to manage this fast-growmg
busmess We intend to expand our business in
this mcreasingly nnportant and fast g owing
sales channel for clothing through our own
branded e-shops (Baldessarm, Otto Kern and
Pionmer Workwear) as well as by trading on
electh onic marketplaces

Increasing the export share

With nternational sales revenues alrea-
dy accounting for as much as 45 percent of
total sales revenues, Ahlers 15 already a
successful European player By systematically
expanding the local sales orgamsations, we
aim to further mcrease our sales revenues in
Europe In doing so we wll grow our busi-
ness with retailers but also cur own stores
Outside Europe, e g n Clhina and the Middle
East, we ann to grow our Baldessarini brand
1n the medium term
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Cost leadership in procurement

and logistic processes

The optimisation of procurerment and logistics
15 an ongomg chalienge to the clothing sector
The Ahlers Group constantly aims to choose
the hest supplers and the most favouable
logstic processes with the objective of optimi-
sing our quality, rellability and procurement
costs We constantly review existing and new
locations and supphers with a view to ensu-
ring a reliable, cost-efficient manutacturing
organisation that meets our quality and soctal
standards Comphance with social standards
1s always a preconditwon for signing up sup-
phers

Breakdown of production by regions
(previous year)

" 2013/14
1 201213
? 201112
| !
f
l | 1 ‘:
| | ! . i
. !
Other EU Sn Lanka China/HKG  Other Poland
tountnes/ Far East
Near East
Other EU countnes/ Near East 371%  (374%)
Sni Lanka 245% (23 8%)
China/HKG 134% {13 5%}
Other Far East 142% {14 0%)
Poland 108% {11 3%)

Capacity to make acquisitions

The Ahlers strategy also includes the opti-
on of an acquisition to suppert our growth
Qur preferred takeover candidate would be
a medium-sized, internationally marketable
menswear brand i the premuum segment
A retail chain into which we could integrate
our products within the thiee defined retail
concepts would be another mteresting option

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Social standards in the procurement process
Ahlers AG and 1its brands are fully aware
of their socal responsibility and attach the

4

greatest timportance to ethical behaviour Our
companies therefore comply with mternati-
onal socal accountability standards, which
are defined in a Code of Conduct The prin-
ciples and standards laid down 1n tlus Code
of Conduct are based on the agreements and
standards of the international Labour Orgam-
sation (ILQ), the UN Unmiversal Declaration on
Human Rights and the UN Declaration of the
Rights of the Cinld

The products of Ahlers AG are pn-
marly manufactured m Eastern Europe
and Asia For several decades, the compa-
ny has operated two production facihties in
Poland and Sn1 Lanka A major portion of the
company’s products m the trousers segment
15 produced n 1ts own production plants This
not only ensures maximum transparency for
a major part of its output but also allows the
company to constantly enhance its expertise
and i1ts hugh quality standards The company’s
own plants meet all requirements of the socal
comphance standards During the year 2014,
our Sr1 Lankan production facihty underwent
a complex and detailed audit process conduc-
ted by the WRAP (= Worldwide Responsible
Accredited Production) organisation which
awarded 1ts Gold Certificate 1n December
2014 The WRAP audit revolves around a set
of principles mcluding legal and social com-
phance, environmental compatibility as well
as health and safety

Ahlers also cooperates with
pendent supplers, all of whom are selected
carefully and based on strict criteria The
company focuses on long-term relationships
with all 1its supphers When choosing sup-
pliers, the company makes sure that they
are certified to BSCI or SA 8000 and present
good refeiences As the basis for coopera-
tion, every supphier must undertake to comply

inde-

with the company’s Code of Conduct as well
as with international social standaids Com-
phance with the Code of Conduct 1s checked
and documented by the Ahlers procurement
teams at least twice a year based on a defined
list of gmdelines Any changes that may be re-
quired are discussed and implemented jointly
with the factory management teams
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Non-hazardous clothing
In heeping with the high quahty standards
and expectations of the company and 1ts cus-
tomers, all products of Ahlers AG are manu-
factured on the principle that they are cthi-
cally correct and non-hazardous They meet
statutory hinnits and, wherever possible, re-
main below them All supphlers are obhged
to reframn from using hazardous materials
i the production of materials in accordance
with applicable legislation T'o ensure that this
1s done, Ahlers has defined clear standards
for 1ts business partners and obhged them to
check for themselves that these are met In
addition, the company continuously commis-
sions external, mdependent testing laborato-
ries to theck the composition of the products
and verify that they are free from hazardous
substances Ahlers jeans are treated exclusi-
vely with tested and non-hazardous agents
and manufactured using permissible produc-
tien techigues Sand-blasting, for instance,
15 not used m the production of jeans The
company has commnutted itself to increasingly
consider sustamability aspects 1n 1ts procure-
ment activities m each reporting period and
to constantly refine the systematic assess-
ment of supphers

Due to the care taken along the Ahlers
procurement chain, inegularities 1n produc-
tion are largely impossible In the event of
positive tests, precautionary measures have
been taken to ensure that product batches can
be narrowed down and localised In doing s,
the company regularly prepares for potential
production-related risks and outhnes possible
actiof scenarlos

Environmental! protection

The Ahlers Group attaches great importance
to using scarce resources spatingly and redu-
cing the burden on the envivonment Produc-
tion and logistics are the fields 1n which we
can do the most to protect the environment
The company 15 fully comnutted to using
energy sparingly, to ensuring the best possi-
ble utilisation of raw materials 1n the produe-
tion process and to avoiding waste Ahlers
uses environmentally compatible production
techniyues and ensures that natural resour-
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ces, energy and water are used efficiently Qur
own and our subcontractors’ jeans laundries
are equipped with sewage purificanon plants
for the separation of dyes This mmnumises the
level of water pollution caused by the washes

Quality management

As a manufacturer of prermium products,
Ahlers attaches special importance to excel-
lent product qualty Selected materials must
be processed carefully and 1n accordance
with their high quality This 1s why all produc-
tion processes — from planming to production
to delivery - are subjected to detailled quali-
ty controls in the context of Ahlers’ quality
management system

Logistics

As far as logistics are concerned, the centra-
lisation of warehouses and the efficient use of
cargo space help to avoid unnecessary trans-
ports Wherever possible, goods sourced from
the Far East are transported by ship n order
to avoid an adverse impact on our carbon
footprint that would arise from air ttanspoit

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Hesearch and development work 1s perfor-
med by the Product Management and Model
Departments as well as by the sample-making
workshops For every season, these depart-
ments develop new collechons which are
matched to themr target gioups The focus 15
on the design task, with the functionahty of
the garments representing an important se-
condary conditton The mdividual product
groups of the mdividual brands usually have
their own product management teams While
the Model Departinents and the sample-
making woirkshops aie usually organised by
product groups and work for several brands,
they have dedicated speciahsts for the respec-
tive brand within the orgamisation

The Product Management and Model
Departments and the sample-making work-
shops employed a total of 100 people (previ-
ous year 105} per November 30, 2014 Lx-
penses n an amourd of EUR 6,788 thousand

-



{previous year EUR 6,522 thousand) were  basis of the budgets per Group entity prepa-
incurred for these departments mn the fiscal  red by the ndividual Managing Directors to-
year 2013/14, including EUR 445 thousandin  gether with the Management Board Detailed
extraordinary expenses (previous year EUR  targets regarding defined key performance
30 thousand) Most of these expenses are and financial mdicators are set for the mdi-
personnel expenses Operating expenses pri-  vidual distribution and service companies
martly consist of advisory expenses Research — Estimates of the macroeconomic trend 1n the
and development expenses account for 26 budget year are incorporated mto these indi-
percent of sales revenues (previous year 26 vidual budgets At the beginning of each fiscal
percent) Development expenses were not ca-  year, the Management Beard submits a de-
pitalised, as the 1equirements defined 1 IAS  tailed annual Group budget for the new fiscal
38 were not fully met year to the Supervisory Board
The budget figures are controlled for
pecformance n the context of central month-
CONTROLLING SYSTEM ly reporung The Managing Directors of the
subsidiaries use a prestructured monthly
The Management Board of Ahlers AG controls  financial report to report quantitative and
the distribution and service companies of the quahtanive developments i the reporting
Group The Management Board defines the month directly to the Group management
strategy, makes important decisions together ~ The Management Board regularly meets with
with the management teams and monitors  the Managmg Directors to seek mformation
the accomphishment of objectives by the  on the market situation and to take strate-
subsidiaries gic decsions Central reporung databases
Medum-term budgets are established  facilitate the target/actual control and provi-
for the Group for a period of three fiscal years  de daily, weekly and monthly [T reports The
on a rolling basis every year The annualindi-  annual budgets are reviewed and evised
vidual budgets are planned bottom-up on the  twice a year

Key management and financial indicators

2013114 2012/13
Sales EUR mullion BN 2467
Gross margin In % ) 499 504
EBITDA __EURmilhon 168 133
EBIT EUR miliion 17 80
EBIT-Margen n % . 6 32
Net mcome EUR million 60 56
Prafit margn before taxes . m% 33 27
Prafit margin after taxes in % 23 23
Eamings per share

common shares EUR . 040 i 036

} preferred shares ~_EUR o 045 041

Net Working Capital ™ o ~ EURmihon 955 97
Return on Investment in % 32 31

before special effects
Inventories trade recesvables and trade payables

Key performance indicators include the tar-  decisions of the sales managers All segments
geted pricing margin and the actual maigin,  are controlled usmg the same performance
sales rovenues and sales growth, the cost ra-  ndicators The controliing system was not
tios, the EBIT margn as well as the average  changed matenally in the past fiscal year and
recevables ;n months The forwaird stoch  the key performance indicators were caleula-
vover plays a spewial role for the production  ted in the same way as hefore
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ECONOMIC REPORT

MACROECONOMIC AND
INDUSTRY-SPECIFIC SITUATION

Slightly improved econonnc environment
Following three years of slewdown, 2014 saw
the global economy back on the growth track,
with globai GDP g1owth accelerating from 2 8
percent m 2013 to 3 1 percent in the year
2014 (all figures in this chapter Commerz-
bank Economic Research, January 30, 2015)
In contrast to the previous yeats, this mcre-
asig momentum was not driven by China,
which saw 1ts growth weaken in 2014, but by
a slow recovery in the western industriahsed
natiens including the Umted States of Ame-
nice In 2014, the curorone emerged from
the previous years’ recession, posiing 08
percent growth {(previous year -0 4 percent),
signalling a shght expansion compared to the
contraction seen 1n the previous years Most
curozone member couniries including Ger-
many saw their economes grow A disap-
pownting performance was recorded n Italy,
which remamed 1 recession, and France,
whose economy continued to stagnate

The economic performance 1n the year
2014 was satisfactory overall, but peaked
around the middle of the year While the first
months were charactensed by optimism, the
conflict between Russia and Ukrame put a
noticeable damper on econonmic growth n
Europe On the one hand, the sanctions 1m-
posed against Russia severely hampered the
Russian economy, which saw GDP shrink
m the second half of the year On the other
hand, the crisis mmtally expected to be only
of shoit duration slowed down cconomic ac-
tivity in such export countries as Germany as
well as in destnations frequenied by Russian
tourists

Consumer spending 1s 4 function not
only of a country’'s economic performance,
but alse of the development of private n-
comes and the situation 1 the labour market
While jobless rates came down slightly in the
eurozone, they remained at a very high level

a4

n most countries except Germany and Aus-
tria In 2014, Germany was able 10 stabihse
and even shghtly reduce its unemployment
rate. which was low by eurozone standards
Private mcomes 1n Eutope are hkely to have
risen during the reporting period, driven by
collective wage agrcements, higher employ-
ment and very low price rises

Industry-specific trends

German clothing retail sector reports
declining sales
Agamnst the background of this overall posi-
five economc performance, few would have
predicted that German appatel retalers
would see their busmess shrink by 3 percent
m 2014 (source Textilwirtschaft 49-2014)
The clear growth reported by retailers for the
first quarter of 2014 was wiped out agamn in
the second qguarter Sales then plunged 1n the
second half of the year, which 1s the inore un-
portant half for this industry This was partly
due to the early onset of spring which led to
an early start of the summer season and to
the long and sunny autumn which masswvely
hampered the sale of winter clothes Footfall
i oty centres remained unsauisfactory on
the whele In addition, the absence of Rus-
sian customers was increasingly noted 1n the
major cities Notwithstanding these explana-
tions, the scope of the decline 1n sales during
the second half of the year was surprising
Similarly recessive trends for the
second half of the year were also reported
from the other European markets as weather
conditions across Europe were unfavourah-
le particularly in autumn The impact of the
Russia-Ukramne conflict was highly dispara-
te 1n Eastern Europe Clothmg sales were of
course lut hard m both countries, with the
trend m Russia being additionally aggrava-
ted by the dechne n the rouble’s exchange
rate Neighbouring markets such as the Balfic
states also reported strongly declining sales
in contrast, the Polish market continued to
grow, hardly responding to the ciuisis at all



BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
Fiscal year 2013/14 - Highlights

- Consolidated sales up 4 2 percent, bucking the dechmng market trend

- Premium brands remain strong, with sales growing by 5 4 percent

- EBIT before spetal effects 46 percent up on previous year

- High speual effects resulting primanly from closure of operations in Sindelfingen

- Consohdated net income after taxes § percent higher despite high extraordinary expenses
- Solid equuty ratio of 58 percent and dechmng net debt

Sales revenues by segments é
=
5
EUR milhien 2013/14 2012113 Change In % &
5
©
Premium Brands™ 1653 156 8 54 =
=3
Jeans & Workwear 694 653 63 =
Men's & Sportswear 224 2486 -89 "g:
Total 2571 2467 42 <

gl . miscellaneous” EUR O 3 muillon {previous year ELR 02 milhon)

Sales revenucs by regions

EUR million 2013M4 2012113 Change in %
Germany LG k! 1340 51
Western Europe 630 620 16
Middle-/ Eastem Europe/ Misc 532 507 49
Total 251 24617 42

Sales revenues by quarters

EUR milhon 2013114 201213 Change n %
tquarter ) _ 130 . 668 . 93
2 quarter 509 485 49
3 quarter H“o0 g 87
4 quarter 592 633 65

Total 571 2067 42
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The substantial 4 2 percent growth achieved
m a decliming European clothing market
means that Ahlers has won market share

Market and weather conditions were
favourable during the first six months of
2013/14 Ahlers was abhle to grow 1ts sales
by 8 percent m this stable market environ-
ment prevailing m the first half of the year
The second half of the year saw a deteriora-
tion of clothing retail sales as the Russia crisis
became palpable for everyone Qur company
managed to achieve one percent growth and
continued to demonstrate strength even mn
this strongly recessive environment

EARNINGS, NET WORTH AND
FINANCIAL POSITION

Earnings

Healthy sales gains across all
European regions
Even though the overall market was notice-
ably shrinking, Ahlers managed to grow its
sales m Germany by 5 percent, primarily hy
bwnlding on the strengths of its Baldessarini
and Pierie Cardin premum brands and its
Proneer Authentic Jeans denim brand

Comparahle sales growth was achie-
ved 1in Poland, Switzerland, the Netherlands,
Belgium and Denmark

Since the sceond half of 2014, we
have been able to matket Pierre Cardin com-
pletely across Spain where we now hold all
the required menswear product licenses As
a result, sales figures in this market, which 1s
recovering fromn the financial crisis, rose hy
approxnmately 50 percent

Our busmess perforinance m the fiscal
year 2013/14 was affected by the Russia-Uk-
rame conflict only to a hmited extent While
both countries still reported shghtly growing
sales in the first half of the year, sales started
to shrink in the second half Sales for the full
reporting period were down by a substantial
8 percent i Russia and hy a slight one per-
cent in Ukramne In the Baltic states Ahlers
products are pnimantly sold through our own
store network which continued to grow as a
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result of new opemings However, the second
half of the year saw like-for-like sales dechne
by approximately 10 percent

Premium brands remam Ahlers’

growih engine

The brands in our Premium segiment recor-
ded substantal growth of 5 4 percent 1 the
fiscal year 2013/14 Tlis trend was prima-
rily driven by healthy double digit growth at
Baldessarini and good single-digit growth at
Prerre Cardin Otto Kern sales remamed more
or less level This momentum has boosted the
Premium segment’s contribution to consoli-
dated sales to 64 percent

Gratfying sales growth also in

Jeans & Workwear segment

Sales in the Jeans & Workwear segment rose
by an mmpressive 6 3 percent as well This
trend was chiefly driven by the two Pioneer
brands, Pioneer Authentic Jeans and Pionier
Jeans & Casuals Thanks to the strong growth,
the Jeans & Workwear segment’s contribution
to consohdated sales rose by 0 5 percent to
27 percent

Men’s & Sporiswear segment’s sales
depressed by store closures

While store closures took a chunk out of
Gin Tonic sales, the brand's earnings contri-
bution for the fiscal year 2013/14 was hugher
thanin the previous year Wholesale revenues
for Gin Tomic Man and Jupiter grew shightly
through the first nine months until they were
impacted by the challenging conditions in
the fourth quarter, resulting in shghtly lower
12-month sales than i the year before All
told, the segment’s 2013/14 sales were down
9 percent The segment’s contribution to con-
sohdated sales declmed by | 3 percent to 9
percent during the fiscal year 2013/14

Retail segment continues to grow sales

As the Retal segment continued to open
more stores 1n Germany, Poland and the Bal-
tic states, and notwithstanding the closure
of Gin Tonic stores, sales 11 our own stores
grew shghtly by 1 8 percent during the fiscal
year 2013/14 The segment contributed 105
percent to censohdated sales (previous year




10 7 percent) Despite the challenging deve-
lepments 11 the market, like-for-like sales ad-
vanced by 5 2 percent

Substantial growth in e-commerce busmess
The e-commerce business has been mana-
ged by a dedicated department for the past
two years This led to a surge in sales by 35
percent albeit from a low base m the fiscal
year 2013/14 Substantial growth was achie-
ved both 1n terms of sales thiough ow own
Baldessarini, Otto Kern and Piomer Werk-
wear e-stares and 1n terms of sales through
electronic marketplaces

Earmings position

Considerable profit growth on all levels
The sales growth and 1ts posifive impact on
gross profit boosted EBIT before special ef-
fects by 46 percent to EUR 11 7 mullion in the
fiscal year 2013/14 (previous year EUR 8 0
muihon) Despite lugh extraordmnary expenses
maimnly related to the closure of the Sindelfin-
gen operations as well as a normalised tax ra-
tio, consohidated pre-tax profit rose by 8 per-
cent fiom EUR 5 6 milhon to EUR 6 0 mmlhon
during the reportng period

2013114 2012113 Change
EUR million EUR miltion In %
Sales 571 2467 42
Grass profit 1283 1243 32
in % of sales 499 504
Personnel expenses 532 o 527 -09
Balance of other expenses/income 583 583 00
EBITDA 168 133 263
Depreciation and amortisation _ 51 93 38
EBIT 17 80 463
Special effects 26 07 <-100
Financial result 07 -06 -167
Earnings before taxes 84 67 254
income taxes 24 -1 <-100
Consclidated net income for the year 60 56 80

* before special effects

Stable expenditures despite growing sales
Gross profit grew by EUR 4 0 million (+3 2
percent) as a result of the lhigher sales in the
fiscal year 2013/14 Higher mventory write-
downs caused the gross profit margin to dech-
ne slightly from 50 4 percent to 49 9 percent

The sum total of current operating ex-
penditures on personnel, depreciation and
miscellaneous rose by only EUR 0 3 mmihon
or 0 3 percent Consequently the bulk of the
gross profit increment was conserved i EBIT
before spenal effects, whnich rose hy EUR
3 7 million or 46 percent to EUR 11 7 milh-
on Operating expenditures reflect savings
at Gin Tome, which were offset by hgher

a7

planned expenditure in our own retadl and
g-commerce operations as well as expendi-
ture strengthening the product management
and distribution structures at Baldessarim

Sale of works of ari

As in prior periods, the company sold a num-
ber of works of art at a premium over book
value Six works of art carried at a book va-
tue of EUR 2 1 mulhon yelded a total of EUR
2 6 million The accounting profit of EUR 05
milhion 1s consistent with the accounting pro-
fit booked 1n the previous year New works of
art valued at EUR 0 3 mulhion were acqured
during the 2013/14 reporting perniod
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High special eifecis of EUR 2 6 mulhon

In June 2014, the Management Board dect-
ded to close the Sindelfingen opeiations and
integrate Gin lonic into the headquarters n
Herford In the following months, the closure
was ittated and contractually agreed, 1m-
plementation is ongomng at this time In the
fiscal year 2013/14, this measure primarily
involved expenditure on a redundancy plan
as well as write-offs In addition, the restruc-
turmng of the creative resources assigned to
Baldessari led to redundancy provistoning
The expenditure caused by these two projects,
plus a number of smaller one-off expenses,
boosted one-off special effects to a total of
EUR 2 6 million, compared to a moderate 0 7
million in the previous yeay

Net worth position

Balance sheet structure

In the previous year, tax provision
releases led to savings in the financial result
and in icome taxes. these releases were non-
recurrent in the fiscal year 2013/14 As a1e-
sult, net financal expenses for the reporting
period advanced shghtly from EUR O 6 mull-
on to EUR 0 7 million and the tax rato 10se
clearly from 16 4 percent to a “nermalised”
level of 28 6 percent

Despite these special effects and due
to the positive development of gross pro-
fit, consohdated net income after taxes rose
by 71 percent from EUR 5 6 milhon to EUR
6 O nuthion

Nov 30, 2014 Nov 30,2013
Assets EUR miihon n % EUR million n %
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets A A K 394 216
Other non-current assets 192 101 214 ni7
Defesred tax assets 14 07 14 08
Non-current assets 607 319 62.2 341
Inventories . 7194 a1 7 57 416
Trade recevables . 3¥%BE 192 339 186
Other current assets 14 38 67 36
Cash and cash equivalents . ' 63 33 39 21
Current assets 1297 681 120.2 659
Total assets 1904 1000 1824 1000
Nov 30, 2014 Nov 30,2013

Equity and habilitres EUR million m % EUR miltion 1 %
By . . . ___ M3 ms 1093 599
Perscnpovsons 4% 26 _ 46 28
thg{_qgn;gyr_teqt liabiities and provisions: o ?jl_ .m0 ZEELH 147
Deferred tax liabiltties o e 32 17 25 14
Mon-current hialulities 328 173 329 1840
Current income tax payables _ 06 _ 03 03 02
Other current habihities and provisions 467 245 _QQ_ 21 SL“
Current habilitres o i 413 24 B- N 402 221
Lrabilities 801 a21 731 401
Total equity and habilites 1504 1000 1824 1000




Sohd equily ratio and lower net debt

The consohdated balance sheet as of Novem-
ber 30, 2014 shows a sold equity ratio of
57 9 percent (previous year 599 percent)
Netdebt.1e the balance of finanaal debt and
hgquid means, decined by EUR 10 nulhon
from EUR 26 6 milhon to EUR 25 6 mulhon
between the reportung dates

Changes m the balance sheet structure
A number of changes occurred hetween the
reporting dates The first payments for the
ERP software project (ERP = Enterprise Re-
source Planmng) led to a rise n intangible
assets by EUR 1 0 mulion while the balance
between art acquisitions and art sales re-
leased EUR 18 nullon from fixed assets
At the bottom hne, these transactions and a
number of smaller changes caused long-term
assets to decline by EUR 1 5 milhon

Net working capital rose from
EUR 91 7 nulhon to EUR 955 mllion du-
ring the reporting period The higher volume
of business with NOS (= nover out of stock)
items as well as higher stock levels of winter
merchandise remaining from the weak win-
ter business pushed up mventories from EUR
75 7 mihon to EUR 79 4 million Trade re-
celvables increased as a result of the launch
of the Pierre Cardin business in Spamn, high-
er sales 1n November and higher receivables
from 4 Russian customer At the same tiune,
trade payables increased from EUR 17 9 mil-
lion to EUR 20 5 million as a result of longer
payment terms, thereby reducing funding re-
quirements at the net working capital level by
EUR 2 6 million

Fimancial figures

Between November 30, 2013 and the
current reporting date, equity capital -
creased from EUR 109 3 million to EUR 110 3
muilien This rise primanly reflected the high
valuation of (mamnly USD} cuwrrency hedges on
the reporting date, their net amount of EUR
1 6 rmulhon 1s directly counted towards equi-
ty without showing up n the profit and loss
account for the pertod Equity was slightly de-
creased by a net amount of EUR 0 3 million
because of higher penston provisions as a re-
sult of lower discounting Despite the higher
equity amount, the equty ratio declined from
59 9 percent to 57 9 percent on the reporting
date, reflecting the fact that the lngher net
working capital and lagher cash and equiva-
lents have hoosted the balance total from EUR
182 4 milhon to EUR 190 4 million

Lower net debt

Ahlers had only very little debt capital at the
end of the fiscal year Moreover, the company's
net debt of EUR 25 6 million was almost enti-
rely comprised by non-curnient habihties (EUR
23 0 milon} Nen-current iahlities including
equity thus cover 75 percent of total assets
As at the reporting date, Ahlers’ unused cre-
dit hnes m the amount of approximately EUR
60 milhon exceeded the drawings under those
Iine Finanung conditions did not change ma-
terially in the fiscal year, with the lower level
of interest in the market tendimg to 1mprove
the situatton Off-halance-sheet payment ob-
ligations primarily relate to lease agreements
for the company’s own retail stores

2013114 201213
Buwyrto . _ __.._.m% _ 88 589
Debt ratio® in % 698 646
Interest coverage ratio” o M‘_r_nm‘i_/g__m o1 1778 R 7930
Return on eguity n % 55 51
Investment i property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets EUR million 62 583
Total assets ELR million 190 4 1824

excl deferred taxes
before special effects
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Finaneial position

Sirong rise in cash flow ltom

operating activilies

In the fiscal year 2013/t4, Ahlers generated
EUR 10 9 mnllion in cash flow from operating
activittes This was clearly more than n the

Free cash flow

previous year when EUR 1 5 mullion was ge-
nerated Apart from the higher consolidated
net profit, the 11se was mainly driven by lower
mcreases n net working capital and higher
provistoning for ¢ g the closure of the Sindel-
fingen operations which will affect the cash
flow only 1 the next year

EUR million 201314 201213 Change in %
Gonsohdated net income for the period 60 56 71
Depreciation, amartisation and impairment losses 54 53 19
Change 1n net working capital -39 -79 506
Change in current provisions 09 05 na
Other changes 25 -10 na
Cash flow from operating activities 109 15 >100
Net investments -37 -43 140
Eftects of changes in the scope of exchange rates 0c 02 na
Free cash flow hefore financing activity 72 -30 na
Additrons to (+), repayment of {-) non-current liabilities -18 25 na
Didend payments -659 -B6 244
Free cash flow -11 -81 879
Liquid funds as of November 30™ 16 27 -407

Other non-cash expenses and income EUR 2 7 million (previous year EUR 03 million}
Change in non current provissons and other habilities EUR G 7 million (previous year EUR 0 8 million)

Cash less overdrafts

In the fiscal year 2013/14, the company -
vested EUR 6 2 million compared to EUR
5 3 malhon 1n the previous year The mncrea-
s¢ mainly reflects the first payments for the
ERP project amounting to EUR 1 5 million
The volume and the structure of the other n-
vestients were similar to the previous year
Apart from 1eplacement and modernisahon
expendature for offices and production faul-
ties, they also imncluded shop and store fithing
expenses Since art sales clearly exceeded
art purchases net mmvestments in 2013/14
amecunted to EUR 3 7 nulhon, which, despite
the Ingher gross figure, was lower than the
previous year’s figure of EUR 4 3 rmillion

The higher free cash flow before fi-
nancing activity of EUR 7 2 mullion (previous
year EUR -3 0 mllion) was used to 1cpay
long-term leans 1in an amount of EUR 18
nullion Excluding these tepayments, the fiec

cash flow, too, would have been positive, after
these repayments it stood at EUR -1 1 milhon
{previous year IFUR -9 1 mllion}

General statement by the Management
Board on the earmings, financial and net
worth position

2013/14 was a positive fiscal year for Ahlers
AG and the Group Operating results impro-
ved notably, and we have launched important
strategic measures for future improvements
m sales and earnungs The financial position
of the parent company and the Group remai-
ned sohd, supported by high equity capital
brom today’s point of view, the risks outlined
in the risk and opportunity report do not point
to any hazards that would jeopardise the abi-
lity of Ahlers AG or the Group to continue as
a gomng coneern




SEGMENT REPORT

Five-year comparison of segment revenues

EUR million
258 2562 2532 2867 2571
300
250 575 448 M ™ 245 2e
200 Co) 674 652 853 ] 44
i50 635 | | ;
100 Men s & Sportswaar
50 158 1447 1653 ' Jeans & Workwear
0 M Premitm Brands®
2008/10 2010/ 2011712 201213 2013/14
¢! cthers

Premium brands generate higher sales
and profits

The five-year comparison illustrates the
dynamic development of the Premum seg-
ment n recent years Sales grew hy a total of
27 percentn the past four years In the fiscal
year 2013/14, the growth rate suppcorted by
the Baldessarimi und Pieire Cardin brands
came 1n at a gratifying 5 4 percent

Sales revenues by segments

During the reporting period, the
Baldessarim and Pierre Cardin organisa-
tions were remnforced and strengthened with
a view to generating growth going forward
This involved additional expenditures Even
so, both companies contributed mmproved
results thanks to thewr higher sales and gross
profits While sales at Otto Kern were more
or less on par with the previous year, profits
were shghtly lower

EUR million 2013114 2012113 Change m %
Premium Brands o 53 to68 54
Jeans & Workwear 694 653 63
Men’s & Sportswear D /% 246 88
Total 2571 2467 42

ingl .miscellaneous™ EUR 0 3 mallion {previous year EUR 0 Z meliron)

EBIT before special effects by segments

EUR mulfion 201314 2012113 Change in %
Promuwm Brands - ___ S . N R L.
Jeans & Workwear 49 49 00
Men's & Sportswear _ _ B el -42 252
Total n? 80 463

*nl ingome from dispesal of other fixed assets EUR 05 miltion [prewious year EUR 05 mill:on)
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Jeans & Workwear segment grows sales
and contributes stable result

Both Pioneer Authentic Jeans and Plonter
Jeans & Casuals generated very piomsing
sales growth m the fiscal year 2013/14 Ihg-
her nventory wrnte-downs and the shifting
of production from Asia to Eastern Europe
within the Group weighed on the gross pro-
fit margin, as a result of which EBIT hefore
special effects was only stable Sales and pro-
fits at Promer Workwear were stable, the new
management team 15 working on « stream-
Iined product range meeting today's requure-
ments As part of this effort, the new “Tools
Collectron” was successfully launched at retail
during 2014

Men’s & Sportswear segment improves
EBIT before special effects

The year 2012 saw the launch of the first re-
structuring programme to steamhne the or-
gamsation of Gin Tonic and to focus the brand
on menswear The effects of this program-
me, combined with the closure of a number
of stores, unproved Gin Tonic’s EBIT before
specidl effects by EUR 0 7 mulhon When the

EMPLOYEES

cxpected sales growth failed to maternialise 1n
the subsequent seasons, 1t was decaided as a
second step in 2014 to close the Sindelfingen
operations and to ntegrate Gin Toni into the
Group’s headquarters in Ilerford

Jupiter managed to improve EBIT
before special effects by EUR 0 4 nullion by
scaling down low-profit business and boos-
ung “good” business This led to lugher gross
profits with net profit improving as expen-
diture stayed flat

Jupiter Shirt GmbH, the joint venture
in which Ahlers AG holds a 49 percent stake,
mproved 1ts earmings to EUR 0 3 nullion in
the fiscal yedar 2013/14 (previous year EUR
0 2 million) on the back of effictency gans
With the muitial losses mere than recouped
by the profits generated in rccent years,
the valuation of this investment was raised
by EUR 100 thousand in the fiscal year
2013/14, this raised the financial result in the
Ahlers Group’s ncome statement by the same
amount Moreover, Jupiter Shirt GmbH re-
paid half of the EUR t 0 mullion shareholder
loan extended by Ahlers AG,1e FUR 05 mil-
lion, n the fiscal year 2013/14

Employees by region as of November 30, 2014 (previous year)

W 2013/14
201213

2250
1500
750 (
1 i
J1-m W
Germany Poland Sni Lanka Eastern Austria
Europe/

Other

Germany 643  {632)
Poland 540 {530)
Sn Lanka 867 (852
Eastern Europe/ Other 142 {124}
Austria 58 {63)
Total 2,250 (2,201)

Total
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Personnel figures

2013114 2012113 Change
Average number of employees . 276 218 15%
Adjusted personnel expenses’ EUR million 532 527 09%
Ad)usted personnel expenses/employee’ KEUR 239 10 _“.fgf'f/i._
Number of trainees 23 s 80 %
Share of women i leading positions 12 12 00 %

adjusted for special effects

In the fiscal year 2013/14, Ahlers had an ave-
1age headcount of 2,226, 1e 32 employees
more than 1n the previous year

At 2,250, the headcount on November
30, 2014 was up 49 people on the previous
year The mcrease manly reflects a shght nse
1n the number of employees at the Sn Lankan
factory (+15 employees), the expansion of the
Ahlers Group's own retail network (+21 em-
ployees) and the retention of sales and retail
staff in France (+15 employees)

Otherwise, the employment situation
was largely unchanged In Germany. Ahlers
employed eleven people more than in the pre-
vious year as of the reporting date A reduc-
tion 1n Gin Tomic's workforce by eight people
contrasted with a higher increase i the num-
ber of people employed in the Retail segment
and in central functions Five jobs were cut
I Austria as controling functions at Pioneer
Authentic Jeans and Promer Jeans & Casuals
were merged In Poland, we hired five peo-
ple for the retal operations and another
five were hired for service functions for the
German headquarters

Culiure and demography

Ahlers 1s a family-run company with a long
traditon at the Group headquarters in
Herford Besides the Herford headguarters
Ahlers has branches 1 Munich {Baldessariny)
and, until midyear 2015, m Sidelfingen (Gin
Tonic) as a result of the brand portfolio, which

comprises ¢ight clothing brands in the Pre-
mium, Jeans & Workwear as well as Men's &
Spoitswear segnients In addition, the com-
pany operates its own production facilities m
Poland and Sr1 Lanka The distmbution and
logistic activities for part of Eastern Europe
are controlled out of Opole (Poland) The
Group also has employees mn retail stores
across Europe

75 percent of the workfoice are
women, whilo 25 percent are men Many
employees have been with the company for
many years, and staff turnover in the com-
pany 15 low As the company entered new
market segments, ¢g e-commerce, and
expanded 1ts Retail activities, many new
employees have Joined the company n recent
years

Women and fanuly

Women play an inportant role at all herar-
chical levels of Ahlers AG Since 2005, the
company has been headed by CEO Dr Stella
A Ahlers Three women sit on the Supervi-
sory Board Prof Dr Juha von Ah as Deputy
Chairwoman and Chairwoman of the Audit
Commuttee as well as employee representa-
tives Heidrun Baumgart and Roswitha Galle
T'his means that women represent 33 percent
of the Supervisory Board members and 50
percent of the Management Board members
In addition, many senier positions arc held by
women, especially in the product areq
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Recruiting human resources

Ahlers continuously advances both 1ts brands
and 1ts corporate strategy and structures
In the past years, for mstance, the company
expanded 1ts e-commerce and retal depart-
ments In these growth segments as well
as i other areas of the company, Ahlers 15
constantly on the lookout for ambitious and
talented people who would ke to contr-
bute their passion and their commitment to a
leading fashion company Another focus is on
the search for apprentices and university gra-
duates, primarily m the fields of distribution,
retail, product management and accounting/
controlling

Traming and advancing young people
Tramning young people has a long tradition at
Ahlers, with the company attaching special
importance to high-quahty inductton and sup-
port Ahlers relies on gquahfied young talents
who stay with the company for a long time
and actively contribute to the success of the
Group Tranees and apprentices are quickly
mvolved 1n the departmental processes and,
after a comprehensive induction programine,
are given the chance to assume responsibi-
Ity at an early stage of their career At pre-
sent, the company employs 23 (previous year
25) apprentices They aie guided through
our company based on carefully developed
plans and are supported closely As part of
their vocational training, the commercial
tramees spend time abroad to get to know
our own International production facthitics
and suppliers Vocational tramng 1n the fol-
lowing professions 1s avatlable at our Herford
branch

- industrial clerk

- EU industnial derk

- IT clerk

- retail merchant

Last year, the company also created a tramee-
ship for an industrial clerk at the Baldessatin
head office iIn Mumich Sinece the mntroduction
of the advanced EU mdustnal clerk training
scheme, we have offered this demanding trai-
neeship, which mcludes foreign languages
and thus caters to the needs ol Ahleis’ 1herea-
sigly international business activites

Qualification and human resources
development

Competent and motivated people are the most
mmportant asset of any company Ahlers AG
supports 1ts employees by showing them ca-
reer development oppottunities and offering
them dufferent turther traiming and quahfica-
tion measures For four years up-and-conmuing
talents have the possility to enrel m dual
study courses to enhance therr qualifications
as future managers Currently several emplo-
yees are furthcred m dual business and 1T
study courses

Cooperation with umiversities

The cooperatton with universities is an impor-
tant success factor, which helps to attract and
win young talents for the Group at an early
stage Ahleis gives a number of mterns the
opportunity to gam an :nsight mnto everyday
working hfe Moreover, we recruit talented
school-leavers to enrol m a dual study pro-
gramme in International Business Admunist-
ration In this conteat, Ahlers cooperates with
mstitutions such as LDT Nagold {Academy for
Fashion Management)

Thanks to the staff

For about eighty years, Ahlers has had a ma-
terial mfluence on the region surrounding the
headquarters i Herford/Elverdissen as well
as on the people who work for the company
and show their commitment, theiwr passion
and their loyalty Ever since its foundation
ninety-four years ago, the clothing manufac-
turer can rely on the loyalty of 1ts staff This
year saw Ahlers honour thirty-one employecs
who have successfully worked for the com-
pauny for ten, twenty-five or even forty years
The Management Board and the Managing
Directors would hke to thank all employees
for the great commrtment shown n the past
fiscal year




REPORT OF AHLERS AG

Explanations based on HGB (German commelcial code) standards

Earnings, net worth and financial poesition

Functions of Ahlers AG

Headquartered 1n Herford, Germany,
Ahlors AG 1s the parent company of the
Ablers Group Its central function 1s the
operational and strategic management of
the Group by the Management Board How-
ever, Ahlers AG 15 not merely a holding
company but has signed management and
service agreements with certamn suhbsidia-
ries Under these contracts, the contractual
partners (the commission agents) are res-
ponsible for the procurement of all requi-
red face fabrics, findings and accessories as
well as merchandise, have these materiais
processed on behalf of Ahlers AG and then
market them in thewr own name but on the
account of Ahlers AG. they alse perform
administrative and service tasks Contracts

Earnings posiiion

of this kind have been signed with the fol-
lowing companies Ahlers Zentialverwal-
tung Gmbll, Herford, Baldessarini GmbH,
Munich, Piomer Berufskleidung GmbH,
Herford, Jupiter Bekleidung GmbH, Her-
ford, PIONEER Jeans-Bekleidung GmbH,
Herford, as well as Pronier Jeans & Casuals
Deutschland GmbH, Herford In return for
the above activities, these companies receive
a full refund of their expenses, tnterest on
capital as well as appropriate compensation
Controlling and profit and loss transfer
agreements have been signed with the
above compames Ahlers AG also collects
domestic income from mvestments as well
as income and expenses from the control-
ling and profit and loss transfer agreements
signed with other Group companies

2n3ng 2012/13 Change

EUR mullion EUR muthan in %
Sales 910 820 110
Gross profit__ T T T T
in % of sales 382 390
Personnel expenses . - 27 22 -22 7___
Batance of other expenses/incomea 317 -304 -43
Depreciation and amorttsation . 01 01 00
Income from investments  ____ - 66 . B2 31
EBIT' S 69 57 211
Specreletects . ____23% ___.__ .95 . <10
Pnancilresults 0 80 na _
Earnings before taxes 44 5.2 -154
Income taxes -13 04 <-100
Netincome 31 48 -354

* before special effects

1yl -

¥

-
<
o
=1
[ab]
[
=
=
o
=
[ab]
[am7]
j18]
g
o
=
=
(s
£
s ]
£
o
(]




Positive sales trend

Sales revenues of Ahlers AG increased by
11 0 percent n the fiscal year 2013/14 to
EUR 91 0 milhon (previcus year LEUR 82 0
million) The increase was mamly due to
growing sales of Baldessarim, Pioneer
Authentic Jeans and Pionier
Casuals The re-integration of a segment to
Germany, which took effect in May 2013,
showed 1ts full-year effect on sales for the
first time Sales at Jupiter and Piomer Work-

Joans &

wear came 1n at the previous year's level

Rising sales were reported both 1n
Germany (+7 3 percent) and abroad {+23 3
percent) The faster mnternational growth
boosted the share of exports in Ahlers AG’s
sales to 25 7 percent (previous year 231
percent)

Rising gross profit due to higher sales
The higher sales also led to higher gross
profit which rose by EUR 2 8 mithon or 8 7
percent to EUR 34 8 mllion At 38 2 per-
cent {previous year 39 0 percent), the gross
profit margin remained largely stable

Rising operating expenses

Comiprised of personnel expenses, other
expenses and depreciation, total opera-
ting expenses rose by EUR 1 8 million or
55 percent during the reporting period
The higher personnel expenses reflect the
appointment of an additional member to the
Management Board as well as a rise in bo-
nus provisions hy EUR 05 mullion to EUR
2 7 mulhon {previous year EUR 2 2 million)
The enlarged business volune led to a 4 3
percent rise 1n other operating expenses
which grew by EUR 1 3 milhon to EUR 31 7
million

Sale of works of art and shghtly higher
mcome from investments in subsidiaries

During the fiscal year 2013/14, the compa-
ny sold six works of art with a book value of
EUR 2 1 mullion at a total price of EUR 2 6
million, meaning that the sale yielded a net
surplus of EUR 0 5 million (previous year
EUR 0 5 milhon) New works of art worth
EUR 0 3 milhon were acquired during the
fiscal year As a r1esult of the higher amount
of the sales the total book value of the works

of art on the company’s balance sheet dec-
lined fiom EUR 19 6 million on November
30, 2013 to EUR 17 8 milhon on November
30, 2014

income from investments mn subsi-
diaries comprises the profits surrendered
by subsidiaries with profit and loss absorp-
tion agreements as well as any dividends
paid by other subsidiaries In the fiscal ycar
2013/14, icome from investments in sub-
sidiaries before special effacts rose shghtly
from EUR 6 4 million in the previous year to
EUR 6 6 mulhon

EBIT before special effects up 21 percent
on the previous year

Due to the higher sales and the resulting
higher gross profit, EBIT before special
effects surged by 21 percent to EUR 6 9
million (previous year EUR 57 wmullion)
despite the mgher expenses

Higher special effects weigh on net profit
At EUR 2 3 millhion, extraordinary expenses
were clearly higher than in the previous
year (-0 5 mllion) Of the total amount, EUR
13 millien mainly compnsed the soclal
plan and extraordinary write-offs related to
the closure of the Gin Tont. operations m
Sindelfingen booked under mcome from
subsidiaries Special effects worth another
EUR 1 0 milion mamnly reflect severance
pay for represcntatives and employees
booked under other operatmg expenses
by companies which have signed agency
agreements with Ahlers AG

In the previous year, tax provision
releases led to savings in the financial ex-
penses and 1n mcome taxes, these relea-
$¢s were non-recurrceni m the fAscal year
2013/14 As aresult net financial expenses
rose from EUR 00 mulhon to EUR 02
million during the reporting period while
the tax ratio increased to a “novmalised ’ le-
vel of 30 percent (previous year 8 percent)

Due to the higher extracrdinary ex-
penses and despite the higher EBIT before
special effects the net profit for the fiscal
year 2013/14 came min at EUR 3 1 million,
down by EUR 1 7 milhon on the previous
yeat (EUR 4 8 mullion)




Net worth position

Balance Sheet Siructure

Nov 30, 2014 Nov 30, 2013
Assets EUR milhion in % EUR mellion in %
Property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets 02 0y _ Bz 01
QOther non-current assets ) 808 jﬂj 8 9 58 0
Non-curren;:sdsets 810 544 861 581
Inventones o 39 . 4 323 218
Trade recevables 94 63 92 62
Other current assets 251 168 181 129
Cash and cash eMalenjs 11 08 10 07
Currentassets 675 453 616 o6
Accrued items and deferred taxes 05 03 05 03
Total assets 1490 1000 1482 1000
Nov 30,2014 Nov 30,2013
Equity and liabilities EUR mulkion n % EUR milhon n%
Equity 1001 67.2 1035 698
Pension provisions 05 03 05 03
Other non-current liabilities 219 147 231 156
Other provisions 36 24 - 32 22
Other lhabiities and deferred ingome 229 154 179 121
Liabdities 489 2B a4l 302
Total equity and habilities 1490 1000 1482 1000

Equity ratio at a sohid 67 percent on the
reporting date
At first sight, the balance sheet structure
had changed only httle as of November 30,
2014 compared to the previous year At
EUR 149 0 miilon, total assets were appro-
ximately at the previous year's level of EUR
148 2 mullhion As the disvidend paid out n
May 2014 exceeded the result for the year
2012/13, equity dechned from EUR 103 5
milhion to EUR 100 1 milhon and the equity
ratio dropped from 69 8 percent to a still
very solid 67 2 percent

Non-current assets dechned by EUR
5 1 nulhon, reflecting the sale of the works
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of art and the reduction of long-term loans
to affihated companies Despite the renewed
rise i sales. trade receivables almost remai-
ned at the previous year's level (plus EUR
0 2 mulhon) Offsetting effects boosted other
assets by EUR 6 0 muillion to EUR 25 1 mul-
lion While the corporate income and trade
tax refund claim declined following a EUR
2 1 million payment recewved from the tax
authorities, receivables from affibated com-
pames rose by EUR 8 0 miflion, reflecting
the subsidiaries higher lquidity needs Net
working capital dechined by EGR 0 8 milhon
to EUR 354 wmulhon, mainly reflecuing
higher supplier habilities
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Finanzlage

Clearly improved free cash flow

Cash flow henefited from the sale of the
works of art and the lower finaneial 1esour-
ces tied down in net working caprtal Free
cash flow before financing activity amoun-
ting to EUR 7 8 muilion {previous year

Free cash flow

EUR -0 7 mullion) was used to fund the divi-
dend and the repayment of EUR 1 2 million
in long-term habihities As a result, free cash
flow for the fiscal year 2013/14 was balan-
ced at EUR O 1 million

EUR million 2013/14 2213 Change 1n %
Net income 31 48 -354
Depreciation, amortisation and impa:rment fosses 01 04 -750
Profit {-) { loss {+) from the disposal of fixed assets 05 08 -167
Change in net working capital 08 -99 na

Change n current provisions 03 02 na

Other ehanges -15 35 na

Cash flow from operating actities 23 -20 na

Cash inflow / outflow in intangible assets, property,

plant and equipment and financial assets 55 13 >100
Free cash flow before financing activity 78 07 na

Additions to {+), repayment of {-} nan-current habihties 12 30 na

Dividend payments 65 -85 -235
Free cash flow 01 -62 na

Liquid funds as of November 30° 11 10 100

Cash less overdrafts

Ahlers AG’s financial statements and

notes on the Internet

Interested readers can access Ahlers AG's
balance sheet, profit and loss account and
notes on the Internet by going to the Investor
Relations section of the company’s homepage
{www ahlers-ag com)

Risk and opportumty report of Ahlers AG

The Ahlers Group has installed a consistent
risk management system covering all Group
units  This risk management system also
extends to the parent company, Ahlers AG
Reference 1s therefore made to the Group Risk
and Opportunity Report on pages 62 to 65
The statements made i this report are also
directly relevant for Ahlers AG 1n respect to
most of the risks, given that Ahlers AG itself
15 an opcrahng company as well in addio-

on, these risks are also indirectly relevant as
they can potentially damage the positon of
mdmvidual subsidhanes, ¢ g leading to lower
dividends and potentially requiring the parent
company to provide additonal funding

2014/15 forecast for Ahlers AG

The earmngs forecast for Ahiers AG hmges
materally on the performance of its subsi-
diaries and the performance of the Group
Readers are thot efore referred to the Group’s
Forecast Repoit and the Report on Post Ba-
lance Sheet Events provided on the following
pages As mn the case of the Group, we aie
cautiously optimistic about the performance
of Ahlers AG 1n the fiscal year 2014/15 We
expect Ahlers AG to perform positively i a
challengmg business environment and to re-
pott a shghtly higher net profit for the next




fiscal year Sales should be more or less on a
par with the previous year

In the prior year report, the Manage-
ment Board ot Ahlers AG had projected rising
sales and carmmgs for the year 2013/14 The
operating performance ‘was as planned Duc
to the restructuring expenses for Gin Tonig,
net inceme for the year fell, however, short of
the prior year level and the projections

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No events requiring disclosure 1n this report
occurred after the balance sheet date

FORECAST REPORT

Macroeconomic outleok

At the turn of the year 2014/15, most eco-
nomic mstitutes expect the global economy
to perform smmmlarty to 2014 According to
theuwr forecasts, the world cconomy 1s set to
grow at a rate of Just over 3 percent (source
for all figures 1n this chapter, Commerzbank
Research, January 30, 2015) GDP growth
m the eurozone 15 expected to remain at
around 1 1 percent mx 2015 The forecasts
antigipate o recession m Russia as a result
of the sanctions nmposed by the western
countries as well as of the low ol price, with
GDP shrinking by 3 7 percent (2014 +0 6
percent) Notwithstanding the unplications
of the Russtan recession for German expor-
ters and in view of the consumption-boos-
ting effect of the low o1l price, German GDP
will continue to expand at a rate close to the
previous yeal's pace, namely at 1 5 percent
The eurozone 1s set to see confinued shght
growth tn the countries hit hard by the euro
cnisis, e g Spain and Portugal The econo-
mists also expect very slight growth in Italy
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This subdued growth within Burope
will only have a moderately positive effect
on unemployment rates Private consumnpit-
on will be influenced much more substant:-
ally by the development of the Russia-Ukrai-
ne conflict White a further tightering of the
situation could nmpact sigmficantly on con-
sumer spending, an easing of the situation
would prowide a boost to the economy This
1s true for the eurozone 1n general and even
more so for the strongly export-dependent
Geriman economy

Indusiry outlook
The winter 2014 season was a very sobe-
ring experience for German clothing re-
tallers whose outlook on the new year 1s
rather pessirmistic (Ifo Institute, December
18, 2014) This contrasts with consumers
having rising disposable imcome as a resuit
of collective wage nses and stable prices,
which translates into solid and positive con-
fidence on the part of consumers who see
nothing major to worry about (GIK, Decem-
ber 18, 2014) This situation leads forecas-
ters to antictpate a shght rise 1n textile retatl
sales However, such a rise was forecast last
year as well and 1t never materialised
Looking at the Western European
markets outside Germany, the modera-
te economic performance should at least
support stable clothing sales Business in
Russta, Ukraine and Belarus will be very
challenging Retail sales 1n these countries,
which are very important fou the clothing
industry, are likely to contract noticeably
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Opcrational objectives for the fiscal

year 2014/15

Consequently, the year 2015 will not be
an easy year for clothing manufacturers
Even so, Ahlers 15 all set to push ahead the
further expansion of its business Important
measw es for the year include

+ Pierre Cardin Swift penetration of the
French, Spamish and Belgium markets
which can now be supplied without
restriction

* Baldessarun Continued expansion of all
markets with focused 1mprovement of
the product range by the new creative
team

s Pioncer/Gin Tome Pooling of sales force
and back office, creation of cost-saving
and sales-boosting synergies

» Retall Additional openimmgs of mono-
brand and Elsbach Demim Library
stores

e E-commerce Pushing forward the

e-business particularly through our own
Baldessarini and Otto Kern e-stores

e ERP project First pilot application of the
new software to go productive at Jupiter,
further rollout to be prepared

Stable sales expected for 2014/15

We anticipate to see stable sales mn the
fiscal year 2014/15 which has just started
The additional Pierre Cardin sales regrons
wt France, Spain and Belgium are expected
to contribute EUR 7 million to total sales re-
venues Continued growth 1s also expected
for Baldessarimi and our entire Premium
segment In the Jeans & Workwear seg-
ment, the last major private label customer
supplied by Ahlets will absorb significantly
less volume, costing us some EUR 4 mulli-
on 1 sales While Pronect Workwear and
Proneer Authentic Jeans are hkely to post
shght growth, this will net be sufficient to
compensate for the shortfall As a resuls,
sales 1n the Jeans & Workwcar segment are
likely to dechine shightly The deciine in sales
15 also set to continue 1n the Men's & Sports-
wear segiment

§0

The sales forecast for Russia 15
subject to pronounced uncertainty From
today’s point of view we expect sales to
contract by at least 25 percent or EUR 4

million, based on the fact that retaiiers sull

" have unsold stocks of 2014 merchandise and

are expecting lower sales this year In con-
trast, we expect rising sales volumes in our
Retail business including the e-commerce
channels

Consolidated net profit for 2014/15
expected to be stable or slightly lower
Consohdated net profit for 2014/15 should
remamm more or less stable, possibly a
little lower than last year Profitabihty should
benefit from lower extraordinary expenses
which amounted to EUR 2 6 million 1n the
fiscal year 2013/14 and are expected to
decline to a clearly lower figure m the
cuirent fiscal year The closure of the
Sindelfingen operations will lead to lower
personnel and non-personnel costs, part-
cularly as from the second half of 2015

In contrast, bwlding the business
in France and Spamn will entail high addi-
tional structural costs The coilective wage
scttlements and the expansion of the Retail
busmess will 1ncrease operating expenses
further

The gross profit margin in the year
2014715, as well as gross profits in absolute
terms, willi most likely come 1n at the pre-
vious year's level Higher current expenses
and the dechine 1n extraordinary expenses
will most likely offset one another Conse-
guently, EBIT after special effects should
rema:n stable but could also decline shghtly
given an adverse turn of cvents during the
year In the Premium Brands segment EBIT
after special effects should remam stable,
reflecting the builldimg of business 1n the
new sales regions In the Jeans & Workwear
segment, EBIT after special effects could
come n shghtly lower hecause of the shrin-
king sales volume In the Men's & Sports-
wear segment, EBIT after special effects 1s
set to umprove as a result of the lower cur-
rent and one-off expenses at Gin Torme




difficulties
currently attached to forecastiug the per-
formance of the economy and the clothing

However, g@mven the

retail sector, 1n particular, we once agam
pomnt to the uncertainty surrounding this
outlook

Stable headcount expected

Three factors will materially influence the
number of employees in 2014/15 The
closure of the Smdelfingen operations will
entaill the loss of another 20 positions In
contrast, new jobs will be created mn our
own 1etail operations The building of the
business 1n France already led to lurings for
our local sales force and for the first two re-
tail outlets in November 2014 Employment
m our two preduction plants will proba-
bly remain more or less stable The same 15
expected for the Group’s everall headcount
{2,250 as at November 30, 2014), which 1s
unlikely to change materially

Significantly higher mvestmenti because
of ERP project

Fhe sale of several works of art meant
that our net investments in the fiscal year
2013/14 were relatively low at EUR 3 7 mul-
lion Investments are set to rise significantly
1n the current fiscal year 2014/15 given that

the largest instalment of the ERP project
budget becomes due when the first partial
solution goes productive In addition, EUR
0 6 mullion will be 1nvested 1n the conver-
s1on of a former warehouse 1in Herford into
an office bulding to replace the tacilities
previously used in Sindelfingen

We intend to compensate for the
hguidity drain from these investments hy
reducing our net werking capital particu-
larly 1 the aiea of inventory We expect
free cash flow in the fiscal year 2014/15 to
be approximately balanced with net debt
remaunng stable

Assessment of the forecasts provided
mn the 2012/13 Annual Report
Our company has essentially fulfilled the
forecast for the fiscal year 2013/14 provided
m the previous Annual Report Back then,
we predicted single-digit sales growth and a
substantial double-digit rise 1in EBIT before
spectal effects Both forecasts proved accu-
rate, with sales up by 4 percent and EBIT
before spectal effects surging hy 46 percent
Our forecast put the expected conso-
hdated net prefit at approxtmately EUR 7
millton Due to the high costs entailed by the
closure of the Sindelfingen operations, this
figure eventually came 1in at EUR 6 million

Forecast for 2014/15 - Change vs. previous year

Trend Actual
201415 2314
Sales i PremumBrands o+ 1653
. Jeans & Warkwear - 694
o Men's & Sporiswear - 24
L Total - 371
Earnings EBIT +/- 92
) Conschidated netingome +/ . _ B0
Capital expenditure + §2

positive deviation by single-digic percentage
++ posibve deviation by double digit percentage

negative dewiation by single digit percentage
- negative dewation by double-digit percentage
f+ stable outfook
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RISK AND OPPORTUNITY
REPORT INCLUDING FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Risk and opportunity report
Good corporate management means, on the
one hand, securing the company’s future
through the forward-looking exploitation of
market opportunities On the other hand,
active risk management 1s required to protect
the company against hazards arising at short
notice The aim 15 to 1dentity and, wherever
possible, to quantify risks at an early stage, sc
that an appropriate response can be taken to
avord or at least reduce damages

The Management Board has installed
a risk management system which meets the
requirements of a multi-hrand company with
a decentralised, regionally distnibuted orga-
nmisation The revolving mostly monthly re-
porting system therefore supplies not only
the data which are requred for operational
management but also the data which are
relevant for the quantification of nsks The
Supervisory Board’s Audit Committee 1cecel-
ves a quarterly risk report which supports
its own work This report classifies all risks
as high, medium or low depending on the
probability of occurrence and the size of the
risk The regular risk reports are regularly
reviewed by the Management Board and the
Risk Manager for appropriateness, effective-
ness and their contents The Internal Audit
Department is involved in risk management
through ongoing montorng and review of
the Group’s policies and processes Ahlers
distinguishes between risks that are moni-
tored and contirolled centrally and 1isks that
are recorded n the operating umts and
reported to the headquarters
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The central nsks for Ahlers are shown below

- Profitability of the divisions

- Procurement risks

- Bad debt nsks

- License risks

- Legal nsks

- Liqudity nisks

- Risks arising from the wapital structure

- Currency risks

- interest rate risks

- 1T risks avardabihty and data protection

- Insurance aganst business disruptions,
loss of goods and thurd-party clauns for
damages

- Risks and opportunities arsing from
the works of art

To mitigate the risk of a decline in the profita-
bility of the divisions, Ahlers constantly mon1-
tors all relevant key figures of the individual
brands such as the pricmg margim and the
gross profit margin as well as the comphance
with cost budgets As seon as the first signs of
a deviation from the plan and, as a result, of
dechmng profitabihity are 1dentified, manage-
ment starts to look for and analyse the causes
and to develop counter-measures together
with the units affected

Procurement rmisks are a constant
challenge because of the qualtative and
quantitative demands made on fashion com-
panies Fashion companies are forced to
reconcile the conflicting demands of cost ma-
nagement and reliability, both stagnation and
the hasty changes of suppliers may put the
company at risk Ahlers reduces these risks
through a careful and early selection of com-
petent suppliers as well as thorough quahty
cheeks Manufacturers dre selected under
risk and opportunty aspects, the latter may
relate to more favourable regional production
costs or currency changes Risks increasingly
arise from non-complance with social stan-
dards To muigate these risks, suppliers are
obhged to sign clearly formulated agreements
and are subjected to 1egular controls

The bad debt risks of Ahlers AG are
mitigated through
creditworthingss and msurance against had
debts The company retramns fiom hedging

strict examination of




recetvables only following critical examina-
tion and, 1f available, an analysis of the custo-
mer relationslup to date Bad debt risks that
cannot be msured must be approved by the
Management Board Such decisions are revie-
wed regularly after no more than six months

License risks may result from the ter-
nunation of livense agreements or the transfer
of trademark rights to third parties To mini-
mise these risks, Ahlers renews such agree-
ments for long terms and constantly monttors
the national and international registration of
its trademarks as well as comphance with
license agreements with third parties

No significant legal risks from hitiga-
tion o1 similar proceedings which could ne-
gatively mnpact the Group’s profitability were
tdentificd during the reporting period Insu-
rance cover 15 in place for warranty and pro-
duct hability claims However, no such claims
of any sigmficance have been lodged aganst
the company

The hqudity risk and the risk of cash
flow fluctuations are monitored constantly
Liquudity 15 guaranteed by sufficient credit
lines whrch cover seasonal and unexpected
cash needs The credit lines are made availa-
ble by several hanks, drawings against these
lines stood at less than 50 percent at the end
of the fiscal year Liquidity 1s ensured by re-
gular communication with the lending inst-
tutiens as well as sufficiently long-term credit
lines covermg the basic requirements Cash
flows fromn the actual business activity are
well prediciable over a season Cash flow 15
primarily influenced by profitability and fluc-
tuations mn net working capital

No matetial risks arise fiom the capital
stricture The Ahlers Group 15 charactensed
hy a high equity ratio and low net halnlitzes
Positions that are difficult to calculate such as
pension provisions represent a low percen-
tage of total assets

Currency nsks are relevant for
international corporations, especially when
purchasing 1s handled 1n another currency
than sales, which 1s the case for most fashion
companies T'his 1s why the US dollar amounts
required for procurement i Asia are hedged
on the hasis of a gudeline agreed with the
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Supervisory Board for each season, according
to which the foreign currency amounts re-
gquired for the seasonal cycle are hedged at
mimmum and maximum rates The necessity
of these seasonal hedges is regularly re-
viewed against actual requirements Ahlers
and 1ts competitors are obviously exposed to
the rish of an extended weakness in the curo
which would make imports from Asia more
expensive beyond the hedged period In such
a case, management would consider protec-
ting the gross profit margm through mede-
rate price rises and through the relocation of
manufacturing contracts to Eastern Europe

Interest rate risks arise wn the event
of changes mm market rates on debt capital
The risk of rising borrowing «osts relates to
floating-rate loans and follow-up financing
that may be 1equued Ahlers’ interest rate
risk 1s low because of the relatively low debt
capual, but changes in market mterest rates
are nevertheless monitored closely Loans are
either raised at fixed interest rates or mterest
rate swaps are used to hedge the interest rate
risks arsing from large debt financings if this
15 Justified by market expectations

IT risks result from the growing trend
towards the networking of information
systems and the need for their constant avail-
abihty Computer systems and networks may
break down, which would lead to & massive
disruption of the business opcrations More-
over, unauthorised data access or the misuse
of data represents a growing threat We
mitigate these risks through the wuse of
modern hardware and software meeting the
latest security standards Cornpetent internal
and external cxperts ensure Lhat Ahlers’ IT
systems are permanently protected and opit-
mised These measures aie supported by re-
gular mvestments in hardware and software,
virus scanners, firewall systems and access
controls The security of the IT infrastructure
of Ahlers AG is confirmed by the “Trusted Site
Infrastiucture” seal awarded by the German
TUV

Comprechensive nsurance has been
taken out to covet, among other things, the
nsks from business disruptions, loss of goods
and claims for damages A review of all in-
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surance policies conducted m the previous
years htas not only led to savings on insurance
premiums but has alse helped optimise the
insurance cover Followmng this optinusation
process, we have had our insurance cover
reviewed by an independent expert

Risks and opportunities arising
from the works of art owned by Ahlers AG
ause from long-term value changes in the art
market Management regularly reviews the
carrymg amounts of the company’s works of
art Sustainable dechnes in the market value
would result in write-downs During the past
fiscal year, a sworn expert was commissioned
to perform a valuation of a sample of the art
collection The valuation farled to 1dentify any
need for write-downs No matenal write-
downs were required before this valuati-
on, either Instead, we beliove that there are
hidden reserves in our works of art, which are
probably moderate, however, and difficult to
quantify Many of the works of art have been
acquired only recently, which means that the
time for value appeciation has heen short

The divisional risks of the Ahlers Group
comprise

- Success of collections

- [nventories

- Customer dependcence

Every season, fashion manufacturers
arc exposed to the risk of their collections not
being accepted by the market and sales re-
venues declining as a result Tumely 1eports
on pre-sales and monthly reports from the
divisions about the market situation keep the
Management Board informed about the mar-
ket strength of our products The integration
of sell-through information from retailers and
our own stores clearly facilitates the creation
of products that sell successfully, and allows
to expand production of fast selhng 1tems at
short notice

Managing the 1nventory risk 1s an
mcreasingly umportant task in the fashion
industty On the one hand, high product
availability 1s key to successful cooperation
with rectatlers, on the other hand, however,
mventories must be sold by the end of the

season to ease the hquidity position of the
company Ahlers mitigates this risk by means
of systematic planmung and selling principles
and through regular mventory checks, all of
which helps to keep mmventories at the right
level

The risk of dependence on mmdividual
customers 1s increased by the fact that tradit-
onal specialist retailers are mcreasingly being
driven out of the market by large chans,
as a result, large customers account for a
growing percentage of sales Large suppliers
providing retailers with professional services
and lugh-quahty products benefit from this
trend Ahlers communicates with customers
at all levels to wdentify market requirements
and problems at an early stage At the same
time, Ahlers reduces its customer depen-
dence through ongoing imternattonahsation,
vertical integration and the development of
its own retatl activities This also includes the
expansion of the company’s own e-comnmerce
acuvities, as the Internet 1s gaimng 1mpor-
tance as a distnbution channel for clothing
In addition, the company has implemented a
reporting system which ensures that dehve-
ry ratios, punctuaity of dehveiies, orders on
hand and sales revenues are monitored cons-
tantly to provide all customers with excellent
services and mntensify customer relationships
The Ahlers Group’s multi-brand strategy miti-
gates the risk of customer dependence msofal
as the brands are posihoned differently and
are therefore targeted at different customers
and retail formats

The risks outlined above also entail
opportumties In pariicular, the constant mo-
mtoiing of the profitability of the business
units presents opportunities to wdentify new
developments In particular, the reports on di-
visional risks provide important findings re-
garding market opportunities 1f, for instance,
the reports describe changes in customer de-
mand 1n certain markets, the early responsc
to these changes may entail opportunities
‘The situation on the procurement side is si-
rmlar The fact that all key markets are moni-
tored simultaneously allows the company to
quichly shift to those countries where prices
ate cotnpetrtive and telrable quality 1s oftered




As n the previous year, the rish report
covers the full basis of consolidation There
were no matenal changes in the risk manage-
ment system compated to the provious year

The overall risk situation of Ahlers AG
and the Group did not change matenally in
the fiscal year 2013/14 as compared to the
previous year From today's point of view, we
ran wdentify no risks that could jeopardise the
company's ahility to continue as a going con-
cern either on their own or 1 combination
with other risks

Risk report on the use of
financial instruments
Ahlers sources meoest of 1ts goods mn Asia,
where the US dollar is the standard curren-
cy To prevent losses ansing from short-term
exchange rate fluctuations, the procurement
processes are hedged seasonally on the basis
of a quantitative procurement plan with a ho-
rizon of up to 12 months The company pri-
martly uses forward exchange contracts for
this purpose Options may also be used to a h-
mited extent Distribution acuvities m foreign
currencies, e ¢ the Swiss franc, are hedged to
a much lower extent

The company is currently financed by
hilateral loan agreements with banks The
hasic requirements are usuaily covered by
medium-term loans with an mitial matunty
of up to five years hom seveial banks Short-
term credit lines ai1e used to cover seasonal
peaks

INTERNAL CONTROL AND

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
pursuant to sections 289 para 5,315 para 2
No. 5 HGB with regard to the accounting
process and explanatory report

Two major components ensure that risks
in the company are avoided or mitigated,
namely a system of instructions and rules of
procedure, on the ene hand, and controlhng
and informing reports, on the other hand
Rules of procedure for the Supervisory
Board, the Management Boaird and the Mana-
ging Dircotors of all Group compames define
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the rooms for manoeuvre and the involve-
ment of different hierarchy levels in the deci-
sion-making process Individual instructions
that are vahd for all employees aie posted on
the Intranet of the Ahlers Group together with
the Group’s value statement

Controlling with  different
degrees of detaill on the risk situation are
sent to all officers at defined swtable inter-
vals, usually monthly 1he Audit Committee of

reports

the Supervisoiy Board 1s informed about the
central rishs and the segment nsks m a
quarterly risk report

Internal controlling system in the
accounting and consolidation process
The nternal control system of the accounting
and consolidation process aims to minimse
sources of error and 1dentify errors quickly
For thus purpose, the accounting departments
of the Group are organised centrally per
couniry, m some cases they have a cross-
border orgamisatton The participation of
external service providers m the accounting
process 1s usually confined to tax computa-
nons In mnor exceptional cases, financial
statements are prepared externally

The SAP system forms the techmgcal
backbone of the accounting system The re-
glons have active access to the SAP system,
while the central erganisation has controlhng
access The mamtenance and updating of
SAP master data and the system support are
handled centrally

The Group accounting manual ensures
that all recurrent incidents are treated con-
sistently New incidents are agreed with
the Gioup headquarters Changes in Group
accounting are immediately communicated to
all employees mvolved as well as to external
service providers concerned The subsidianies
use standardised questionnarres forreporting,
which are completed by the respective ac-
counting departments for each monthly, quar-
terly and annual financial statements These
include the local and the 1FRS statements as
well as the reconcihation of recewvables and
hahmhties between the Group companies All
data are pooled in the central consohdati-
on department which manages all mternal
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teconctliations, consohdations, the momto-
ring of reporting deadlines and the quahty
control of the data reported The department
uses a consolidation software programme to
process all separdte financial statements into
the consohdated financial statements The
consolidation process 1s geared to stringent
control as well Reconalation differences i
the consolidation are communicated to the
subsicdharies involved and corrected

The Group generally apphes the four-
eye principle Important accounting deci-
sions such as the measurement of inventories
and 1ecewvables are reviewed and approved
by the Management Board Flat hierarchies,
direct reporting lines and the preparation of
monthly interim statements allow risks to be
wdentified and errors to be detected at an car-
ly stage

The Internal Audit Department re-
gularly addresses aspects that are relevant
for the financial statements and performs 4
controlling function n the annual accounting
process In this context, a focus 1s on the ma-
nagement and the measurement of ivento-
ries, which are especially challenging 1n the
clothung sector and unportant for the result
The effectivencss of the mternal control and
11sk management system m the accounang-
relevant processes 15 also regularly reviewed
by the Internal Audit Department

The processes, systems and controls
waplemented sufficiently ensure that the
Group’s accounting process complies with
International Financal Reporting Standards
(IFRS), the German Comumercial Code {HGB)
as well as other accounting-relevant rules and
laws and 15 thus permissible

OTHER DISCLOSURES
COMPENSATION REPORT

The compensation ot the Management Board
members 15 decided by the Supervisory Board
and regulaily reviewed for appropriateness
by the Supervisory Board The criteria taken
into account m this review are the size acti-

vity and economic situation of Ahlers AG, on
the one hand, and the tasks of the respecti-
va Management Board member and his/ her
peisenal contnbution to the company's per-
formance, on the other hand In the opuuon
of the Supervisory Beard, the total compen-
sation and 1ts individual components are ap-
propriate given the tasks and performance of
the respective Management Board members
and the financial situation of Ahlers AG The
Human Resources Committee prepares the
Supervisory Board’s appomtment decisions
It submits proposals to the Supervisory Board
regarding the compensation, the compensa-
tien scheme and 1ts regular review as well as
the conclusion, amendment and termination
of the employment contracts of the Manage-
ment Board members

The compensation 1s always performance-

oriented and consists of the following ¢compo-

nents

- Afixed annual salary, which 1s paid month-
ly and regularly checked for appropriate-
ness by the Supervisoly Board

- A profit-related bonus, which 15 a fixed
percentage of the consolidated net income
for the year The profit-related bonus 15
capped with effect from the fiscal year
2013/14

- A target-related bonus, which depends on
the achievement of certain targets set by the
Supervisory Board The amountdepends on
the degree to which the targets are reached
The target-related bonus 15 capped

- A long-term bonus oriented towaids the
company'’s sustainahle development whose
amount 15 deternuned on the basts of the
cvolution of Group sales revenues, Group
earmngs, net working capital and the share
price over two 3-year periods The 3-year
periods are from December 2012 to
November 2015 and from December 2014
to November 2017 for Dr Ahlers and
D1 Kolsch and from May 2014 to Apri
2017 for Mr Hilger The compensation will
be disbursed mn April 2016 and April 2018
for the two first-inentioned Board members
and m July 2017 for the last-mentioned At
the time of thew issue, the share price-




based components of all 3-year tranches
had an intrinsic value totaling EUR 144
thousand The long-term: bonus 15 capped

- Other compensation components cxist i
the form of a company car and a set of
clothing for Mr Hilger and Dr Kolsch and
a company flat at the head office for Dy
Ahlers Personal use of company cars 15
capped No pension commutments for
Management Board members exist, nor
have any leans been granted to the latter

The Management Board contracts do not
contain any explicit severance pay provisions
that would apply my the event of premature
ternunation of the contract, nor are there
any change of controtl clauses that would take
cffect 1 the event of a takeover No pension
commitments were made to the mcumbent
members of the Management Board

The 2011 Annual Shareholders’ Mee-
ting decided not to report the compensation of
the Management Board members individually
for another five years The total compensati-
on of the Management Board 1s shown helow

KEUR 2013114 2012113
Salary 1,043 840
Annual bonus® N 664 451
Miscellaneous 73 64
Total 1,780 1,355

* composed of a profit related target related and long-term
ariented bonus The long-term bonus 15 included at an amount of
EUR 109 theusand [previous year EUR 18 thousand)

Former members of the Management Board
and the mdnagement of Adolf Ahlers GmbH
and their survivors received total compensa-
tion of EUR 77 thousand (previous year EUR
76 thousand) during fiscal 2033/14

&7

Supervisory Board compensation
The Supervisory Board compensation 1s
governed by section 18 of the statutes Simi-
lar to the Management Board compensation,
the compensation for the Supervisory Board
15 also geared to the s1ize and the economic
situation of Ahlers AG as well as to the tasks
of each individual member of the Super-
visory Board The compensation consists of a
fixed and a varable component 1he variable
component 1s oriented towards the sustain-
able growth of the company Itis calculated as
a fixed per-thousand fraction of the average
consolidated net income of the past three ye-
ars taking a defined threshoeld value into ac-
count, and 1s capped Additional compensati-
on 15 paid te the Chairperson and the Deputy
Chairperson of the Supervisory Board as well
as the Commuitee Chairpersons

KEUR 201314 2012113
Fixed compensation o5 105
Variable compensation ) E o ﬂ _
Total 150 135

All expenses mcurred by the Supervisory
Board members 1n conjunction with thewr
mandates as well as the value-added tax
charged on their compensation are refunded
No loans are granted to members of the Su-
pervisory Board lawyers Feddersen Heuer
& Partner, of which Supervisory Board Chair-
man Prof Dr lHeuer 15 a partner, provided
the company in late 2013 with legal advice
10 an acquisihon project and a corporate law
1ssue and invoiced a total amount of EUR 11
thousand for their services Von Ah & Part-
ner AG, Zurich {(Switzerland), in which Super-
visory Board member and Audit Commuttee
Chairwoman Prof Dr von Ah 1s a paitner,
provided tax consulting services to the Ah-
lers Group m fiscal 2013/14, for which an
amount of EUR 24 thousand was mvoiced In
accordance with section 114 of the German
Stock Corporation Act (AktG). all benefits had
been approved by the Supervisory Board

L)

= RN

0,

-
-
[}
.
[ab]
o
-
=
5}
=
[a5]
o
10}
c
8
=
_
=
2
=
=
o
=
o
>




TAKEOVER-RELATED INFORMATION
AND EXPLANATORY REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 289
PARA 4,315 PARA 4 HGB AND
SECTION 176 PARA 1

SENTENCE 1 AKTG

On November 30, 2014, the share capital of
Ahlers AG amounted to EUR 43,200,000 00
and 1s divided wato 7,600,314 common shares
(556 percent) and 6,081,206 preferred
shares (44 4 percent) Each of the common
and preferred shares represents an imputed
EUR 3 16 of the share capital Pursuant to
section 22 of the statutes, each common share
represents one vote at the Annual Sharchoi-
ders’ Meeting According to section 5 para
1 of the statutes, the preferrcd shares are
non-voting shares There are no voting right
controls in case that employees hold a share
m the capital of Ahlers AG

500 common shaies are regstered
shares with transfer restrictions, which
confer a right to nomunate a Supervisory
Board memher These shares are held by
Westfalisches Textilwerk Adolf Ahlers Sttftung
& Co KG The remawming 13,681,020 shares
are bearer shares

On November 30, 2014, chawrwoman
Dr Steila A Ahlers held 51 8 percent of the
share capital of Ahlers AG hoth directly and
ndirectly through Westfahsches Textilwerk
Adolf Ahlers Suftung & Co KG as well as
WTW-Betelhgungsgesellschaft mbH She held
76 6 percent of the common shares and 20 8
percent of the preferred shaies

Pwsuant to scction 8 of the statutes,
the Management Beard of Ahlers AG con-

sists of at least one member The Supervisory
Board determimnes the number of Manage-
ment Board members and may appownt a
Chairperson or Spokesperson of the Manage-
ment Board as well as a Deputy Chauperson
or Deputy Spokesperson of the Management
Board Vice members of the Management
Board may also be appointed

According to section 179 et seq of
the German Stock Corporation Act {AktG),
amendments to the statutes may be decided
by at least three quarters of the share capi-
tal tepresented at the Annual Shareholders’
Mecting The Supervisory Board 1s authorised
to autonomeusly make amendments to the
statutes to the extent that such amendments
merely relate to the wording (section 27 of the
statutes)

Pursuant to section 4 para 2 of the sta-
tutes, the Management Board 1s authorised,
subject to the approval of the Supervisory
Board, to mcrease the company’s share capt-
tal by up to RUR 21 6 muthon (authorised ca-
pital) by May 2, 2017 by 1ssuing new common
bearer shares and/or non-voting preferred
shaies against cash or non-cash contribu-
tions once or several fimes

The Management Board may exclude
shareholders’ subscription rights with the
«onsent of the Supervisory Board in the fol-
lowing cases

(1) to offset fractional amounts,

(1) if the shaies are 1ssued against a non-
cash contribution, especally 1n conjunc-
non with the acgusihon of companes,
operdlions or equity mvestments, i the




context of mergers and/or for the pur-
pose of acquiring other assets including
rights and receivables, this authorisation
applies only to the exclusion of subscrip-
tion rights for <hares that represent no
more than 20 percent ot the share capital
of EUR

(e up to an amount

8,640,000 00},

in) 1f the shares are 1ssued agamst a cash
contribution and the
share 15 not materally lower than the
market price of the histed shares entailing
basically the same rights at the tme
of the 1ssue of the shares In this case,
the subscription nght may be excluded
only 1f the number of shares 1ssued this
way, together with the number of own
shares sold ex rights durnng the term of
this authorisation pursuant to scction
186 para 3 sentence 4 AktG and the
number of shares that may arise from the
exercise of option and/or conversion
rights or the fulfilment of conversion

ISsu¢ price per

obligauons under bonds with warrants
and/or convertible bonds and/or profit
participation nights that are
durmng the term of this authorisation m

1ssued

an ex-rights 1ssue m accordance with
sechon 186 para 3 sentence 4 Ak,
does not exceed 10 percent of the share
capital at the time of the commg into
effect of this authorisation or if this
numbe 1s lower dat the tme this authon-
sation 1s exercised,

(v} to the extent that this 1s required to grant
the holders of option
rights/obligations a subscrniption right

Or  Lonversion

to new shares 1 the amount to which
they would he entitled after exercising
their option or conversion rights or
meeting their conversion obhigation as a
shareholder

With reference to agenda item 7, the Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting of May 3, 2012 additio-
nally authonsed the Management Board, sub-
ject to the consent of the Supervisory Board,
to acquire shares 1n the company of any type
(commoen or preferred shares) representing
up to 10 percent of the company’s share capi-
tal m an amount of EUR 43,200,000 G0 as of
the day the resoluton was passed until May
2, 2017

The authorisation may be exercised
once or multiple tumes m full or partial
amounts for one or several purposes by the
company or by companies dependent on 1t ot
majority-owned by 1t or by third parties ac-
ting for the latter’s account or for the account
of the company The acquisiion may be con-
fined to only one type of shares and may be
effected via the stock exchange or via a pubhg
invitation to subimit sales bids The purchase
price may not be more than 10 percent hughey
or lower than the curent market price

I'ie public offering and/or the pubhc
invitation to submt offers for sale may he
subject to addinonal condittons
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The Management Board 1s authonsed,
with the consent of the Supervisory Board, to
use the own shares acquired on the basis of
this authorisation or of one or several pre-
vious authornsations for all legally permus-
sible purpases, especially for the following
purposes
(1} The shares may be redeemed without
any further resclution by the Annual Share-
holders’ Meeting
(2) The shares may be sold i another way
than via the stock exchange or via an oftering
to all shareholders if the cash price paid for
the shares 1s not materially helow the mar-
ket price of the company's shares of the same
type and entading baswally the same rights
The number of shares sold this way, together
with the number of new shares 1ssued from
authotised capital in an ex-rights 1ssue du-
ring the term of this authorisation pulsuz'mt
to section 186 para 3 sentence 4 AKtG and
the number of shares that may anise from the
exercise of option and/or conver sion rights or
the fulfilment of conversion obligations un-
der bonds with warrants and/or convertible
bonds and/or profit partictpation rights that

are 1ssued during the term of this authorisa-
tion 1 an ex-rights 1ssue pursuant to section
186 para 3 sentence 4 AktG, does not exceed
10 percent of the share capital The relevant
share caprtal 15 the lower of the share capital
at the tmo the Annual Sharcholders’ Meeting
decides on the present authorisation ar the
share capital at the ime the present authori-
sation 1s exercised

(3) The shares may be sold against non-cash
contitbutions, especiaily i conjunction with
the acquusition of companies, operations or
cquity investiments, i the context of mergers
and/or for the purpose of acquining other
assets including nghts and recewvahles

Shareholders’ subscription rights to the own
shares acquired on the basis of this authori-
sation or of previous authorisations may be
cxcluded 1if they are used 1n accordance with
the authonsanons under (2) and (3) above

No change of control clauses exist Nor
has the company signed compensation agree-
ments with the members of the Management
Board or other employees that would apply 1n
case of a tahcover Ind




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT

The corporate goveinance statement to be
1ssued pursuant to section 289%a HGB 15
contained m the Corporate Governance Re-
port on page 16 et seq It 1s also posted on the
Internet at www ahlers-ag com

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We would like to point out that in the case
of forwaid-looking statements actual events
may differ constderably from anticipated de-
velopments, should one of these uncertain-
ties, whether mentioned or not, materialise or
should the assumptions on which the state-
ments are based prove to he inaccurdte

n

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Pursuant to section 312 para 3 of the
German Steck Corporation Act (AktG), the
Management Board declares “Fach of the
transactions mentioned 1n the related party
disclosures was made on terms equivalent
to those that prevail in arm's length trans-
actions, based on the urcumstances known to
us at the time when such transactions were
made No measures were taken or omtted at
the mstigation or 1n the interest of the con-
trolhng company or one of its affibated
companies

Ahleis AG
Herford, February 23, 2015

The Management Board
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET as of November 30, 2014

ASSETS
KEUR Notes Nav 30, 2014 Nov 30,2013
A Non-current assets
| Property, plant and equipment {11}
1 Lland, land nghts and buildings 15,424 15,507
2 Technical equipment and machines 1,231 963
3 Other equipment, plant and office equipment 10,747 11,184
4 Payments on account and plant under construction 26 24
27,428 27,684
It Intangible assets (12}
1 Industnal property nghts and similar nghts and assets 11,966 11728
2 Payments on account 749
12,15 11,728
I At-equity investments (13} 3 ya
IV Other nen-current assets (14}
1 Other financial assets 1028 1,550
2 Qther assets 17 826 19,609
18,854 21,159
V Deferred tax assets (8) 1,395 1.432
Total non-current assets 60,703 62,214
B Current assets
I Inventones {15}
1 Raw matenals and consumables 24165 24,896
2 Work in progress 368 367
3 Fimished goods and merchandise 54 883 50421
79.43 75,684
I Trade recenvables 8 BB JIETS _
Il Other current assets (17)
1 Otherfinencralassets 1980 AL
_ 2 Recewables from affiliates 3 o L 0 149
3 Current income tax claims o L 64 2759
4 (Other assets 4803 3825
1407 6,747
IV Cash and cash equivalents (18) 6,308 3928
Total current assets 129,699 120,234
Total assets 190,402 182,448




AN

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

KEUR Notes Nov 30, 2014 Nov 30,2013
A Equity {19}
| Subscribed capital (20) 43,200 43,200
Il Capital reserve {23) 15,024 15024
Il Retamned earnings e 2 49408 50472
IV Eguity difference from currency translation (25) 300 -1,605
Equity attnbutable to shareholders of Ahlers AG 107,933 107,091
YV Non-controlling interests 2,339 2,249
Total equity 110,272 109,330

B Non-current habilines

| Pension provistons (26) _ 4 890 4642
[I' Other provisicns (27) e 3§§_ .
Il Financial habilities (28]
1 Other financial habilities 22,963 221N
2_Non-controlling interests in partnerships _1_5?3 ) 1,229 2
- 24,198 25,400 %
IV Other habilites B 25 g
V Deferred tax liabilities (8) 3.198 2455 <
5
Total non-current habilities 32,1m 32,885 E
[a5]
g
C Current liabilities =
| Current income tax hiabiliies s I é
Il Other pravisions (29) R 2,90
N Fwnancial labilities {28) 894 6469
_V_Trado payabies _ . mam e
Y Other liahilites (30)
1 lablvestoaffiates 202 1672
2 Other liabiities 11,013 10,855
13,505 12127
Total current habilities 47,353 40,223
Total liabiiities 80,130 73,108

Total equity and liabilities 190,402 182,448
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT for fiscat 2013/14

KEUR Notes 2013/14 201213
1 Sales 1 257108 246,717
2 Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 2919 5887
3 Other operating income {2) 4006 4557
4 Cost of materials {3) 131,710 -128,335
5 Personnel expenses L __(_4_) -55,208 5212

—_6 Other operating expenses T T (5}:;__ -62.547 S 63,495
7 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses

on property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and other non-current assets (6} -5,409 -5,282

8 Interest and similar income 7} _ 248 352
9 Interest and similar expenses (] -9m -1,013

10 Pre-tax profit 8417 6,676

1t Income taxes (8) -2,385 -1121

12. Consolidated net income 6,032 5,555

13 of which attributable to

- Shareholders of Ahlers AG 5,768 5,192
- Non-controlling interests {9) 264 383

Earnings per share {EUR} undiluted/ diluted (10}

- Common shares L 036
- Preferred shares 045 041

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

KEUR Notes 201314 201213

12 Consohdated net income 6,032 5,555

Not to he reclassified to profit or loss

14 Actual gains and fosses on

defined benefit plans i24} -329 133

To ba reclassified to profit or loss

15 Netresult from cash flow hedges o 25) 153 -3

16 Corcency translaton differences .. 429

1/ Otherchanges o ) L T

I—B_ Etil-ar comprehensive income after taxes {8) 1,402 -536

19 Comprehensive income 7,434 5.9

20 of which attnbutable to

- Shareholders of Ahlers AG . _ 134 4858
- Non controlling interests 89 160

]




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for fiscal 2013/14

KEUR 2013113 2012113
Consolidated net income _ 6032 5585
Income taxes 2,385 112
Interest Income / Interest expenses 842 661
Depreciation and amortisation / appreciation (net) 5.409 5,282
losses / gains irmhgﬂsggsals of non-current assets (net) o _-50_4_ - __-#3@44
Change in inventories and

other current and non current assets -6,822 10,370
Change in non-cusrant provisions -103 -b08
Change 1n non controlling interests in partnerships

and other non-current hakilities 5 3
Change n current provisions 879 -468
Change in other current lizbibities 3319 2675
interest pad 339 -930
Interest recelved 204 242
Income taxes paud 2,134 -3.972
Income taxes feceived 2429 2.6M
Cash flow from aperating activities 10,942 1,518
Cash receipts from disposals of items of property, plant and equipment 228 793
Cash receipts from disposals of intangble assets - 26
Cash recerpts from disposals of other non-current assets 2515 701
Payments for snvestment in property plant and equipment 4476 -4.969
Payments for mvestment in intangible assets 1,19 -309
Payments for investment in athar non-current assets 317 546
Cash flow from investing activities -3,709 -4,304
Dwidend payments -6,502 -8,575
Additions / Repayment of nen-current financial habilities 1758 2480
Cash flow from financing activities -8,260 -6,095
Net change in hiquid funds 1,027 -8,881
Effects of changes in the scope of exchange rates L L __-_2§§__
Liquid funds as of December 1 ) R 2,669 11783
Liquid funds as of November 30 1,63 2,669

We refer to details under No 18 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further infosmation on the

composition of hqurd funds
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for fiscal 2013/14

Equity attnibutable to shareholders of Ahfers AG

Non-controlling interest

Subscribed capital

Equity Accumulated Total
diff from Total othercom- nan-con-
Common  Preferred Capital  Retained currency Group prehensive  trolling Total
KEUR shares shares  reserve eamings  translation holdings  Capital ncome  interest Equity
Notes {20) {20} {23) (24) {25)
Balance as of
Nov 30,2012/
Dec 1,2012 24,000 19,200 15,024 53724 -1,140 110,808 1,454 635 2,089 112,897
Total net income
for the perod 5324 -465 4859 160 160 5019
Dividends paid -8,576 -8,576 -8,576
Balance as of
Nov 30, 2013/
Dec 1,2013 24,000 19,200 15,024 50,472 -1,605 107,091 1,454 795 2,249 109,340
Total net income
for the penod N 5,440 1,905 7,345 L 89 89 743
Dwidends paid L -6,502 6,502 L -6 502
Balance as of
Nov 30, 2014 24,000 19,200 15,024 489,409 300 107,933 1,454 884 2,338 110271
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AHLERS AG

for the fiscal year from December 1, 2013 to November 30, 2014

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Ahlers AG 15 one of the biggest European
menswear manufacturers The company ori-
gmated as a textile business founded mn 1919
by Adelf Ahlers in the Frisian town of Jever
In 1932, the company moved 1ts headquar-
ters from Oldenburg to Herford, 1t went pu-
blic m 1987 Ahlers AG’s headquarters are
located 1n Elverdisser Stiasse 313 in Herford
and the company 1s registered 1n the commer-
cial register of the district cowt of Bad Oeyn-
hausen (HRB 6541)

Ahlers AG shares are traded on the
stock exchanges m Frankfurt/Mamn and
Dusseldorf, as well as over the counter at
other German exchanges

The fiscal year begins on Decermber
T and ends on November 30 The consohda-
ted financial statements are prepared m ac-
cordance with IFRS as applicable in the EU,
as well as apphcable supplementary regula-
tions from the German Commercial Code as
stipulated 1n section 315a (1) of the HGB

The consolidated financial statements
are preparced in Euros and most figures are
given 1t thousands of EUR (KEUR) Due to the
fact that the consohdated financial statements
are prepared 1n thousands of EUR, rounding
differences can arise since computations of
individual items are based on figures in Euros
For the sake of clarity in the presentation, 1n-
dividual items fromn the meome statement and
balance sheet have been summarised These
ttems are detatled and explained in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements

The consohidated financial statements
were prepared by the Management Board of
Ahlers AG ont February 23, 2015 and submit-
ted to the Supervisory Board for approval
The latter has the possibihity to amend the
consohidated financial statements after their
release by the Management Board The con-
solidated financal statements are deemed 1o
be approved upon their endorscment by the

7

Supervisory Board unless the Management
Board and the Supervisory Board decide to
have themn approved by the Annual Sharehol-
ders’ Meeting

2. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The consoldated financial statements of
Ahlers AG were prepared in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Stan-
dards (IFRS) of the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), taking into conside-
ration the interpretations of the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Commt-
tee on the IFRS (IFRIC), as well as applicable
supplementary regulations from the German
Commercial Code (HGB) as stipulated 1n sec-
tion 315a (1} of the HGB Al IFRS and IFRIC
were observed that had been endorsed and
mandated by the EU Comnussion prior te
November 30, 2014, except for the retrospec-
tive application of 1AS 19 (new) Standards
and interpretations that have been 1ssued,
but are not yet mandatory, have not been ap-
phed prematurely

The financial statements were prepa-
red according to the going concern principle
Corresponding figures for comparison with
the previous year are provided for all itoms of
the financial statements

The consohdated financial statements
are prepared based on historical cost Tho
sole exception 15 1n the case of derivative fi-
nancial mstruments, which are measured at
market value, provided that market values
can be reliably determined

Preparation of the consolidated finan-
cial statermnents taking into consideration the
pronouncements of the IASB requres that
assumptions and estimates are utthsed n the
case of some 1tems that have an effect on the
level and 1eporting of assets and Labilities,
meome and eapenses, as well a5 contingent
habilitigs Assumptions and estimates relate
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1 particular to estabhshing terms of eco-
nomic life, determiming net reahsable value
when measuring inventory, accounting for
and measuring provisions, the rcalisahbility
of future tax rehef, as well as 1 determnung
cash flows, growth rates and discount factors
m connection with impairment tests and the
measurement of brands Actual values may
deviate from the assumptions and estiunates
made Any required changes are recognised
in profit or loss at the time that additional
knowledge 1s obtained

The mcome statement 1s structured
according to the nature of expense method

Effects of new accounting standards

The accounting and valuation principles are
gonerally consistent with the methods applied
in the previous year In addition, the Group
has applied the following new and/or revised
pronouncements that are relevant for the
husiness activity of the Group and became
mandatory for the fiscal year 2013/14

« Amendments to IAS 19 “Employec Bene-

fits” (06/2011), mandatory on/from Janua-

ry 1, 2013

Amendments to 1AS 27 “Separate Fihancial

Statements” (05/2011), on/fiom January 1,

2013

Amendments to [IAS 28 “Investments in

Associates and Joint Ventures” (05/2011),

ow/from January 1, 2013

¢ [FRS 1 Fust-time Adoption” (03/2012), on/

from January 1, 2013

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial State-

ments” (05/2011) and (06/2012), on/from

January 1, 2013

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” (05/2011}

and (06/2012), on/from January 1, 2013

* [FRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities” (05/2011) and (06/2012) on/from
January 1, 2013

* IFRS 13 “Farr Value Measurcment”
(5/2011}, on/from January 1, 2013

+ Improvements to [FRS” (2012) comprise
mmnor amendments to a total of five stan-
dards, which were necessary but not

urgent, on/from January 1, 2013

8

With the exception of the presentation and
addinonal notes, the apphcation of the pro-
nouncernents had no unpact on the consoh-
dated financial statements

The followmg pronouncements that
are relevant for the busiess activity of the
Group had been published as of Novembel
30 2014 but were not mandatory as of this
date (effective for annual periods begmning
on or after the dates stated)

Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment” {05/2014), on/from January 1,
2016 (EU endersement pending)

* Amendments to IAS 19 “Employec Bene-
fits” (117201 3), mandatory on/from July 1,
2014 (EU endorsement pending)

* Amendments to IAS 27 “Separate Fmnancial
Statements” (08/2014), on/from January 1
2016 (EU endorsement pending)

* Amendments to IAS 28 “Investmnents

Assoclates and Jomnt Ventures” (09/2014),

mandatory on/from January 1 2016

(EU endorsement pending)

Amendments to JAS 32  ‘Financial

Instruments Presentation and Disclosures”

(12/2011), on/from January 1, 2014

Amendments to [AS 36 “Impairment of

Assets” (05/2013), on/fiom January 1,

2014

* Amendiments to IAS 38 “Intangible Assets”

(05/2014), on/from Janvary 1, 2016

(EU endorsement pendimng)

Amendments to IAS 39 “Financial

Inshhuments Recogmtion and Measure-

ment” (06/2013), on/from January 1, 2014

und (11/2013), effective date not defined

set

* [FRS 7 “Fmancial Instruments Disclo-
sures ' (12/2011), on/frem January 1, 2015
and (11/2013), effective date not defined yet

* [FRS 9 “Financial Instruments”™ {07/2014}),
on/from January 1, 2018 (EU endorsement
pending)

* IFRS 10 ‘Consohdated Financial State-

menis’ (09/2014), on/from January 1, 2016

(EU endorsement pending)

IFRS 11 “Joint Anangements™ (05/2014),

on/from January 1, 2016 (F-U endorsement

pending)




+ IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (05/2014), on/from January 1,
2017 (FU endersement pending)

s [FRIC 21 “Levies” (05/2013), on/from
January 1, 2014

+ “Improvements to [FRS” (2013 ) comprise
mino1 amendments to a total of nine stan-
dards, which were necessary but not
urgent, on/from July 1, 2014 (EU endorse-
ment pending)

e “Improvements to IFRS” (2014} comprise
minor amendmentis to a total of four stan-
dards. which were necessary but not
urgent, on/from January 1, 2016 (EU
endorsement pending)

The standards are applied as of the annual
periods for which they ate effective The
option to apply these standards and interpre-
tations prematurely was not exercised With
the exception of additional and/or mod:fied
notes, the first-time apphcation 1s not expec-
ted to have material effects on the consolida-
ted financial statements

3 CONSOLIDATION

Basis of consolidation

Al 15 domestic and 22 foroign subsidiaries
that are directly or wndwectly controlled by
Ahlers AG are included n the 2013/14 conso-
lidated finanaal statements in addition to the
parent company, Ahlers AG A hst of subsidi-
aries can be found on page 80

Principies of consohdation
The finanual statements of all of the consoli-
dated compames within the Ahlers Group are
prepared according to wuform accounting
and measuring punciples

Business combinations are accounted
for using the purchase method When recog-
msed for the first time, goodwill 1s measured
at the cost of acquisition, which 15 the amount
by which the acquisition cost of the business
combination exceeds the Group’s share m the
fair values of the identifiable assets, habilities
and contingent habilities of the acquired com-
pany Companies are icluded 1n the consol-
dated financial statements only as long as the
parent company is m control

9

Intra-group balances, income, cx-
penses and gans and losses from intra-group
transactions as well as other mtra-group
transactions are ehminated i full The con-
solidated financial statements of Ahlers AG
are mcduded in the consolidated financial
statements of Westfalisches Textilwerk Adolf
Ahlers Stnftung & Co KG, Herford, the highest-
level controlling parent company

Changes to the basis of consolidation
In the fiscal year, Ahlers Austria Vertriebs
Gesm b H, Manasdorf, Austria, and Texart
Verwaltungsgesellschaft m b H, Marasdorf,
Austria, were merged mnto Pionter Jeans &
Casuals GmbH, Marasdorf, Austna, with
effect from August 13, 2014 and August 29,
2014, respectively, m order to further sim-
plify the corporate structure m Austria The
companmes were transferred at thewr cartymg
amounts In preparation of these mergers,
Pionter Jeans & Casuals GmbH, Manasdorf,
Austria, acquired the 10 percent share of
Ahlers PC GmbH, Herford, in Ahlers Aus-
tria Vertriegbs GesmbH In addition, the
1 43 percent share in Texart Verwaltungs-
gesellschaft m b H, Mariasdorf, Austna,
was transferred from B-Beteiligungs- und
Verwaltungsges m b H, Marnasdorf, Austna,
to Ahlers AG. Herford This transfer was va-
lued m accordance with the pro-rated equity
caputal

After the mergers, Plomer Jeans
& Casuals Gmbil, Manasdorf, Austria,
was  renamed Ahlers Austna GmbH,
Mariasdorf Austnia Ahlers Austria GmbH,
Manriasdorf, Austra, finally acquired the 13 66
percent share 1n Fabriksverkauf Manas-
doif Gesm b H, Marmasdorf, Austria, from
Adolf Ahlers AG, Cham, Swiatrzerland, with
effect fiom November 3, 2014 This transfer,
too, was valued 1n accordance with the pro-
rated equity capital

A Ahlers (UK ) Ltd , London, UK, was
renamed Texart UK Ltd , London, UK

These changes to the basis of conso-
Iidauon do not affect the comparability with
the prior year figures
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SHAREHOLDINGS OF AHLERS AG thereof
(including direct and indirect investments) indirectly held Net
Equity tncome 3
share Equity ™ 2013714
Company {in %} % via KEUR KEUR
1_Ahlers PC_GmbH, Herford 1000 nps 0
2 Ahlers Textihandel GmbH & Ca KB, Herford 0w 5506 488
3 Ahlers Vertneb GmbH Herford R 10000 o 53 »
4 Ahlers Zentralverwaltung GmbH Herford 10000 Y . A
5 a-fashion com GmbH, Herford 10000 -
_6_Baldessarimi GmbH, Munchen 100 00 o _ 1845 @
7 Ahlers Retail GmbH Herford 100 00 s L
8 GIN TONIC SPECIAL Mode GmbH Sindetfingen 100 00 13
9 HEMINA Grundstucks-Vermietungsgesellschaft mbH & Co
Objekt Herford KG Pulfach im Isartal 94 00 8400 2 3088 e
10 Jupiter Bekleidung GmbH Herford 100 00 g
11 Otto Kern GmbH, Herford 10000 5342 ¥
12 PIONEER Jeans-Bekleidung GmbH, Herford 100 00 B Bt o
13 Pionier Berufskleidung GmbH Herford 100 00 27 A
14 Pronier Jeans & Casvals Deutschiand GmbH, Herford 100 00 __ 18 @
15 Verwaltungs- und Handelsgesellschaft "Alconda” mbH Herford 8130 74 80 2 _ 4084 33
16 Adolf Ahters AG, CH-Cham o0 AnMz 2779
17 Ahlers Austria GmbH A-Mariasdorf 1o 7432 2966
18 Ahlers Europe Ltd_USA-New York Wi e a4
19 Ahlers Herford {Espafia} S L, E-Madnd 100 00 _ _ 768 230
20 Ahlers Herford {ltalia} S R L, -Volpano (To) 10090 __§22 o 57
21 Ahters Premium France S A S, F-Horbourg-Wihr 10000 e 2122 ez
22 "Ahlers-Poland” Spolkazoo PL-Opole weoo 93 718
23 B-Betelligungs- und Verwaltungsges m b H , A-Manasdorf 100 00 o 16 1,42_7H7 1474
24 SIA Clasic, LV-Riga B 6550 6550 31 a5 28
25 Dial Textite Industries Ltd  Ct-Katunayake ___I_QQQO_ o ;i,_UE? L _6_13_
26 Fabriksverkauf Manasdorf Ges m b H , A-Maniasdart 10000 58 94 17 265 33
- ) 408 0w
27 HBI Workwear A/S, DK-Haderslev ~ 10000 e ﬁl[]BE . 40
28 "LUBINEX"-Spotka 200 PL-Lubm B 6285 ®85 2 e o
29 Otto Kern Austna GmbH, A-Manastor . w000 n__ e 7
30 .ROMED" Spotkazo o 1 L., PL-Zhaszyn %60 9960 2 1 0
31 UAB Stesa Clasic, LT-Vilnius __ 6550 850 1 _ggg s
32 TEXART Brgtlslava.:_s ro SK-Bratislava 10000 1000 17 3 4
33 TEXARTd oo, HA-StrmecSamoborskk 30000 10000 17 120 56
34 TEXARTdoo SLO-Lubjena 10000 10000 17 57 30
35 TEXART Magyarorszag Kit , H-Bgﬂdapest 10000 10000 17 387 157
36 TEXART sgol sro,CZPray 10000 10000 7 58 M3
37 Texart UKLtd GB-London 100 00 0 1

1) Amounts In foreign currencres are stated at the mid rate on the balance sheet date Amounts in accordance with IFRS

7} Met income stated m foreign currency 1s presented at the average rate lor the fiscal year
3) Contral and profit and loss transfer agreement
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No audit under local legislation was per-
formed {or Texart UK Ltd, London, UK, for
reasons of materiality Ahlers AG guarantees
the latter’s hahilitics pursuant to section 4794
of the UK Companies Act 2006

Date of consolidation

The balance sheet date of the companies n-
cluded in the consoldation coincides with
that of the parent company The only excep-
tion 15 IEMINA Grundstucks-Vermietungs-
gesellschaft mbH & Co Objekt Herford KG,
Pullach 1m Isartal, whose balance sheet date
1s December 31 An interim statement was
therefore prepared as of November 30, 2014

Currency translation

The consohdated financial statements are
prepared i Euros, the functonal and re-
porting currency of the Group Each company
within the Group defines 1ts functional cin-
rency The items m the respective company’s
financial statements are measured using this
functional currency Foreign currency tran-
sactions are first translated into the functio-
nal currency at the spot rate on the day of the

fransaction Monetary assets and habihties
in foreign currencies are translated into the
funciion currency on every closing date using
the closing rate Exchange differences from
monetary 1tems as part of a net investment in
a foreign operation are recognised in equity
All currency translation differences are re-
corded agamst imcome Non-monetary 1tems
measured at historical cost m a foreign cur-
rency are translated usmg the exchange rate
on the date of the transachon The assets and
liabihities of the foreign companies are trans-
lated into euros at the closing rate Income
and expenses are translated at the mean rate
The resulting exchange differences are recog-
nised as a separate equity component The
cumnulative amount recorded 1n equity foi a
foreign operation 1s recogmsed in profit or
loss when this foreign operation 1s sold

In the consohdated fixed assets and
provistons schedule, opeming and closing
balances were translated at historical rates,
while movements within the fiscal year were
translated at average annual rates Hesulting
adjustments are shown as currency transla-
tron differences in a separate column

The table below shows the changes i the exchange rates of important currencies

Currency Average rate Closing rate
Country 1EUR= 201314 2012/13 2013 2m3
Poland PLN 418 418 418 420
Switzerland CHF . 122 V23 1w 113
Srlanka L tKR _ 1442 17123 16346 17867
USA usD 134 132 125 136
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGN{FICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded
at cost munus accumulated scheduled depre-
vation and, where apphcable, impairment
losses The terms of useful lIife on wlhich
depreciation 15 hased reflect the anticipated
economic term of use foi the Group

The foliowing terms of useful Life are
used for scheduled depreciation of key assets

15 to 50 years
5 to 15 years

- Bwldings
- Machmery
- Furniture and fixtures

and office cquipment 3 to 30 years

Terms of useful Iife, residual carrying amounts
and deprectation methods for property, plant
and equipment are reviewed on a regular ha-
s1s 1 order to ensure that the deprecation
method and period comeaides with the antici-
pated useful economic Iife of the asset items

Intangmble assets

capitahised at cost, 1f 1t 15 probable that future
economic benecfits are associated with the
asset and If the cost of the asset can be re-
ltably estabhished Acquired mtangible assets
with a determinable useful hfe are amortised
over three to eight years using the straight-
line method Acquired intangible assets with
an ndeterminable useful life are not subject
to scheduled amortisation, rather they are re-
viewed for recoverabihty en an annual basis
and m the event that theie 1s an indication
of impairment, and written down to the re-
coverable amount to the extent necessary In
the case of intangible assets with an indeter-
nunable useful hife, a review occurs 1n every
reporting peiiod to ascertain whether events
and cncumstances continue to Justify the esti-
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mate of an mdetermmnahle useful hife for these
assets In the event that reasons for previous
imparrment losses no longer apply, these 1m-
pairment losses are reversed and the car-
rying amount of the asset 1s mcreased to 1s
recoverable amount Terms of useful Iife, resi-
dual values and amortsation and deprecia-
tion methods are reviewed at least annually
at the end of the fiscal year If expectations
differ from previous estimates, the appropri-
ate changes are accounted for as changes to
estimates

At-equity investments

Shates m associated companies are reco-
gnised at cost Subsequent measurement -
starting after the end of the first full fiscal year
- reflects the perceniage changes i equity
caused by net mncome/loss for the year and
capial 1ncieases/reductions less dividends
received Where a company’s fiscal year dii-
fers fiom that of the Ahlers Group, mterim
financial statements are prepared for the -
vestment with effect from November 30
Works of art

Works ol art are measured in accordance
with [AS 16, Property, plant and equipment
Under this standard, assets are recognis-
ed at amortised cost For most works of art
we have assumed a consistent value, which
means that the valuc 15 at least equivalent
to the cost Scheduled depreciation 1s, there-
fore, not applied for these wotks of art No
standard exists under IFRS that exphatly
addresses works of art, since these represent
netther mnventories, nor property, plant and
cquipment, nor intangible assets, nor finaneci-
al assets TAS 8 stipulates that in these cases
such accounting pohcies should be used that
arg ielevant to the economic decision-making
needs of the 1eader and that result in reliable
mntormation The requirements and guidance

-



in Standards and Interpretations deahng with
simular and related 1ssues are to be used m
these cases In the present case, IAS 16, Pro-
perty, plant and equipment, 15 the appropri-
ate basis

Fmancial instruments and other

financial assels

Financial instruments are reported n
accordance with IAS 39 Finanual assets ate
thus classified n the following categoies
to the extent relevant to the Ahlers Group

¢ Financial assets held for trading

e Loans and recewvables

* Derivatives designed as hedging instru-
ments and effectively used as such

In the case of regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets, trade day accounting
15 used Fust-tine recording of a finanaial
asset occurs on the day on which the Ahlers
Group has become the contractual partner
Financial assets are measured at the far
value of the consideration, m the case of
recetvables and loans, transaction costs are
imncluded

Changes i far value of finanual
assets held for ttading are reported in the
consolidated income statement

In the case of receivables and loans,
subsequent measurcinent occurs at amor-
tised cost using the effective interest method
less potential value nmpairments

Fimanwal assets are detccognsed
when their sale 15 contractually agreed,
loans and recewvables are derecogmsed upon
repayment

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging transactions

The derivative financal mstruments are te-
corded at fair value Derivatives are reported
m the balance sheet under other financial as-
sets or other financial hahihtes

Changes m fair value of the deriva-
tives are 1eported depending on whether
these instruments arc used for hedging pur-
poses and the conditions for accounting for a
hedging relationship according to IAS 39 are
met If these conditions are not met, despite
the fact that an economic hedging relation-
shup apphes, the changes m fair value of the
dervative financial instruments are recorded
immediately against income, otherwise, they
are directly recogmsed 1 eqgrity

The Ahlers Group uses forward ex-
change contracts only as derwatives to
manage current and future currency 11sks

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recogmsed as an expen-
se 11 the period 1n which they aie incurred

Impairment of assets
Terms of useful hfe, residual values and
depreciatton and amortisation methods
for property, plant and equipment, works
of art and intangible assets with determ-
nable terms of useful life are reviewed at
least once a year 1n order to ensure that the
depreciation methods, the useful lives and
residual values are n accordance with the
economic useful hfe

Intangible assets with indetermi-
nable terins of usetul hfe arc reviewed for
impairment at least once a year Measure-
ment of imtangihle assets 1s hased on the
cash-generating unit to which the respec-
tive asset belongs In the Allers Group,
the cash-generating umit 1s an mdividual
corpoate division to which cash flows can
be directly attributed

If there are indications of impairment
or if the annual review of impairment of an
asset 1s 1equired, the Ahlers Group estima-
tes the recoverable amount of the respective
asset [he recoverable amount is the lugher
of the net selling price and the value 1n use
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The net selling price 15 the amount that can
be recovered from the sale of an asset1n an
arm’s length transacuon, less solling costs
The value 1in use 1s calculated on the basis
of esnmated future cash flows from the use
and disposal of the asset using the discoun-
ted cash flow method Cash flows are pro-
jected on the basis of financwal plans with a
five-year planning horizon approved by the
management, current developments are ta-
ken into account Material assumptions on
which the cash {low projections are based
include future sales revenues and the rela-
ted cost trends More recent findings arc 1in-
corporated on a rolhing basis and may lead
to adjustments of exaisting plans Cash flows
are discounted at the ume of the mmpair-
ment review usig risk-equivalent capitah-
sation interest rates If the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds the recoverable amount,
the asset 15 regarded as mmpaired and
written down to its recoverable amount

If the review leads to the conclusion
that an earlier impairment loss 1s no lon-
ger applicable or 1s apphcable only to a
lesser degree, the Ahlers Group estimates
the recoverable amount Int the event that
the reasons for a previcus tmpairment loss
no longer apply, the carrying amount of the
asset 15 increased to 1ts recoverable amount
This amount may not, however, exceed tho
cartymg amount that would pertain after
taking 1into account amortisation, 1if no im-
pairment loss had been recorded against
the asset in previous years A reversal of an
unpattment loss 1s recogmsed 1mmediately
in net income or loss n the peried 1n which
it 15 recorded Once recogmsed, goodwill
impairments are not reversed

Financial assets are tested for um-
pairntent at cath balance sheet date If
the recoverable amount of an asset 1s
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lower than 1ts carrying amount, the asset 15
written down to the recoverable amount
This write-down 15 expensed as an nnpair-
ment loss An nnpairment loss recorded
previously as an expcnse 1s adjusted against
profit or loss, if matters have arisen that
would require such an adjustment, how-
ever, the adjustment may result in an
amount no greater than the amortised cost

Inventories

Inventories arc measured at the lower of
cost or net realsable value Costs incurred in
bringing mventories to thewr present location
i their present condition are accounted for
as follows

Raw materials
« First-in First-out method (Fifo)

Finished goods and services and work n

progress

s Direct material and labour costs, direct
production costs, material overheads and
the appropriate share of production over
heads based on actual production during
the fiscal year, not taking into account
borrowing costs

Net realisable value 15 the estimated selling
price i the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of (omplefion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Trade receivables and other financial assets
Trade reccivables are recorded at the original
mnvolce amount nunus allowances 1if necessa-
ry An allowance 1s created if there 1s ohjecti-
ve evidence that the company will not be 1n a
postton to collect the recevable Recevables
are written off as soen as they ate deemed

uncollectible

~




The majority of recewvables are co-
vered by trade credit msurance The deduc-
tible agreed mn the trade credit mswance
pohcy tanges between 15 percent and 25
percent Allowances tor recetvables that have
been msured via trade credit insurance are
created, if necessary, only 1n the amount of
the contractually agreed deductible

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equvalents m the balance
sheet mclude cash on hand and bank halan-
ces

For purposes of the consohdated
cash flow statement, cash and cash equiva-
lents mnclude the 1tems defined above as well
as hquid investments such as other securities
that can be converted mto certain cash at any
point 1n time and aie subject only to negh-
gible risk of value fluctuation Overdrafts are
deducted for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement

Interest-bearing loans

When loans are mnitially recorded, they are
measured at the fair value of the consideia-
tion Subsequently, interest-bearing loans are
nmteasured usmg the effective interest method
at amortised cost

Pension provisions and similar obhgations

Retirement plan obligations and retirement
plan expense of defined benefit plans are mea-
sured using the prajected wnit credit method

The measurement 1s undertaken according to
countiy-specific eonditions The Ahlers Group
only has closed pension plans in which exs-
ting pensioners and vested benefits are re-
quired to be measured Actuarial reviews are
conducted annually These reviews take into
account both the pensions known and hene-
fits acqured at the balance sheet date and
future anticipated pension nieredses

The effocts arising from the revalu-
ation ot the net debt, in this case essentially
actudrial gamns and losses from adjustments
or changes to actuamal assumptions, are
recogmsed 1n other comprehenswve income
m accordance with 1AS 19 The amount
recogimsed as a debt under the pension plans
15 thus equuvalent to the present value of the
defined benefit ochhigation

Pre-retirement part-time agreements
are based on the so-called block model Two
types of obligations arise m this connection
- the repayment amount and the replemsh-
ment amount - both of which are recorded
at their net present value 1n accordance with
actuarial principles

Stock-based compensation
As part of the long-term bonus, the members
of the Management Board were granted stock
appreciation rights, which can only be settled
mn cash

Where the company recewves services
in return that cannot be identfied mdivi-
dually or as a whole, these non-identifiable
services are measured at the difference
between the fair value of the stock-based
compensation and the fair value of the non-
wlenufiable services recetved at the tume
of the granting Tlus 1s then capitalised or
charged as an expense

The fair value 1s spread over the period
up to the day the right may first be exercised
and 1s then recogmsed in profit or less 1n re-
spect of a corresponding hability The habili-
ty is remeasured at every balance sheet date
and on the settlement date Changes in the
fair value are recognised n profit o loss
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Other provisions

Provisions are created if a current legal or
constructive obhgation towards a third party
ex1sts m connection with a past event, which
will probably result in an outflow of funds and
for which a rehable estimate of the amount of
the obhgation can he made Pirovisiens for re-
structuring measures are established when a
detaled, formal restiucturing plan exists and
when the parties concerned rightfully expect
the restructuring measures to be implemen-
ted I the interest rate impact 15 matersal,
provisions are measured at net present value
If discounting takes place the increase m pro-
visions occasloned by the passage of tume 13
recorded as interest expense

Liabilities
When measured for the first time, financial
liabilities are recogmsed at the fair value of
the counter-performance received Following
the first-ttme recognition, financial liabihties
are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method

Trade payables and other habilities are
recorded at the nominal value or the repay-
ment ainount

Leases

If the Ahlers Group bears all material oppor-
tumties and risks under lease agreements
and 1s therefore considered the economuc
owner (finance leases), the leased object 1s
capttahised at the lower of market value or
the present value of futuie lease payments at
the tune that the contractis entered into The
payment obligations arising under the finance
lease are recorded under finanual habihties
in the equivalent amount The interest por-
tion of the leasc habihties 15 reported 1n the
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consohdated income statement over the term
of the lease If the future transfer of owner-
ship of the leased asset 15 sufficiently certan,
deprecialion 1s undertaken over the usetul
economic life  Otherwise the deprecration
period 15 based on the term of the lease

In addition to finance leaso agree-
ments, the Ahlers Group has entered nto
lease agreements that qualify as operating
leases As a result, the leased objects — from
an economnic perspective — at¢ attrihutable to
the lessor and the operating lease instalments
represent period expenses The total of future
lease payments for the hasic period when
the lease 1s uncancellable 1s reported under
financial obligations

Income recognition

Income 15 recognised when it 1s probable that
economic benefit will flow to the company
and the amount can be rehably measured
Income 15 measured at the fair value of the
consideration recewved Income 1s stated net
of discounts, rebates, VAT or other charges
Mereover, the following accounting rcriteria
must be fulfilled i order to recognise income

s Proceeds from the sale of goods are recor-
ded at the tume when the major risks and
oppor tunities assoclated with ownership of
the goods and products sold have been
transferred to the buyer

¢ [nterest mcome 1s recorded pro rata
temporis using the cffective 1nterest
method

* License mcome and other income are
recognised in the period n which the
company's legal claim matertalises and 1n
accordance with the underlying contracts




Taxes
Actual tax refund claims and tax obhgations
for the current fiscal year and for earher fis-
cal years are measured at the anticipated
amount of the refund from, or payment to, the
tax authories

Deferred tax assets and habihities ate
created for all temporary differences between
the values recorded for tax purposes by the
individual companies and the values 1ecorded
in the consohdated financial statements ac-
cording to IFRS, as well as 1n connection with
specific consolidation processes Defeired tax
assets also include tax reduction claims ari-
sing from the expected use of existing tax loss
carryforwards i subsequent years and the
reabisation of which can be assumed with a
suffictent degree of probabihity Deferred tax
assets and habilities are measured using the
tax rates that are expected to apply during the
period 1n which an asset is realised or a hahi-
ity 1s met The tax rates (and tax laws) appl-
cable on the balance sheet date are taken as
the basis Future changes i tax rates must be
taken mto account on the balance sheet date
provided that their eventual enactment n the
course of the legislative process 1s accepted as
a given fact

Income taxes related to items that are
recorded directly under equity arc recogrused
1 equity and not 1n profit or loss

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
neited in the consohdated balance sheet, pro-
vided that an enforceable right exists to offset
the actual tax debt and the deterred taxes re-
late to the same tax subject and the same tax
authority
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(1) Sales
201314 20213
KEUR % KEUR %
Domestic 140,885 54 8% 134,013 54 3%
Foreign 624 452%  1127M4 457%
257,109 100.0% 24617 100 0%

Sales revenues were generated almost
without exception by the sale of clothing,
licensing revenues from Otto Kern GnibH,
Herford, 1in the amount of EUR 817 thousand
(previous year EUR 970 thousand), Baldessa-
rini1 GmbH, Munich, 1in the amount of GUR 398
thousand (previous year EUR 504 thousand),

(2) Other operating income

Gin Tonic Special Mode GmbH, Sindelfingen,
n the amount of EUR 33 thousand {previous
year EUR 34 thousand) and Pioneer Jeans-
Bekleidung GmbH, lerford, in the amount
of EUR 34 thousand (previous year EUR 48
thousand) are mcluded m this figure Forcign
sales were generated primarily mn Europe

KEUR 2013114 2012113
Income from the disposal of fixed assets . 605
incoeme from personal use of company cars o 7_528 474
Income from re-invoicing 4. 387
Rental income 420 388
Income from the release of provisiens/other habilities L R ___318_7_____5_5_1_’_‘
Income from the reversal of valuation
allowances on trade receivables s 789
income from insurance payments 3 o Eip_ _ __E
Exchange gains L _ a8 296
Income from damages 182 752
Income unretated to the reporting peniod s 65 )
Others 656 582
7 4006 4,557

During fiscal 2013/14, other opetating -
come decreased by EUR 551 thousand This 13
prunarily attnbutable to the ‘mncome from

5a

damages” item Otherwise, ather operating
income consists of numeious mdwvidual items,
none of which exceeds EUR 100 thousand




(3) Cost of materials

KEUR 201314 201273

Cost of raw matenials and supplies and purchased goods _ 103317 . donsz

Cost of purchased services . L 28393 27,183
131,110 128,335

The cost of matenials adjusted for changes
in fimshed goods and work mm progress in
an amount of EUR 2,919 thousand (previous

(4) Personnel expenses

year EUR 5,887 thousand} rose at a shightly
higher rate than sales due to increased write-
downs of inventories

KEUR 201314 201213
Wages and salarnes 47,328 44,878
Social secunty contnbutions B o “”:.’,894 7,623
Retirement benefit and similar expenses 186 21

55,208 52,712

Social security contributions include em-
ployer contributions to contribution-based
pension plans 1 an amount of EUR 3,387
thousand (previous year EUR 3,210
thousand)

{5) Other operating expenses

The increase in personnel expenses
is due to measures i conjunction with the
soctal plan at Gin Tonic, the reorganisation
of the (reative department at Baldessarim as
well as the expansion of the Retail segment

KEUR 2013114 201213
Distribution expenses 30887 30503
General and administrative expenses 12400 ;_ 13123
Advertising expenses . b4 6,533
Maintenance expenses . g 1814
Insurance expenses _ 1104 1,247
Banking fees o s 609
Exchange differences o o 467 683
Otherfees _ e 3948
Othertaxes . 38T
Valuation allowances ) ~ |38 672
Miscellaneous - o _ n2 7,405
T - B 257 63,495

Distribution expenses are comprised cluefly
of costs that vary with sales levels (commis-
sions travel costs, hcenses, freight and remo-
vals from storape) Admumstrative expenses
include legal, consultancy and EDP costs as
well as general administrative costs The cost
of trade fairs and mai keting ncluding trade
marheting, constitutes advertising expenses

The non-current labihties with indefi-
nite terms towards Adolf Ahlers AG, Cham,
represent monetary items as part of a net in-
vestment in a foreign operation as defined 1n
IAS 21 15 The resuling exchange differen-
«es were recognised 1n equity pursuant to IAS
21 32f, they are not recognised m profit/loss
before 1eahsation
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(6) Depreciation, amortisation on properiy, plant and equipment and intangible
assets and other non-current assets / impairment losses

KEUR 201314 201213

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings L L 567 o 563

Techncal equipment and machines A 49

Other equipment, plant and office equipment . 3g8 3704

Intangible assets

Trademark nghts and similar nghis i 23_8__ 524

Goadwill b -

Other non-current assets

Other assets - -
5,409 5282

thereof impairment losses

Goodwill 205 -

The mmpairment losses fully relate to the
goodwill for Gin Tonic, Switzerland The

{7) Financial result

impalrment was made necessary by further
restructuring measurcs at Gin Tonic

KEUR 201314 2012113
Write-up of the at-equity investment o 100 -
Other interest and similar mcome _ 148 352
Interest expenses L o 491 -1,013

-143 -661

t

The write-up of the at-equuty nvestment
was made 1n accordance with the mcreasc

(8) Income taxes

1 the pro-rated equity capital For further
information, refer to No 13 of the notes

KEUR 2013114 201213

Current taxes

Germany 1,389 377

Foreign B - 797 ?; B

S } 216 1154

Deferred taxes

Gemany 322 _ 334

Foreign -83 -367

T T " 33
2,385 1121




Ahlers AG had a domestic income tax rate of
31 05 percent (previous year 31 05 percent)
for deferred taxes, consisting of corporate tax
at a rate of 15 00 percent and the solidanty
surcharge 1mposed on corporate tax at a rate
of 5 50 percent, as well as German mumcipal
trade tax of 15 23 percent with an average
multiplying factor of 435 percent Foreign tax
rates are hetween 10 00 and 33 33 percent

The table helow shows a reconciha-
tion statement between the antcipated -
come tax expense that would theoretically
have resulted 1f using an income tax rate of
31 05 percent (previous year 31 05 percent)
at the Group level and the income tax actually
reported for the Gioup

KEUR 201314 2092113
Consolidated net income before income taxes 8417 6,676
Expected tax expense at a rate

of 31 05% (2012/13 31 05%) 2613 2,073
Tax rate differences at |ocal tax rate T -394 -416
Effects from changes in tax rates -1 23
Non-deductible business expenses T 2 261
Taxes fos previous fiscal years o _-1:; MT
.ﬁdjustments to recognition of deferred tax assets and other permanent differences - -33 0
Tax-free income _ -30 -36
Other differences __:_ _8— —_38_
Total adjustments -228 -852
Tax expense —2-,3‘55- 1121

As of November 30, 2014, no deferred taxes
were recorded for tax loss carryforwards of
EUR 3.824 thousand (previous year EUR
3,709 thousand) that exist in the Group, as
the Group considers their use to be unlikely
For Ottc Kern GmbtHl, there are pre-integra-
tion loss carryforwards in an amount of EUR
1,342 thousand, which can be carried for-
ward indefinitely and m an nnlimited amount
In view of the integrated inter-company rela-
tronship, these carryforwards are unlikely to
be utihised from today's pomt of view The
remamung loss carryforwards in an amount

8

of EUR 2,482 thousand cannot be carried for-
ward indefinitely and 1n an unhmited amount
They will lapse successively aver the next 20
years Defeired taxes 1n an amount of EUR
238 thousand were recogmsed for the other
tax loss carryforwards Their use is guaran-
teed as sufficient taxable profits a1c expected
These expectations arc based on the plans
and budgets of the respective Group com-
pames The planned sales increase and the
further penctration of the market are the core
elements of the Group strategy justifying this
recogmtion
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Tax deferrals are to be allocated to the following balance sheet accounts

Nov 30, 2014 Nov 30, 2013
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
tax tax tax tax
KEUR assets liabilities assets habilities
Property plant and equipment 63 1360 58 1443
Intangible assets 6 WI@EB__’_‘: - :‘;3— o ”1'.368 _
Non-current financial assets - [ o
Inventories g4 - 605 -
Trade recevables and other
current financial assets % B30 207 14
Pension provisions 486 o 357
Other provisions _______152 L 130 81
financial liabtiities 56 - 337 -
Gther liabilities 194 19 206 22
2,008 4,059 1,963 3275
Losses carned forward 238 - 288 -
2,246 4,049 2,251 3275
Balance | -8 81 -819
1395 3198 1432 2,456
Besides the tax expenses shown in the in-  the effects from the remeasurement of the

come statement, deferred taxes of EUR -543 net habihty of the pension obligations were
thousand (previcus year EUR -68 thousand) diectly recognised 1n equity The table below
from the recognition of the forward exchange  shows the individual tax effects m the conso-
contracts in equity, the translation differences  lLidated statement of compi chensive mcome
pursuant to IAS 21 32f and the treatment of

2013/14 2012A13
before deferred before deferred
KEUR taxes taxes taxes taxes
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Actual gans and losses on defined benefit plans 4 28 12 58
To be reclasssfied to profit or loss
Net result from cash flow hedges o 2,?67 o _-704_ -53 17
Tt S R S SR
Other currency translation differences in the equity ﬂz__ . 499 _
Other changes -175 - -204 -
1,945 543 -8 68
Other income after taxes 1,402 -536




{9} Share in income of non-controlling
interests

Companes 11 which Ahlers AG holds less
than 100 percent are mcluded m the conso-
lidated financial statements The shares re-
lating to non-coniroling mtercsts are shown
separately from equity attributable to equity
holders of Ahlers AG under equity 1n the con-
solidated bhalance sheet Non-controllmg inte-
rests in the consohdated net income and com-
prehensive income are also shown separately
i1 the consolidated income statement and
the conschdated statement of comprehensive
ncome

(10) Earnings per share

Earmings per share are defined as net income
for the period divided by the weighted ave-
1age number of shares outstanding during the
fiscal year An average of 13,681,520 no-par
shares (previous year 13.681,520) were out-
standmg in the year under review No shares
existed cither as ot November 30, 2014, or
Novemnber 30, 2013, that would have a dilu-
tng effect on earmings per share

Result from discontinued operations /
non-current assets held for sale

Due to the still ongoing hquidation of a Polish
company, there were no facts that would lead
to a treatment pursuant to IFRS 5

6 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEET

Changes to the individualitems of non-current
assets during fiscal 2012/13 and 2013/14 are
shown m the consclidated fixed and intan-
gible assets schedule altached to the notes to
the consoldated financial statements

a3

(11) Property, plant and equipment

Due to the first payments for the ERP project,
mvestments in property plant and equipment
and intangible assets exceeded the systematic
depreciation 1n the fiscal yea: 2013/14 The
additions to factory and office equpment n
the amount of EUR 3,412 thousand piimarily
include shop systems as well as replacement
investments

(12) Intangible assets
Exclusive use of the company-owned
Baldessarim and Otto Kern brands 1s assured
by means of long-term, renewable industri-
al property rights Consequently an indeter-
minable term of useful hfe can be deemed to
exist 1n each case

The carrymng amount of ntangible
assets with indeterminable useful hves 1is
comprised of the carrymg amount of Otto
Kern trademark rights of EUR 3,600 thousand
(previous year EUR 3,600 thousand) and
Baldessanimt  trademark nights of EUR
5,970 thousand (previous year EUR 5,970
thousand) Each forms a ¢ash generating umt
which serves to review the value

Goodwill was tecogmsed i the
amount of EUR 910 thousand (previous year
RUR 1.100 thousand) in the context of the
acquisttion of Gin Tonuc, Switzerland, and the
takeover of the Stesa Group in Lithuama in
prior years

Development expenses  werc not
capitalised, as the requirements defined
IAS 38 were not fully met R&D costs of EUR
6,788 thousand (previous year EUR 6,522
thousand) were recogmsed as an expense n
the fiscal year

Impamrment test to IAS 36

As of the batance sheet date, the recoverable
amounts were reviewed and the Group's pro-
perty, plant and equipment, mtangible asscts
with deterrnable and mdetermmnable lives
and goodwill were tested for impairment The
cash-generating units to which the intangible
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assets with mdetermimable hives belong are
the Otto Kern and Baldessarint divisions, 1 e
the Premium segment The cash flow projec-
tions are based on a growth vate 1 the md
sigle-digit range for the planning petiods,
which reflects the trend of the past years iy
this segment The discount rate used for the
cash flow projections avetages 7 5 percent
for each cash-gencrating unit No trademarks
were written down for mmpairment in the
fiscal year

Goodwill helongs to  the cash-
generating units Gin Tone, Switzerland, and
the Stesa Group. Lithuania, 1 e to the Men's &
Sportswear segment and the Premium Brands
segment, respectively The cash flow projec-
ttons are based on a growth rate in the low
and md smgle-digit range for the planning
periods, which reflects the trend of the past
years n the respective segments The dis-
count rate used for the cash flow projections
averages 7 6 percent for each cash-genera-
ting umt The test resulted 1n an 1mpairment
for Gin Tonic, Switzerland, as the parameters
apphed to determine the value 1n vse of the
remaining Gin Tonic share were reduced as a
result of the restructuring As far as the other
cash-generating units are concerned, ma-
nagement arrived at the condlusion that no
potentially possible change in the parameters
for the deternuinatton of the value in use could
result 1n the carrymng amount excecding the
corresponding recoverahle amount

(13) At-equity mvestments

Ahlers AG holds a 49 percent share i Jupiter
Shirt GmbH, Tirschenreuth, which was esta-
blished in 2010 The reporting date of the
company 1s December 31 As the Jast full
financial statements relate to the fiscal year
2013, interim financial statements were pre-
pared with effect from November 30, 2014
Given that the company continues to show a
good performance and neither a capital n-
crease nor a dividend payvout were made, the
mvesiment was recognised at a value which
exceeds the prior year level by EUR 100
thousand as part of the 1egular updating of
the cquity value The mcome 1s shown under
interest and sumilar income

In the fiscal year 2013, the (ompany
which 18 accounted for using the equuty me-
thod, generated sales revenues of EUR 8,567
thousand and carmngs before taxes of EUR
137 thousand Total assets amounted to EUR
4,755 thousand as of December 31, 2013

(14) Other non-current assets
Other financal assets include two loans
granted by Ahlers AG to Jupiter Shirt GmbH,
Tirschenreuth, i an amount of EUR 500
thousand each These interest-bearing bullet
loans were used for working capital purposes
of the comipany A first partial amount was re-
paid n the fiscal year 2013/14

This item also incudes the residu-
al amount of an interest-beanng long-term
loan granted by Ahlers AG to Mr Otto Kern,
Monte Carle (Monaca), which was onigmally
extended to finance a capital increase at Otto
Kern GmbH, Herford Repayment has been
contractually agreed No ¢ollateral has been
provided

Thetem also comprises other interest-
bearing and non-mntercst-bearing long-term
leans, surrender values pertanung to hfe 1n-
surance pohcies as well as rent deposits

Other assets manly include works of
art These consist primarily of works by well-
known contemporary and Classic Modernist
artists The addibions 1n the amount of EUR
317 thousand and the disposals in the amount
of EUR 2,099 thousand exclusively relate 1o
works of art




The table below shows the other
non-current assets

KEUR 2013/14 2012113
Contemporary Art _ .28 13048
Classic Modemism 5,767 5.887 )
Other works of art 752__ 674
17,805 19,609

Classic Modernism comprises art from the
first half of the 20th century, while contem-
porary art was created after World War 11
Ahlers AG’s collection of classic modernist att
mcludes works by Alexep von Jawlensky, Fmil
Nolde and August Macke, whnle most of 1ts p1-
eces of contemporary art are by Yves Klemn

{15) Inventories

KEUR Nov 30,2014 Nov 30, 2013

Raw materiais

and consumables 24165 24 896
Werk in progress 388 367
Finished goods

and merchandise 54,883 50,421

79,436 75.684

{16) Trade receivables
Trade recewvables are usually not interest-
bearing and the average number of days out-
standing is 51 (previous year 52)

The changes 1 rmpairments included
m trade receivables are shown below

KEUR 201314 2012/13
AsatDec 1 2435 2793
Utihsation 55 -67%
Reversal -237 -278
Additans _ 312 B53
Currency translation

differences 4] 5
As at Nov 30 1,995 2,435

All expenses and mcome from the measure-
ment of trade receivables are recogmised n
other operating expenses/income and reflec-
ted 1n the mncome statement

The table below shows the age structure of the
trade recewvables as of November 30, 2014

KEUR Nov 30,2014 Nov 30, 2013

The amount of impairment taken into con-
sideration m measuring nventortes is EUR
8,256 thousand (previous year EUR 7,977
thousand) The carrymng amount of mvento-
ries recorded at net reahsable value 15 EUR
15,672 thousand (previous year EUR 13,923
thousand)

Inventories 1ncieased primarily be-
cause of the higher busmess volume with
stocked NOS items (NOS = never out of stock)
and the scasonal merchandise because of the
weak winter sales

Carrying amount

on November 30 36548 33895

thereof neither

overdue

nor impaired 29,425 27,308

thereof overdue

but not impaired 6610 6398
<Wdays 857 _ 580
>ﬁ90tg1§!ﬁ_ggys a3 193
> 180 to 270 days 48 187

220u030days 2 6

> 360 days 175 154
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With regard to the recewvables that are ove-
due but not :tmpatred, there are no indications
that suggest that the debtors will fall to meet
thenr obhgations

The mncrease in overdue, unimpaired
tlems primanly mcludes uninsured receivab-
les due from a Russian customer In 2014, the
two owners issued personal guarantees which
partly secure the recevables The amount of
these receivables 1s 1n normal proportion to
the business volume and stood at EUR 31
milhion on Novembher 30, 2014 (previous year
EUR 2 0 milhon} Against the background of
the pohitical situation, the items are not risk-
free

{(17) Other current assets
Other financial assets essentially mclude
the positive value from measurement of the
forward exchange contracts of EUR 1,974
thousand (previous year EUR - thousand)
They also comprise financial assets held for
tradmg m Germany with carrying ameunts
totalling EUR 6 thousand (previous year EUR
14 thousand} 1his item also covers impair-
ments of other financial assets, which, as
m the previous year did not exist as of the
balance sheet date

Recewvables from affiliates n the
amount of EUR 0 1 thousand {(previous year
EUR 149 thousand} relate to the exchange of
goods and services with these companies

Other assets 1n the amount of EUR

4,803 thousand (previous year EUR 3,825
thousand) primarnly indude value added tax,
deferred license payments, bonus claims as
well as recewvables from supphers and msu-
rance compames

{138) Cash and cash equivalents

KEUR Nov 30,2014 Nov 30,2013

Ea_ih on hand e 21 . AZE)E{

Bank balances o _@_7‘_7 _ ___‘g_.@_
6,308 3,928

Bank balances include 1eadily available cash
and cash equivalents and mvested overmght
funds which bear mterest at marhet rates

The fair value of cash and cash equiva-
lents 15 EUR 6,308 thousand {previous year
EUR 3,928 thousand)

Cash and cash equivalents can be broken down
as follows for cash flow statement purposes

KEUR Nov 30,2014 Nov 30, 2013
Cash on hand -1 299
Bark balances 6,077 3,629
Overdraft facihties _ -4,678 -1,259

1,630 2,669

(19) Equity

Equity and its individual components are
shown separately 1n the consolidated state-
ment of changes 1n equaty

(20) Share capital
Subscribed capital consists of a total of
13,681,520 no par shares This total 1s com-
posed of 7,600,314 common shares and
6,081,206 preferred shares with no voting
rights The 7,600,314 common shares inchu-
de 500 registered shares with transfer restric-
twons Thoey confer the right to nominate mein-
hers of the Supervisory Board The remaining
13,681,020 shares are bearer shares

The total number of shares outstan-
ding remained unchanged from the previous
year and stood at 13,681,520 shares as of
November 30, 2014




{21) Authorised capital

By resolution of the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting held on May 3, 2012, the Manage-
ment Board, with the approval of the Super-
visory Board, was authorised to increase the
company’s share capital prior to May 2, 2017,
by 1ssuing new common bearer shaies and/
or non-voting preferred shares in return for
cash contributions on one or more OCCas10NS
up to the amount of EUR 21,600 thousand
The Management Board 15 authorised to ex-
clude the shareholders’ subscription nghts
under certain condittons with the consent of
the Supervisory Board (see chapter ‘Take-
over-related Informaton and explanatory
report’, p 68 or www ahlers-ag com, ‘Inves-
tor Relations’)

(22) Own shares
As of November 30, 2014, the company held
no own shares

(23) Capital reserve

The capital reserve totals EUR 15,024
thousand, EUR 12,782 thousand of this
amount 15 due to the premium on the capital
increase against cash contributions that oc-
curred at the time of the [P0, and EUR 1,610
thousand from the i1ssue of preferred shares
lhe capital reserve i the consohdated IFRS
financial statements was reduced by the costs
of raising cguuty that were mcurred during
the [PO

97

(24) Revenue reserves
The revenue reserves in an amount of EUR
49,409 thousand are made up of profit carry-
forwards (EUR 30,886 thousand), the net in-
come for the year attributable to the sharehol-
ders of Ahlers AG (FUR 5,768 thousand), the
revenue reserves from the first-time adoption
of [FRS (EUR 7,293 thousand) and other reve-
nue reserves (EUR 5,462 thousand) The lat-
ter include the effects from the revaluation of
the net debt of the pension obligations n the
amount of EUR -783 thousand before taxes
and EUR -555 thousand after taxes, which
are directly recognised 1n equity

Of Ahlers AG’s HGB profit for the year
imcluding the HGB profit reserves totaling
EUR 41.331 thousand, the amount repre-
senting deferred tax assets under HGB 1n the
amount of EUR 111 thousand may not he dis-
tributed

(25) Equity difference from currency
translation

The adjustment item for currency trans-
lattons (omprises the exchange differences
arising from translation of the individual
financial statements of foreign subsidiari-
es mto Euros, exchange differences from
monetary items as part of a net investment
i a foreign operation after tax pursuant to
IAS 21 32f as well as from the recognition of
currency forward transactions hedged m ac-
cordance with IAS 39 1n equity after taxes
Deferred taxes accounted for 1n equity repre-
sented a total of EUR -275 thousand (previous
year EUR 396 thousand)
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Statement of provisions 2013/14

Addiionof  Currency
unacceued  translation
KEUR Dec 1,2013 Utilisation  Release Additons interest  differences  Nov 30, 2014
Non-current
provisions
Retirement benefit and
stmiar obligations 4,642 444 - 531 143 18 4,890
Other Anmiversaries 334 33 - 143 14 2 460
Part-time retimement 29 19 4 2 - - 8
Sub-total 363 52 4 145 14 2 468
Current
provisions
Goods returned 1,805 1679 7 1,526 - i 1,646
Severance payments 110 58 44 1,497 - - 1,505
Other 986 650 3] 344 15 629
Sub-total 2,90t 2,387 117 3,367 - 16 3,780
7,906 2,883 121 4043 157 36 9,138

(26) Pension provisions

Pension obhigations of the Ahlers Group are
calculated usmg the projected umt credit me-
thod In this approach, future obligations are
computed taking into consideratton dynamic
developments using actuartal methods

The following assumptions were used as the
basis for calculation of pension obligations

Parameter 2013114 .+ 200213
Discount rate 22% 36%
Pension trend 20% 2 0%

98

Actuanial gamns and losses are recognised n
other comprehensive income in accordance
with IAS 19 120 et seq Pension expenses arc
composed of personnel expenses and nterest
expenses

Salary trends are omtitted, since pen-
sion prowvisions relate exclusively to em-
ployees who have alrcady left and no new
pension commitments are heing entered
into for the future The present values of the
defined benefit obhgations are recogmsed in
the balance sheet




nl-.

lhe table below shows the changes in the gross present values of defined benefit obligations

KEUR 2013114 2012113
Present value of the defined benefit obligation as of December 1 B 3922 4446
+_ Current service cost B o o - - o o2
+ Interestcost T i _ 3 187
- Benefits paid -41b -543
+/- Actuanal gains/losses o T _. o 457 - -149
- Curtailments/settlements ] -
Present value of the defined benefit obligation as of November 30 4,136 3.931
Currency translation - T T fg T -9
T T e zmmp
The present value of the defined benefit oh- Pre-retirement part-ttme employment

ligations amounted to EUR 4,446 thousand  provisions of EUR 27 thousand (previous
as of November 30, 2012, EUR 4,187  year EUR 100 thousand) have also been re-
thousand as of November 30, 2011 and EUR corded These pre-retirement part-time em-
4,429 theusand as of November 30, 2010 ployment provisions are secured by sccurities

For information regarding the  for insolvency insmance with a fair market
amounts stated mm the mceme statement  value of EUR 19 thousand {previous year
and in other comprehensive income, please EUR 71 thousand) The securities are offset

refer to (4) Personnel expenses and (8} In- against the pre-retirement part-tume em-
come taxes ployment provisions as they qualfy as plan
Pension provisions almost entire- assets Proceeds from the securities in the

ly are assoclated with former employees  amount of EUR 2 thousand (previous year
i Germany The provision also ncludes EUR 4 thousand) were recognised m the -
legally stipulated termination indemmty come statement

¢latms (benefits upon retirement) relating to

employees employed abroad 1n the amount  (28) Financial liabilities

of EUR 736 thousand (mevious year EUR  Non-current financial habilities are interest-
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720 thousand) bearing and generally have terms of between
As the number of actuive future be- two and seven years

neficiaries 1s very low and continues to de- Other financial hiabilities mnclude lea-

cline, the defined benefit plans entail norisk  sing labibties 1n an amount of EUR 436

to future cash flows thousand (previous year EUR 731 thousand)

and negative market values from the measure-
(27) Other non-current provisions ment of forward exchange contracts mn an
The annmiversary bonus provisions included amount of EUR 66 thousand (previous year
this ttem are based on expert actuarial opt- EUR 358 thousand) Due to the floating mte-
mons, whose calculations are based on rest rates of the financial habilies, the fair
current assumptions and trends that apply at value 15 1dentical with the respective carrying
the halance sheet date amount
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The table below shows the remamnig terms and the average interest rates
of the financial habilities on the respective balance sheet dates

Remarmng terms

upto 110 >5  Total nen-
KEUR Year 1 year 5 years years current Total
2014 Carrying amount 8,628 20504 2276 22780 31,408
Liabilities Interestrate  171%  188%  287% T
to banks 2013 Carrying amount 5,760 20,554 3077 2373 29,491
Interestrate  180%  198%  326% o ]
2014 Carrying amount 20477 - - 204717
Trade Interest rate - - -~ N )
payables 2013 Carrying amount 17,907 - - - 17,807
B ) Interest rate - - -
2014 Carrying amount 31g 183 183 502
Other Interest rate 2 30% 2 30%
liabibities 2013 Carrying amount 549 440 - 440 1089
Interest rate 295% 2 56%
Total ama 29,424 20687 2276 22,963 52,387
amounts 203 29316 20994 3177 2017 48487

All habihties to affibated companies are due
within one year This item also includes trade
payables Howcever, detailed 1teruisation 15 dis-

Obligations under finance leases
Factory and office equipment 1tems are lea-
sed undex finance lease arnnangements Future

Nov 30, 2014

pensed with m view of these companies’ mte-
gration with the Group and their participation
in mtra-group settlement

mimimum lease payments under finance
leases can be reconciled to theoir present

values as follows

Nov 30, 2013

' Present Present
Minimum value of Minimum value of
lease- minimum lease minimum
KEUR payments lease payments [ease
Matunty
~ within a year o . »® 23 304 28
MeSyess 18 w o ws w0
ST Y TR N
:I'Ea misimum leasevp_a;ménts 44 43?5__ 752 ) 131
minus the interest portion 8 o -21
Present value of minimum lease payments 436 FEL]

Liabilities under finance leases are offset by
assets 1n an amount of EUR 429 thousand
{previous year EUR 725 thousand) shown
under property, plant and equipiment

Lease payments 1 fiscal 2013/14
totalled EUR 311 thousand (previous year
EUR 281 thousand}




(29) Other current provisions

Other current provisions contain primarily provisions for returns and discounts

as well as measures for redundancy packages

(30) Other current hahlities

KEUR Nov 30, 2014 Nov 30, 2013
Liabiities to affiliated companies 2.492 1872
Other habilities Tnoes w08
thereof 7
Wages and salanes 902 5012
Taxes o 1amw 1,467
Social security - - L
Miscellanaous 3779 3799
T 13508 12727

Miscellaneous other habilities include habilities for bonuses and customs payments

(31) Other disclosures on financial mstruments

The table below shows the carrying amounts and fair values of the financial assets

and habilities as at the balance sheet date

Nov 30,2014 Nov 30, 2013
Measurement
category as Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
KEUR defined m [AS 39 amount value amount value
Assets
Cash and cash gquivalents kR ‘__E,ESQB__ 6308 3928 3928
Trade recewables LA 36 548 36548 33875 33875
Other financial assets 3,008 3008 1,564 1,564
thereof L _ L - o
- Other non-current financial assets o lR 1028 1028 15880 1550
- Hedge-related dervatives N na :*‘__1_,9_!:]4 1.974 -
- Other current financial assets ) FAHT l:; 6 14 i4
Liabilitigs
Liabilitses to banks . 31408 31408 29491 29491
Trade payables ~ o _ FLAC ‘_20.4:}7 20,477 17.907 17,907
Other financiat liabifitres ~ .. 502z 502 (1088 1089
thereof _ o S o o o
__ - Lisbilities from [ease agreements . ma 436 436 731 3
- Hedge-related denvatives na 66 66 358 358
Total per measurement category as defined in 1AS 39
Loans and Receivables L= _ 438 43884 39353 39,353
Financial Assets HeldforTradng ___ ~  ~~ _PMOM_ 6 6 1 ___ 1
Financral Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost FLAC 51885 51,885 47398 47,398
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The fair value 15 the amount at which the re-
spective ttems could be exchanged between
contractual parties at the present tme The
above figures are based on the following as-
sumptions

Due to the short-terin nature, there are
no differences between amortised cost and
the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, current liabilities to banks
and current trade payables

The fawr values of other current finan-
c1al assets are based on a price determined in
an active market

Non-current financal instruments and
non-current habihties to banks carry floaung
mterest rates, which means that the discoun-
ted future cash flows are equivalent to the
carrymg amounts

Derwvative mstrumenis elgible for
hedge accounting are based on forward ex-
change contracts, which are mcasured using
forward exchange 1ates

Risks fiom fnancial mstruments as
defined m IFRS 7 31 also relate to financi-
al covenants (wnitten conditions attached to
financial instruments, especially loan agree-
ments, providing for legal consequences n
the event of non-comphance with agreed -
nancial ratios) The Ahlers Group has agreed
to comply with financtal covenants in credig
agreements with the financial insttutions
These relate to certain equuty ratios and leve-
rage ratios of the Ahlers Group The financial
covenants are monttored m the context of the
rnisk management system Regular reports aie
subimitted to the banks There 15 no mdication
that comphance with the financial covenants
1s not possible

The table below shows the net resulis by mea-
surement categories

Subsequent measurement Net result
at Currency
from fair trans-  Impai- from
KEUR Interest value

lation ment disposal  2013/14 2012113

Loan and Recevables LaR 113 - -15 -85 -128 -11§'7 #A-_d_}j_
Financial Assets Held

for Trading FARTT i - - - 2 -9
Financial Liabilities

Measured at Amortised Cost  FLAC 964 - -22 - - -986 -946

All interest 1s shown in net interest income
Gains and losses from the measurement of
forward exchange contracts not eligible for
hedge accountmg are recogmsed in the cost

of materials The effecis from subsequent
measurement and from the disposal of the
other 1tems are shown under other operating
Income/expenses




(32) Contingent liablities and
other financial oblhigations

As of respective balance sheet date,
contingent ahilittes amounted to

KEUR Nov. 30, 2014 Nov 30,2013
Aceeptance liabtlities - 1

thereof for affiliated
companies L -
Guarantees i 884 844

thereof for affiliated
companies ) ’
884 855

As of November 30, 2014, contractual obliga-
tiens for the acquisition of property amoun-
ted to EUR 109 thousand (previous year EUR
277 thousand) This amount 1s the result of
the purchase commitments for the exchange
of technical equipment at a production plant
The outflow of funds wil occur 1n the first
few months of the next fiscal year There is
ng possibility for refunds, not even of parual
amounts

Other financial liabilities

The following future minimum lease pay-
ments under uncancellable operating leases
for factory and office equipment exist as of the
halance sheet date

Matursty {(KEUR} Nov 30,2014 Nov 30,2013

within 2 year 585 ... B
ToSyears 5328 11202
>.5ygag . 4449__ B 5_(_}_15_

26623 2814

The lease agreements do not contam renewal
options No himutations have been imposed
on the Group m connection with the lease
agreements Conditional lease payments of
EUR 317 thousand (previous year EUR 301
thousand) have heen recorded under lease
expense These conditional lease payments
concern payments that vary according io
sales levels Infiscal 2013/14, payments under
operating leases totalled EUR 7,284 thousand
(previous year EUR 7,322 thousand)

(33) Financial risk management and
dervative financial instruments
To finance its busmess activity, the Ahlers
Group mawmly uses finanaal labihties in the
form of mterest-bearng loans and trade pa-
yables These are offset by cash and cash
equivalents as well as short-term deposits
and trade recewvables In addition, the Ahlers
Group uses financial derwvatives

The Ahleis Group operates mternatio-
nally and 1s, therefore, exposed to exchange
rate, default and interest 1ate risks

The Ahlers Group enters mto forward
exchange contracts to cover the risk of ex-
change rate fluctuations lhe transachons
are executed exclusively with marketable
mstruments These serve te hedge future ex-
change rate fluctuations of the USD and the
CHF against the EUR Exchange rate fluctu-
ations of the USD affect the Ahlers Greup m
the procurement of raw materials, manufac-
tured products and manufacturing services
m international markets, white fluctuations
m the exchange rate of the CHF affect the
Ahlers Group 1n the sale of goods in Switzer-
land (cash flow hedge)
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The table helow shows the volumes and fair values of the forward exchange contracts as of the

respective balance sheet dates

Nov 30, 2014 Nov 30, 2013
Nominal value Fair value Nominal value Fair value
in thsd in thsd
currency currency
Type Currency units KEUR KEUR units KEUR KEUR
Purchases uso 27 000 19721 1974 32874 24 472 -278
Sales CHF 3600 2939 -66 369 2921 -80

As of November 30, 2014, there were agam
no forward exchange deals with a positive
market value of EUR 1,974 thousand (previ-
ous year EUR - thousand) and forward ex-
change deals with a negative market value of
EUR -66 thousand (previous year EUR -358
thousand} Forward exchange deals with a
posittive market value are reported under
other current financial assets and these with
a negative narket value under other current
financial habibies All operating forward ex-
change contracts in the Ahlers Group have
a remamng term of between two days and
twelve months and are realised in batches of
hetween FUR 0 2 mullion and FUR 1 2 milli-
on over this period, with a focus on certain
seasons All contractual parameters of all
the above forward exchange deals are fixed,
which means that there are ne bandwidth
agreements and the contrdcts cannot be can-

USD/FUR exchange rates range from 1 2815
to 1 3897 No collateral was furnished The
cash flow hedges for future purchases were
expected to be highly effecuve, which means
that the requirements for hedge accounting
pursuant to IAS 39 were met Accordingly,
positive effects 1n an amount of EUR 1,316
thousand after deferred taxes (previous year
EUR 247 thousand negative effects) from the
measurement of forward exchange contracts
were recognised in equuty at the fair value
The table below shows the sensitivity
of the consolidated net income hefore tax (due
to changes 1n realised exchange differences)
and the equity capital {(due to changes m the
fair value of the forward exchange contracts
and the after-tax results of the above pre-tax
effects), towards possible and realistic chan-
ges n the exchange 1ates of the US dollar, the
Swiss franc and the Polish zloty before debt

celled prematurely The contractually fixed  consolidation
Changes in Impact on net income Impact on
exchange rates before tax equity
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2m3
KEUR KEUR KEUR KEUR
o
- % % 5 % 3 8
-3% -2% 7 -63 -5 -43
CHF o¥% % 9 ) . -35 N
-2% 2% 51 70 35 48
1 -27 . - -
b L A% w2’ 18 -8
-1% 1% 13 28 9 19
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Credit limits arc defined to rmunnmse the rsk In view of the high equity 1atio, the
concentration and reduce losses from the de-  Ahlers Group considers 1ts exposure to interest
fault of a business partner to a mummum The  rate risks to be non-critical Aceordingly, no n-
maxtmum default nsk 15 apparent from the  terest rate hedges are taken out The imerest
carrying amount of each financial asset re-  rate level 1s momtored nevertheless and 1t 15
poited m the balance sheet These risks arein  possible that interest rate swaps may be used
part covered by approprate mnsurance in the m future

case of trade receivables (cf note (16} [rade The table below shows the sensinvity
recewvables) The maximum default risk in this  of the consolidated net income before tax and
area thus comprises the unsecured recewvab-  of equuty towards possible and realishc chan-
les and the deductible of the trade credit m-  ges in floating interest rates for floating rate
surate and amounted to FUR 11 5 milkonas  noncurrent habilities based on the assumption
of the balance sheet date (previous year EUR  that the mterest margin romains unchanged
10 5 milhon)

Increase/Decrease Impact on net income Impact an equuty
in basis points before tax (KEUR} (KEUR}
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2n3
. - 34 -63 -23 -37
5 -10 11 21 B8 14

With regard to cash management, the Ahlers  1n conjunction with a seasonal peak calcula-
Group amms to maintain 1ts flexibiity through  tion and checked agamst the funds provided
the use of overdrafts, bank loans and opera- by the existing credit hnes The risk of a cash
ting leases In the context of the budgeting  shortage 1s thus monitored constantly
process, & cash tlow projection 1s performed

Capital management Portfohio decisions made it this context are
The Ahlers Group's capital management ac- outhned under "Takeover-related informa-
tivities are geared to supporung the business  tion” i the combined management report
activity, mamntaining a good equity ratto and  As of November 30, 2014, no modifications of
creating hnancial security and flexthility the targets, principles or processes occurred
In managing s capital siructure, the The business activity of the Ahlets
company primarily tahes changes 1n the eco-  Group s mostly of a short-term nature, which
nomic environment into account Capital can  means thatnet working capital is the adequate
be managed through the adjustment of divi-  vartable for monitoning the capital The net
dend payments, the issue of new shares or  workmg capital compnses inventories, trade
the repurchase or redemption of own shares recetvables as well as current trade payables
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KEUR Nov 30,2014 Nov 30,2013
lnventones_ o 73,436 o 75,684
Trodereoeablos 36548 33875
Current trade payables i 20477 -17.907
Net Working Capital 95,507 91,652

7. EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE
GROUP SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Ahlers Group defines its reporting seg-
ments by the type of products This primanily
reflects the internal reporting system as well
as the internal decision-making processes

The Group's reporting segments are
Premiumm Brands, Jeans & Workwear and
Men's & Sportswear Expenses for central
functions are charged to the segments with
due vonsideration to the arm’s length prin-
ciple and hased on actual usage Due to the
different positionings of the segments, no 1n-
ter-segment revenues are gencrated Where a
clear allocation of assets and lhiabilitics 15 not
possible, these are allocated using appropri-
ate distribution ratios The segment result 15
the result befoie taxes, as income taxes are
not segmented due to the central manage-
ment Foi the same reason, assets and haln-
lthes do not mclude deferred or current tax
assets and habilities

This means that the total assets stated
1n the balance sheet (EUR 190,402 thousand)
result from the assets as deived from the seg-
ment information (EUR 188,383 thousand)
plus deferred tax assets and curient income
tax assets (EUR 2,019 thousand) Accordingly.
the habilities stated in the balance sheet (EUR
80,130 thousand) result from the habilities as
derived from the segment information (HUR
75,852 thousand} plus deferred tax liabilities
and current income tax habilities (EUR 3,842
thousand) as well as leasing habthties (FUR
436 thousand)

The Group segment mformation by
geographic regions reflects the mamm output
markets of the Ahlers Group

The accounting and valuation princi-
ples for the segment repoit are the same as
for the consolidated financial statements

Ihe following divisions constitute the re-
porting segments

Premium Brands

I'his segment consists of the manufacture
and sale of the premuunm brands of the Ahlers
Group Pierre Cardin, Otto Kern and Baldes-
sarint belong to this group

Jeans & Workwear

This segment consists of the manufacture
and sale of non-premium brand jeans and
casual pants made of flat-weave fabric as well
as working clothes This segment includes the
brands Pronier Woikwear, Pionier Jeans &
Casuals and Pioneer Authentic Jeans

Men’s & Sportswear

This segment consists of the production and
distribution of non-premium brand sports-
wear casual clothing, and young fashion
This segment covers the Gin lonic and
Jupiter Spoitswear brands

Miscellaneous

Individual products that cannot be appro-
pniately allocated to the various business
segments are hsted in this section, which
primanly mcludes the works of art




Information en geographic regions

In the breakdown by geographic regions,
‘Western Furope’  encompasses the
following countries  Belgiem, Denmark,
Finland, France, Greece, Great Britan, Ire-
land. Iceland, ltaly, Luxembourg, the Nether-
lands, Norway, Austria, Portugal, Sweden,
Switzerland and Spain ‘Central/Eastern
Europe/Other coveis all the remawnng
countries

Explanation to segment data
The figures for the Group segment informa-
tion are based on consohdated figures without
adjusting for mter-segment results, which are
msignificant

‘Segment result’ is defined as pre-tax
imcome ‘Assets’ are total assets minus defer-
red tax assets and current tax clauns ‘Liabih-
ties’ include the total of current and non-cur-
rent habtlines minus deferred tax labilities,
current income tax obligations and habihties
under lecases The item "Other non-cash items’
mcludes net additions to provisions

8 OTHER DISCLOSURES

Management Board compensation

The compensation of the Management Board
members is decided by the Supervisory Board
and regularly reviewed for appropriateness
by the Supervisory Board The criteria taken
mto account in this review are the size, ach-
vity and economuc situation of Ahlers AG, on
the one hand, and the tasks of the respecti-
ve Management Board member and lus/ her
personal contribution to the company’s per-
formance, on the other hand In the opinion
of the Supervisory Boaid, the total compen-
sation and its individual components are ap-
propriate given the tasks and performance of
the respective Management Board members
and the financial situation of Ahlers AG The
Human Resources Committec prepares the
Supervisory Board's appoiniment decisions

It subnuts proposals to the Supervisory Board
regarding the compensation, the compensa-
tion schente and its regular review as well as
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the conclusion, amendment and termination
of the employment contracts of the Manage-
ment Board members

The compensation 15 always performance-
oriented and consists of the following compo-
nents

- Afixed annual salary, which 1s paid month-
ly and regularly checked for appropiiate-
ness by the Supervisory Board

- A profit-related bonus, which 15 a fixed
percentage of the consolidated net in-
come for the year The profit-related bonus
15 capped with effect from the fiscal year
2013/14

- A targetrelated bonus, winch depends on
the achievement of certain targets set
by the Supervisory Board The amount de-
pends on the degree to which the targets
are reached The target-related bonus 1s
capped

- A long-term bonus onented towards the
company's  sustainable development
whose amount 15 determuned on the
basis of the eveclution of Group sales
revenues, Group earnings, net working
capital and the shaie price over two 3-year
periods The 3-year periods are from
December 2012 to November 2015 and
from December 2014 to November 2017
for Dr Ahlers and Dr Kolsch and from
May 2014 to Aprd 2017 for Mr Iilger The
compensation wil be disbursed in Apuil
2016 and Apri 2018 for the two first-
mentioned Board members and m July
2017 for the last-mentioned At the tme
of their 1ssue, the share price-hased com-
ponents of all 3-year tranches had an
intrinsic value totaling EUR 144 thousand
The long-term bonus 1s capped

- Other compensation components exist in
the form of a company car and a set of
clothing for Mr Hilger and Dr Kolsch and
a company flat at the head office for Dr
Ahlers Personal usc of company cars is
capped No pension commtments for
Management Board members exist, nor
have any loans been granted to the latter
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The Management Board contracts do not
contain any explicit severance pay provisions
that would apply m the event of prematute
termunation of the contract, nor are there
any change of control clauses that would take
cffect 1n the event of a takeover No pension
tommitments were made to the incumbent
members of the Management Boaid

The 2011 Annual Shareholders’
Meeting decided mnot to report the compen-
sation of the Management Board members
individually for another five years The total
compensailon of the Management Board 1s
shown below

KEUR 2013/14 2012113
Salary . ﬁ1*,(l4’3____ﬂ[]_
Annual bonus* _ BB 451
Mrscellaneous 73 64
Total 1,780 1,355

* composed of a profit-related target related and long-term
onented bonus The long-term bonus 1s included at an amount
of EUR 109 thousand {previous year EUR 18 thousand}

Former members of the Management Board
and the management of Adolf Ahlers GmbH
and their survivers received total compensa-
twon of EUR 77 thousand {previous year EUR
76 thousand) during fiscal 2013/14

Supervisory Board compensation

The Supecivisory Board compensation 1s
governed by section 18 of the statutes Sinm-
lar to the Management Board compensation,
the compensation for the Supervisory Board
15 also geared to the size and the sconomic
situation of Ahlers AG as well as to the tasks
of each mdividual member of the Super-
visory Board The compensation consisis of a
fixed and a variable component The vanahle
component 15 oriented towards the sustai-
able growth of the company It 1s calculated
as a fixed per-thousand fraction of the ave-
rage consohdated net meome of the past three
years taking a defined threshold value mto
account, and 15 capped Additional compen-
sation 1s pawd to the Chairperson and the De-
puty Chairperson of the Supervisory Board as
well as the Commmittee Charpersons

KEUR 2013/14 2012113
Fixed compensation 105 105
Yarahle compensation A 30
Total 150 135

All expenses wncuried by the Supervisory
Boaid membelrs in conjunction with their
mandates as well as the value-added tax
charged on their compensation are refunded
No loans are granted to members of the Su-
pervisory Board [awyers Feddersen Heuer
& Partner, of witich Supervisory Board Chair-
man Prof Dr Heuer 1s a partner, provided
the company in late 2013 with legal advice
1 an acquisitien project and a corporate law
1ssue and nvolced a total amount of EUR 11
thousand for therr services Von Ah & Part-
ner AG, Zunch (Switzerland). tn which Super-
visoly Board member and Audit Comnurttec
Chairwoman Prof Dr von Ah 1s a partner,
provided tax consulung services to the
Ahlers Group in fiscal 2013/14, for which an
amount of EUR 24 thousand was invoiced In
accordance with section 114 of the German
Stock Corporation Act (AktG) all benefits had
heen approved by the Supervisory Board




Shareholdings

Westfalisches  Textilwerk  Adolf  Ahlers
Stftung & Co KG, Herford, holds a majority
mierest i the voting share capital of Ahlers
AG, mamnly via 1ts fully-owned subsidiary,
WT'W-Beteihgungsgesellschaft mbH, Herford
The Ahlers AG financial statements are inclu-
ded mn the consolidated financial statements
of Westfahsches Textilwerk Adolf Ahlers
Stiftung & Co KG, Herford

Related party disclosures
On Jan 9, 2014, Adolf Ahlers Fanulen-
stitung, Speicher/Appenzell Ausserrhoden,
Switzerland notified 1n accordance with see-
tion 21 (1) of the German Secunties Trading
Act (WpHG) that 1ts voting mterest i Ahlers
AG, Herford, exceeded the thresholds of 3%,
5%, 10%, 15%, 20%. 25%, 30%, 50% and
75% on December 31, 2013 and amounted
to 76 6% (which corresponds to 5,824,194
votmg rights) on that date Pursuant to sec-
tion 22 (1) sentence 1 no 1 of the German
Securities Tradmg Act (WpHG), 76 6% (which
corresponds to 5,824,194 voung nights) are
attributable to Adolf Ablers Familienstiftung
Attributable votng rights are held
through the following compames which
are controlled by Adolf Ahlers Famlienstif-
tung and whose voting interest m Ahlers AG
amounis to 3% or more

- Westfalisches Textilwerk Adolf Ahlers KG
- WTW-Beteihgungsgesellschaft mbH

OnJan 9, 2014, Dr Stella A Ahlers notified in
accordance with section 21 (1) of the German
Securities Trading Act (WpHG) that her voting
mterest in Ahlers AG, Herford exceeded the
thresholds of 3%, 5%, 10%, 15%, 20%., 25%,
30%. 50% and 75% on December 31, 2013
and amounted to 76 6% (which corresponds
to 5,824,194 votig rights) on that date Puwr-
suant to section 22 (1) sentence 1 no 1 of
the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
76 6% (which corresponds to 5,824,194
voting rights) are attributable to Dr Stella A
Ahlers

Attnbutable voting rights are held
through the following companies which are
controlled by Dr Stella A Ahlers and whose
voting interest i Ahlers AG amounts to 3%
or more

- Adelf Ahlers Famihenstiftung, Switzerland
- Westfalisches Textilwerk Adolf Ahlers KG
- WTW-Beteshgungsgescllschaft mbH

Westfalisches Textilwerk Adolf Ahlers KG has
been renamed Woestfalisches Textilwerk Adolf
Abhlers Stiftung & Co KG in the meantime

Transactions with related parties were exe-
cuted under conditions that pertain to arm'’s
length transactions The open posttions at the
end of the fAscal year - with the exception of
goods deliveries that are supplied under re-
tention of fitle as 15 customary m the ndus-
try - are not collateralised and will be paid
in cash or by offset There are no guatantees
relating to claims or debts of related parties
As i the previous year, the Ahlers Group did
not record allowances against receivables
from rclated parties m the year under review
The need to create an allowance 1s examined
on an annual basis by reviewing the financial
situation of the related party Key business re-
lattonships are explained helow

Duning fiscal 2013/14 there were

« supplies to Westfalisches Textilwerk Adolf
Ahlers Suftung & Co KG, Herford, and
related parties in an amount of EUR 31
million (previous year EUR 4 2 millon),

s services from Westfalisches Textilwerk
Adolf Ahlers Stuftung & Co KG, lerford,
and related parties 1n an amount of FUR
149 mullion (previous ycar EUR 137
mulion)

As of November 30, 2014, net habihties 1n
the amount of EUR 2 5 milion {previous year
EUR 1 7 mithon) resuited from business rela-
tions between Ahlers AG and its subsidiaries
on the one hand and related parties on the
other
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Employees (annual average)

213/14 2012113
Blue collar L 1;37_1__- 1,356
Whitecollar 8% __ 88
Total 2,226 2,194

Declaration of conformity pursuant

to section 161 of the German Stock
Corporation Act (AktG)

The Management Board and the Supervisory
Board of Ahlers AG have submitted the decia-
1ation of conformity i comphance with the
German Corporate Governanee Code for 2013
pursuant te sectton 161 of the German Stock
Corporation Act (AktG) and madoe the declaraty-
on permanently accessthle to shareholders on
the Ahlers AG website (www ahlers-ag com)

Exemption rule pursuant to secltions 264 (3)
and 264b of the German Commercial Code
(HGB)
As of November 30, 2014, the exemption rule
provided for n scction 264 (3) and section
264b of the HGB was applied by the following
subsidraries

Baldessarim GmbH, Munich, Gin Tonic
Special Mode Gmbtll, Sindelfingen, Otte Kern
GmbH, Herford, Ahlers Retaill GmbH, Herford,
Pionter Jeans & Casuals Deutschland GmbH
Herford, Ahlers Zentralverwaltung GmbH,
Herford, a-fashion com GmbH, Herford,
Ahiers Vertrieb GmbH, Herford, Jupiter
Bekleidung GmbH, Herford, Piomier Berufs-
klesdung GmbH, Herford, Pioneer Jeans-
Bekleidung GmbH, Herfoud, und Ahlers PC
GmbH, Herford, as well as Allers Texoithan-
del GmbH & Co KG, Herford In addition, He-
mina Grundstucks- Vermietungsgesellschaft
mbll & Co Objckt Herford KG, Pullach 1n
Isartal. will exercise the exemption option
provided for in section 264b HGB for the
financial statements for the period ended
December 31, 2014

11

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no mcidents after the balance
sheet date that had a matenal impact on the
Group’s earnings, financial and net worth
posilion as of November 30, 2014

Auditor’s fee
The audit fee expensed mn fiscal 2013/14
and the previous year covered the following

Services

KEUR 201314 201213

Audit of the financial

statements 234 223

Other attestation services - -

Tax consulting services 7 15

Other services 1 Vi
252 240

Distribution of profits of Ahlers AG
In fiscal 2013/14, Ahlers AG distnibuted a
dividend of EUR 045 per common share
and of EUR 050 per preferred share The
total dividend payments amounted to EUR
6,460,744 30

The Management Board proposes to
pay out to the shareholders a dividend of EUR
0 40 per common share and of EUR 0 45 per
preferred share from the distributable profit
of the fiscal year 2013/14, 1¢e a total of EUR
5,776,668 30

T




9 CORPORATE BODIES

Supervisory Board

Prot Dr Cail-Heme Heuer
Attoiney, Komgstem (Chauman),
Feddersen Heuer & Partner

Prof Dr Julha von Ah
Tax consultant, Feusisherg
(Deputy Chairwoman)

von Ah & Partner AG

Heidrun Baumgait
Administrative assistant, Bielefeld
(employee representative},

Ahlers Zentralverwaltung GmhH

Roswitha Galle

Adnmunistrative assistant, Spenge
(employee representative),
Ahlers Zentralverwaltung GmbH

Prof Dr. Ulrich von Jeinsen
Attorney, Hanover,
Gohmann Rechtsanwalte und Notare

Bernd A Rauch
Advertising expert,
Bad Homburg

Management Board

Dr. Stella A Ahlers
Feusisherg, Chairwoman
of the Management Board

Jan Hilger
Herdelberg, Chairman Procurcement/Logistics/
Foreign Facilities, since May 1, 2014

Dr Karsten Kolsch
Herford, Cluef Financial Officer

Further disclosures relating to Supervisery/Management Board members

On November 30, 2014 members of the Supervisory/Management Board ot the company aie
represented on the following boards of other companmes

Prof Dr Carl-Heinz Heue:

- Deputy Chanman of the Supervisory Board

of M M Warburg & CO KGaA, Hamburg

Prof Dr Julia von Ah
- Member of the Advisory Board of
von Ah & Partnet AG, Zurich, Switzerland

Dr Stella A Ahlers
- President of the Advisory Board of Adolf
Ahlers AG, Cham (Switzerland)

Supervisory/Management Beard membersiiot mentioned above are not represented on other

companies’ boards

Herford, February 23, 2015

Ahlers AG
Ihe Management Board

S A

D1 Stella A Ahlers

Ah

W e

1 Hilger

Dr Karsten Kolsch
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

for fiscal 2013/14

Accumnulated costs
Reclassi- Currency
KEUR Dec 1,2013 Additions hsposals fication differences  Nov 30, 2014
Property, plant and equipment
Land, land nghts and buldings 34,736 458 17 92 35,269
Machinery 9,098 590 198 12 442 9944
Plent and office equipment 44 350 3409 2,164 3 85 5863
Payments on account and plant under construction 24 16 -15 1 26 T
88,208 4473 2,379 0 600 90,902
Intangible assets
Industnial property nights and similar rights and assets 26,390 969 343 2 27018
Goodwill o 1,504 ) % 1530
Payments on account 0 749 749
27,894 17118 343 0 28 29,297
116,102 6,191 2122 0 628 120,199
for fiscal 2012/13
Accumulated costs
Reclassi- Currency
KEUR Dec 1,2012 Additions Disposals fication differences  Nov 30 2013
Property, plant and equipment
lffﬂq@ rights and buildings 39,641 93 4,888 -116 34,736
Mactwey 3551 07 4% 13 300 9,098 -
Plantand ofics smpment T Gamn T Tasw | am L G mw
Payments on account and plant under construeton 108 70 M6 LI S
92,617 4970 8817 0 562 8808
intangible assets
tndustrial property rights and similar nights and assets 26,204 309 L -5 25,390
Goodwiil ___ '” R 2 1504
Payments on account e 0 0
i o 21,734 309 118 0 -3 21,894
120,351 5.279 8935 0 -593 116,102
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Accumulated depreciatton/amortisation

Carrying amounts

Currency

Dec 1 7013 Additions Disposals differences  Nav 30, 2014 Nov 30,2014  Nov 30,2013
. ______5?1____“_” 2 8 19,845 o 15424 15507
_ A V4 m 198 o _ 8n3 R <L 98
3386 3687 196 000049 34,916 . _lomnr AL
e e e e . BB

60,524 4,665 2,186 m 63,474 27,428 27,684

- s S8 3 1 15,962 nos 10628
_ B 04 206 o 10 620 . g0 1100
i e : om0

16,166 744 339 11 16,582 12,715 11,728

76,690 5.409 2525 452 80,056 40,143 39,412

Accumulated depreeiation/amortisation Carrying amaounts
Currency

Dec 1 2012 Additions Disposals differences  Nov 30, 2013 Nov 30 2013  Nov 30 2012

_ . 22951 __ be3 4233 . b 7 15507 16680

83 e 480 257 81’ 96 1,176

o 12793 _ ___i?gﬂ_"_”# %1@ . ____~8§ o 33,166 o i l_},_1§4 19619

o o ~ L o _?4 103

64,029 4,758 1,866 -397 60,524 27,684 28,588
o 15334 524 92 4 15,762 L 10628 10870
3 8 0 _Mw 1
R . - b0,

15,747 524 92 -13 16,166 1,728 11,587

79,716 5,282 7,958 -310 76,680 39.412 40,575
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GROUP SEGMENT INFORMATIONS

for fiscal 2013/14

by
business
segment Premium Brands Jeans & Workwear Men s & Sportswear Others Total
KEUR 2013114 2012/13 201314 2012113 2013/14 201213 20314 2012113 2013114 2M2/13
Sales 165 049 156,628 69,357 65,287 22407 24 554 796 248 257,109 246,17
Intersegment sales o T __“T-_j___‘ N M“_”d_ -
Segment result T 824 5535 430 4507 ABE A8 472 538 8417 GGG
thereof
Depreciation and
amortisation 3.325 3058 1396 1,423 667 780 21 21 5409 5,282
Imparrment o
losses {IAS 36} - - - o 205 - - 206
Other T T o
nen-cash items 804 587 398 20 %5 4 - 1,967 848
interest ncome 110 29 3 ® 10 n 248 352
Interest expense 620 631 286 263 85 99 00 891 1013
Net assets 122,868 112,497 —_'31 A07 29141 15,697 18,406 1841 20,213 188,383 178297
Capital B T T o
expenditure 4,258 3,530 1,461 1060 477 629 37 .54E§ 6,513 5,825
Liabilities T 50349 46728 17738 16053 7743 6844 2 18 75852 60,643

14




by

geographic
region Premium Brands Jeans & Workwear Men s & Sporiswear Others Total
KEUR 2083114 2012113 2013714 01273 200314 2012113 209314 2M213 2013/14 0 2012113
Germany
Sales (78605 73398 51440 48432 105844 11835 295 248 140885 134013
Net assets 93,559 88.375 19,057 18,286 11,440 11,728 18,397 20201 142453 138,590
Western Europe -
Sales 42,03_5_ 41,044__ 12 803_ ___1_2 054___ B‘I.SE_..._ 8,859 - 62,997 61,957
Net assets 8241 6563 8618 7669 3076 353 T - 19935 17768
Central-/ Eastern T T
Europe/ Other ~ .
Sales 1409 42186 5114 480 3704 3760 - . 53201 50747
Netasssts 21088 17553 3732 318 1181 1142 14 12 259% 21899
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Audit opinion

We have 1ssued an ungualified auditor s report, signed
on February 24, 2015 1n Hannover, to the consolidated
financial statements and the combined management report
and Combined Management Report of Ahlers AG, Herford,
for the financial year from December 1 2013 to November
30, 2014 The translat:on of the onginal German auditor's
report states as follows

LAuditor's Report

We have audited the consolidated financtal statements
prepared by the Ahlers AG, Herfod, comprising the state-
ment of financial pasition, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement
of cash flows and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, together with the combined management re-
port and Combined Management Report for the financial
vear from December 1, 2013 to November 30, 2014 The
preparation of the consolidated financial statements and
the combined management report and Combined Manage-
ment Report in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU and the additional requirements of German commercial
law pursuant to § 315a{1} of the HGB are the respansibih-
ty of the legal representatives of the parent company Our
responsibifity 1s to express an opimion on the consoldated
financial statements and on the combined management
report and Combined Management Report hased on our
audit '

We conducted our audit of the consolidated
financral staterments in accardance with & 317 of the HGB
and the German generally accepted standards for the
audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut
der Wirtschaftsprufer [Institute of Public Auditors in Ger-
many] (IDW) Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit such that misstatements materially
affecting the presentation of the net assets financial posi-
tion and results of operations in the conschdated financial
statements n accor~dance with the applieable financial
reporting framework and in the combined management
report and Combined Management Report are detected
with reascnable assurance Knowledge of the business
activities and the economic and legal environment of the
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group and expectations as te possible misstatements are
taken Into account :n the determmation of avdit procedu-
res The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal
control system and the evidence supporting the disclosures
m the consol:dated financial statements and the combined
management and Combined Management Report are ex-
amined primanly on a test basis within the framework of
the audit The audit includes assessing the financial infor-
mation of those components consolidated, the scape of the
consolidation, the accounting and cansolidation principles
used and the significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation cf the con-
solidated financ:al statements and the combined manage-
ment and Combined Management Report We betieve that
our zudit provides a reasonable basis fer our opimon

Cur audit has not led to any reservations

In our opimion, based on the findings of our audit
the consohidated financial statements comply with IFRSs
as adepted by the EU, the additional requirements of
German commerctal law pursuant to 8 315a{1) of the HGB
and give a true and fair view of the net assets, finangal
posiion and results of operations of the group
accordance with these requirements The combined
management report and Combined Management Report 1s
sonsistent with the consohdated financial stataments and
as a whole provides a suitable view of the group s position
and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future
development *

Hannover, February 74, 2015

BDOAG
Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft

Heesch
Wirtschafisprufer
(German Public Auditor)

Lidienblum
Wirtschaitsprufer
(German Public Auditor)




Responsibility Statement

To the hest of our knowledge, and 1n accordance with the
applicable reporting principles, the consohdated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the earnings,
financial and net worth position of the Group, and the
management report and Combined Management Report in-
clude a fair raview of the developrent and performance of
the business and the gosition of the Group, together with a

deaseniption of the principal opportuniiies and risks associa-
ted with the expected development of the Gioup

Dr Stella A Ahlers
Jan Hilger
Dr Karsten Kbisch

Proposal for the appropriation of profits

The Management Board proposes to use the distnbutab-
le profit amounting to EUR 7,049,173 56 at the end of the
fiscal year 2013/14 to pay cut a dwidend of EUR 0 40 per
common share ({SIN DEOQO5009708 and DEODOS003740)

it7

and of EUR 0 45 per preferred share {ISIN DEODO5009732),
for a total payout of EUR 5776,66830 to the share-
holders, and to carry forward the remamng profit of
EUR 1,272 505 26 to new account
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EXHIBITIONS 2013/14 (SELECTION)

KUNSTSAMMLUNGEN CHEMNITZ MUSEUM GUNZENHAUSER

l Oazemer 2010 bia 17 Apefl 2014
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MESTELLUNG

10 Maibbk 3 August 2014 Stiftsang Ahlery Pro Arts / Kectnes Pro Arte
Fubnpngen prden Samstag 15 Ube WarnbmchenstaBe 16, 30152 Hannover
oty b Sommag: 11 .17
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AUGUST
MACKE

SEHNSUCHT NACH DEM
VERLORENEN PARADIES
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ALEXEJ VON JAWLENSKY
MUSEUM GUNZENHAUSER KUNSTSAMMUUNGEN CHEMNITZ
DEC 8, 2013 - APR 27, 2014
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EMIL NOLDE

LOUISIANA MUSEUM OF MODERN ART, COPENHAGEN

JuL4 OCT 19 2014
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AUGUST MACKE
STIFTUNG AHLERS PRO ARTE / KESTNER PRO ARTE, HANOVER
MAY 10 AUG 3, 2014
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YVES KLEIN
MUSEQ DEL NOVECENTO MILAN
0CT 22, 2014 - MAR 22, 2015
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ART IN THE PREMISES OF
AHLERS AG HEADQUARTERS, HERFORD

e

RECEPTION AREA
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ENTRANCE
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STAIRCASE
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CONFERENCE ROOM
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AHLERS AG

Investor Relations
Elverdisser Str 313
32052 Herford
Germany

mvestor relations@ahlers-ag com
www ahlers-ag com

phone +49 (0) 5221 979211
fax +49 (0) 5221 72538




AHLERS AG

Investor Relations
Elverdisser Str 313
32052 Herford
Germany

mvestor relations@ahlers-ag com
www ahlers-ag com

phone +49 (0) 5221 979211
fax +49 (0) 5221 72538




2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2006

2005

2004
2000
1999
1998
1996
1992
1987
1979
1977
1975
1971
1970
1932

1919

History of Ahlers AG

Operung of the “Elshach Demim Library™ multi-brand store in Hamburg
Acqusition of additional Pierre Cardin hcenses in Belgium, France and Spain
Opening of two company-managed retail stores in Latvia

Opening of three new partner-managed stores in Poland

Opening of Pierre Cardin retail stores in Hamburg, Munich, Riga/Latvia,
Bratislava/Slovakia and Katowice/Poland

Takeover of the license for Pierre Cardin Legwear

Openung of an internattonal showroom 1n Rue Royale i Pans

Launch of the Pionier Workwear onbne shop (www promer-workwear com)

Takeover of the Damish workwear manufacturer HBI Workwear A/S 1n DK-Haderslev
Launch of the Baldessarimi online shop (www baldessarint com)

Takeover of the remamning interests 1n Oito Kern GmbH
Opening of the company’s own Baldessarim store at Funf Hofe in Munich
Launch of the Otto Kern online shop (www ottokern com)

Spin-off of the Jupiter shirts business and foundation of a joint venture
under the name of Jupiter Shirt GmbH (Ahlers share 49 percent)
Launch of the Gin Tonic online shop (www gintonic de)

Sale of the Eterna Group to a financial investor
Acqusition of Baldessarini GmbH, Muruch

Dr Stella A Ahlers, granddaughter of company founder Adolf Ahlers, is appomnted
to head the Management Board

Inclusion in the Prime Standard segment of the German Stock Exchange
Acquisition of the rights to the Otto Kern Brand

Acquisitiont of Gin Tonic Special Mode GmbH, Stuitgart

Ahlers shares are traded m the Official Market segment of the German Stock Exchange
Acquisition of Eterna Beteiligungs-AG, Passau

Licensing partnership with Pierre Cardin, Pars, begins

Imitial public offering

Takeover of a production plant in $r1 Lanka

Launch of the Pioneer brand for demum fashion

Takeover of a production plant in Poland

Foundation of the Pionmier Workwear brand

Launch of the Pionier brand for jeans and trousers of all sizes

Company moves to Herford/Westphaha

Establishment as a textile wholesale business in the Frisian town of Jever
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Financial calendar

Annual accounts press conference in DUssLeIdorf
Interim report Q1 2014/15

Analysts’ conference in Frankfurt am Main
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting in Disseldorf
Half year report 2014/15

interim report Q3 2014/15

Analysts’ conference in Frankfurt am Main

)

March 10, 2015
April 14, 2015
April 16, 2015
May 07, 2015
July 14, 2015

October 14, 2015

October 21, 2015




